INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Management of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (Brookfield) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and effected by the Board of Directors, management and other personnel
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board as defined in Regulation 240.13a-15(f) or 240.15d-15(f).

Management assessed the effectiveness of Brookfield’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based
on the criteria set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management concludes that, as of December 31, 2017, Brookfield’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective. Management excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial
reporting for Manufactured Housing, Houston Center, Mumbai Office Portfolio, BRK, Greenergy, NTS, TerraForm Power, and
TerraForm Global which were acquired during 2017, and whose total assets, net assets, revenues and net income on a combined
basis constitute approximately 13%, 11%, 37% and 12%, respectively, of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Brookfield’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, has been audited by Deloitte LLP, the Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm, who also audited Brookfield’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017. As stated in the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte LLP expressed an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Brookfield’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017.

T2 Ol

J. Bruce Flatt Brian D. Lawson
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

March 29, 2018

Toronto, Canada
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Brookfield Asset Management Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB) and Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2017, of the Company and our report dated March 29, 2018 expressed an unmodified/unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment
the internal control over financial reporting at Manufactured Housing, Houston Center, Mumbai Office Portfolio, BRK, Greenergy,
NTS, TerraForm Power and TerraForm Global, which were acquired during 2017 and whose total assets, net assets, revenues and
net income on a combined basis constitute approximately 13%, 11%, 37% and 12%, respectively, of the consolidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control
over financial reporting at Manufactured Housing, Houston Center, Mumbai Office Portfolio, BRK, Greenergy, NTS, TerraForm
Power and TerraForm Global.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ Deloitte LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, Canada
March 29, 2018
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and other financial information in this Annual Report have been prepared
by the company’s management which is responsible for their integrity, consistency, objectivity and reliability. To fulfill this
responsibility, the company maintains policies, procedures and systems of internal control to ensure that its reporting practices
and accounting and administrative procedures are appropriate to provide a high degree of assurance that is relevant and reliable
financial information is produced and assets are safeguarded. These controls include the careful selection and training of employees,
the establishment of well-defined areas of responsibility and accountability for performance, and the communication of policies
and code of conduct throughout the company. In addition, the company maintains an internal audit group that conducts periodic
audits of the company’s operations. The Chief Internal Auditor has full access to the Audit Committee.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and, where appropriate, reflect estimates based on management’s judgment.
The financial information presented throughout this Annual Report is generally consistent with the information contained in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Deloitte LLP, the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm appointed by the shareholders, have audited the consolidated
financial statements set out on pages 115 through 192 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) to enable them to express to the board of directors
and shareholders their opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Their report is set out on the following page.

The consolidated financial statements have been further reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors acting through its Audit
Committee, which is comprised of directors who are neither officers nor employees of the company. The Audit Committee, which
meets with the auditors and management to review the activities of each and reports to the Board of Directors, oversees
management’s responsibilities for the financial reporting and internal control systems. The auditors have full and direct access to
the Audit Committee and meet periodically with the committee both with and without management present to discuss their audit
and related findings.

T2 Ol

J. Bruce Flatt Brian D. Lawson
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

March 29, 2018

Toronto, Canada
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Brookfield Asset Management Inc.
Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the consolidated
statements of operations, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company as of December
31,2017 and December 31, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 29, 2018, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. Those standards also require that we comply with ethical requirements. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S.
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
Further, we are required to be independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Canada and to fulfill our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
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An audit includes performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies and principles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for
our audit opinion.

/s/ Deloitte LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

March 29, 2018
Toronto, Canada

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1971.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

f‘&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ ! Note 2017 2016
Assets
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS............ccocuiiiiiiiiicicicieee ettt 6 $ 5139 $ 4,299
Other fINANCIAL ASSELS .........ooviieiiiieceie ettt ettt et e e e et e eae e et e et e eteeeteeeseeaeeaeeneeanes 6 4,800 4,700
Accounts receivable and Other .............ccoioiiiiiiiiceeeee et 7 11,973 9,133
Inventory 8 6,311 5,349
Assets classified as held fOr SAle..............ocviviiiiiiiiiieceeceeeeeeeeeee e 9 1,605 432
Equity accounted iNVESIMENTS..............ccceviuiieriireeieriiereiteeetee et ese e eve s b s s esenas 10 31,994 24,977
INVESTMENT PIOPEITICS......ecveevierieniiritietieteeteeie ettt et et e st e e teeteeteesaesse s e ssestesseereeseeseessensensesenas 11 56,870 54,172
Property, plant and €qUIPMENt .............ccocieieiiiiieireereceecee ettt e e e ere e 12 53,005 45,346
INTANGIDIC ASSELS ....vcvvvieieiiiieietiictect ettt ettt ettt et bete b ss et e s seebessese s eneebesnenesenis 13 14,242 6,073
Goodwill 14 5,317 3,783
Deferred income tax assets 15 1,464 1,562
TOEAL ASSCES ...ttt ettt et e et e et eeaee st e eaeeeaeeeaeeeeeaeeaeeaeanns $ 192,720 $ 159,826
Liabilities and Equity
Accounts payable and Other ..............ccocivviiriiiiiieceeeeeeee et 16 $ 17,965 $ 11,915
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale ...............cccoeeeviiiviieiciiecienn, 9 1,424 127
COTPOTate DOITOWINGS ......cvvevvireeeririeriereeteeteeteeteteeteeteeteereeseessessesseeseeseeseeseeseeseessessensesensennas 17 5,659 4,500
Non-recourse borrowings

Property-specific DOTTOWINGS ........ccceiieiiiiiiiecteeteeteete ettt re et sa e aenas 18 63,721 52,442

SUbSIAIATY DOITOWINGS.........cviivievieiieteeteeieeteeteeteete et ere ettt eeeee st eseereeseeseeae s eseseesesseereens 18 9,009 7,949
Deferred income tax liabilities 15 11,409 9,640
Subsidiary equity ODIIGAtIONS...........cecuieuierierieieieiteiteet ettt ettt et e s e teeteereereessessessessesaeas 19 3,661 3,565
Equity

Preferred €qUILY .....ooieiiieieciecieeeeee ettt ettt ere et be s 21 4,192 3,954

INON-CONLIOLIING TNTETESES ......c.vivitietieteeeeeeeeeeteete et ettt ere et e e s et teeteeteeseetsessenseseeseereens 21 51,628 43,235

Common equity w21 24,052 22,499

TOtAL EQUILY ...evievieeietieieteet ettt ettt ettt ettt et et te ettt st e st e b e b e b e beebeeteersessessessesseaeaens 79,872 69,688
Total Liabilities and EQUIty................ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 192,720 $ 159,826
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THEXEARSENDED DEC 0L ounrs Note 2017 2016
REVEIUECS .....oooiiiiiii ettt e ettt e et e e s et e e e s e eaaaeesseaaaeesssnnes 22 $ 40,786 $ 24,411
DIHTECE COSES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt b et e bttt e st e 23 (32,388) (17,718)
Other INCOME aNd GAINS..........c.ocvevieieeieriieriieetereeete ettt seebe s seesessenas 1,180 482
Equity accounted INCOME...........cueieviiiiiirieiieieeteeteet ettt ettt eaeeas s ensenns 10 1,213 1,293
Expenses

TIEETESE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et et e et e ra et e eteeeneens (3,608) (3,233)

COTPOTALE COSES .....viviiuiiuieaieiietieteeteeteeteeteestestessesesseeseeseeseeseeseessessessessesessesseessessessessensensens 95) (92)
Fair value ChangES..........cooviiuiieieieieiecececte ettt ettt ettt et et ensens s eeeans 24 421 (130)
Depreciation and amortization... (2,345) (2,020)
TNCOMIE tAXES ...ttt et e et e e et e b e e e ete e e eteeeeveeearaeeneas 15 (613) 345
INELANICOIMIE ...ttt ettt et e e eaeeae et et et eeseeaeeaesreenseneennenennans $ 4,551 $ 3,338
Net income attributable to:

SRATEROLACTS ... ettt et e e e e et e et eeae e et e eaeeeaeeeaeeeneens $ 1462 §$ 1,651

INON-CONLIOIIING INTETESS ........veviriritiereete ettt et et v ere et et es e teeseereensensersensensenns 3,089 1,687

$ 4,551 $ 3,338

Net income per share:

DHIULEA ...ttt 21 $ 134 § 1.55

BASIC ..ottt sttt a e e 21 1.37 1.58
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

E\(A)Ili B»(I)EN‘gl)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 Note 2017 2016
INEE ITICOIIIE <.ttt ettt et e ee e e e e et eae et et e s e s et eeaeseeeaeeaeeue et et e et eeneeneesensenaenne $ 4,551 $ 3,338

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Items that may be reclassified to net income

Financial contracts and power sale agreements ..............cc.ecvevveruerrerreereereereeeeeeeeessesseesenes 278 (113)
Available-for-8ale SECUITLIES ........c.e.iririeueiiiieieirete et es 95 649
Equity accounted INVEStMENTS ............ccvcuirieieiiierieiereereeereetee et eres e ssess v ssessesesens 10 6 (52)
Foreign currency translation...............ccceeveieiiiiiiciieiieiieieeeee ettt vt 439 1,236
TNCOME tAXES.....uviiuiieeiiceie ettt ettt ettt e e te e teebeebeenseeabeeasesaneersaensesreas 15 11 (60)
829 1,660
Items that will not be reclassified to net income
Revaluations of property, plant and equIPMENt.............c.cceevvevvevreveereeriereeeeeeeeeeereereerene 934 824
Revaluation of pension ObligatioNS .............ccecivieririeiiriierieieeeteeeeee et 16 4 (40)
Equity accounted INVESIMENES .............ccecveiiriiiiiirictieteeee ettt eve v se s s s eae e 10 509 482
TNCOME tAXES......viieiieeiiciie ettt ettt ettt ettt e te e teebeebeeabeeaseeasesaneeraeeaneneeas 15 314 (113)
1,761 1,153
Other cOMPrehenSiVe INCOME. .........ccvicvieiicrieiieeieieieeteete ettt et et e et e e saeereereeseessessesensenas 2,590 2,813
COomMPIENENSIVE INCOME...........ccveviririerieteeteeteee et ettt et ereeae s eereeseereeseereeseeseessenseesenseenas $ 7,141 $ 6,151
Attributable to:
Shareholders
INEEICOIMIE ...ttt ettt et ettt et e aeeae e e et et enseeseeseeaeeaeens $ 1,462 $ 1,651
Other cOMPrehensive INCOME ...........c.ccveviieririeieriiereeteee ettt er e ee s b saenas 849 821
COMPIENENSIVE INCOME .........ceeviiirieteeietieieeeeteee ettt ettt ettt et ev e as v ae v s eaeeaens $ 2311 $ 2,472

Non-controlling interests
INEE ITICOIIIE ...t ettt et et eeeeeaeeeeeaeeae et et et e e eeseeseese et eeeeneeneesessenaenee $ 3,089 $ 1,687
Other comprehensive income 1,741 1,992
COmPIENENSIVE INCOMME ......c.veveiirieeiieeeeiieiieieiete et teeteete et essessessessessassesseeseessessensensens $ 4830 $ 3,679
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED Common Non-
DEC. 31,2017 Share  Contributed Retained Ownership  Revaluation Currency Other Common Preferred controlling Total
(MILLIONS) Capital Surplus Earnings Changes' Surplus Translation Reserves® Equity Equity Interests Equity

Balance as at
December 31,2016..... $ 4390 $ 234§ 11490 $ 1,199 § 6,750  $ (1,256) $ (308) $§ 22499 § 3954 $ 43235 $ 69,688

Changes in year:

Netincome................... — 1,462 — — — — 1,462 — 3,089 4,551
Other comprehensive
INCOME.....veiniiiinae — — — 237 280 332 849 — 1,741 2,590
Comprehensive income — 1,462 — 237 280 332 2,311 — 4,830 7,141
Shareholder
distributions
Common equity........ — (642) — — — — (642) — — (642)
Preferred equity........ — (145) — — — — (145) — — (145)
Non-controlling
INtEerests ......oovvenen.. — — — — — — — — (4,907) (4,907)
Other items
Equity issuances, net
of redemptions ......... 38 (23) (118) — — — — (103) 238 7,193 7,328
Share-based
compensation . — 52 @31) — — — — 21 — 4 25
Ownership changes .. — (152) 260 (106) 98 11 111 — 1,273 1,384
Total change in year..... 38 29 374 260 131 378 343 1,553 238 8,393 10,184
Balance as at
December 31,2017...... $ 4428 $ 263 $ 11,864 $ 1,459 §$ 6,881 $ 878) $ 35§ 24052 $ 4,192 $ 51,628 $ 79,872

1. Includes gains or losses on changes in ownership interests of consolidated subsidiaries
2. Includes available-for-sale securities, cash flow hedges, actuarial changes on pension plans and equity accounted other comprehensive income, net of associated
income taxes

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED Common Non-
DEC. 31,2016 Share  Contributed Retained Ownership ~ Revaluation Currency Other Common Preferred controlling Total
(MILLIONS) Capital Surplus Earnings Changes' Surplus Translation Reserves’ Equity Equity Interests Equity
,‘?;;L‘;";g:: ;‘{ 2015.... $ 4378 8 192§ 11,045 $ 1,500 S 6787 $  (1,79) 8 (538) $ 21,568 $ 3,739 $ 31,920 § 57,227
Changes in year:
Net income. — 1,651 — — — — 1,651 — 1,687 3,338
Other comprehensive — — — 157 405 259 821 — 1,992 2,813
Comprehensive income — 1,651 — 157 405 259 2,472 — 3,679 6,151
Shareholder
distributions
Common equity....... — (997) — — 54 2 (941) — 441 (500
Preferred equity......... — (133) — — — — (133) - — (133)
ittt .. - - - - - - — — e e
Other items
f?fgéycr‘ﬁ;‘t‘fg};es net 12 an (125) — — — — (124) 215 7,649 7,740
compensaton....... - 53 @s) - - - - e - 7 35
Ownership changes .. — 74 (301) (194) 81 31) 371) — 1,702 1,331
Total change in year..... 12 42 445 301) 37) 540 230 931 215 11,315 12,461
B’;Lae‘:;f,:rsf{ 2016, S 4390 § 234 S 1149 $  LI9 S 6750 $ (1256 S (308) $ 22499 § 3954 § 43235 S 69,688

1. Includes gains or losses on changes in ownership interests of consolidated subsidiaries

2. Includes available-for-sale securities, cash flow hedges, actuarial changes on pension plans and equity accounted other comprehensive income, net of associated
income taxes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS)

Operating activities
INEEINCOMIE .ottt b bbbt b e

Other income and gains

Share of undistributed equity accounted earnings

Fair value changes

Depreciation and amMOTtIZALION ..........ccueerieuirieirieirieintctrtet ettt ettt ettt sttt ettt sae e b e s eenes
Deferred INCOME tAXES ....oviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiietc bbb
Investments in residential INVENTOTY ......ccceoveiriiirieiriiiieiree ettt

Net change in non-cash working capital balances ............ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e

Financing activities
Corporate borrowings arranged ..........ccoccoiiieiiiriiiiiiiiiii
Corporate DOITOWINES TEPAIA .....euveviieuirieiirieiirieirtet ettt ettt sttt sttt ettt s e sneneas
Commercial paper and bank DOITOWINGS, NEL ......c..ccivieiriiiriiirieieieieeeer ettt
Non-recourse borrowings arranged ..........cocceeuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec e
Non-recourse bOrroWIngs rePAIA ........cceveuerueirieirieiiieieieetet ettt ettt ettt ettt ebe e esessesesae e saenenne

Non-recourse credit facilities, net

Subsidiary equity obligations issued ...

Subsidiary equity obligations redeemed ...........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Capital provided from non-controlling iNtEIESS ..........ccevueerueirieriririeienieereienteertet ettt
Capital repaid to non-controlling INtEIESS ........ccceiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic s
Preferred SqUILY ISSUANCE ..c.ovviiiiiiiiiieieieteeete ettt ettt sttt sttt

Preferred equity redemption

Common shares issued ......

Common shares repurchased ...
Distributions to non-controlling INtErEStS ..........ccocviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciie s

Distributions to ShAreholdErS .......c..o.eoiiiriiiriiirieiier ettt

Investing activities

Acquisitions
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Equity accounted investments
Financial assets and Other ..o
ACQUISIHION Of SUDSIAIATIES  ...veuvviieiiieiiiciirictrc ettt

Dispositions
Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment ..

Equity accounted investments
Financial assets and Other ..o
DiSpoSition Of SUDSIAIATIES ......euveveieriieiiieiirieiinieert ettt ettt ettt sttt s e

Restricted cash and dEPOSIS .....co.eerueiriiiiiiieiiieeee ettt

Cash and cash equivalents

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Net change in cash classified within assets held for sale ...,
Foreign exchange revaluation ..o
Balance, beginning of Year .........ccociiiiiiiiiiii s

Balance, end OF YEAT .....c.oouiiiiiiriiiicie ettt ettt

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Income taxes paid ...

Interest paid
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Note 2017 2016
4551 $ 3,338
(1,180) (482)

(481) (618)
24 @21) 130
2,345 2,020
15 327 (558)
19 (243)
(1,155) (504)
4,005 3,083
1,284 869
(434) (232)
103 (171)
26,251 23,826
(21,636) (20,373)
819 (1,690)
419 9
(347) (177)
9,488 10,554
(2,295) (2,905)
241 219
@] (6)
15 14
(124) (148)
(4,907) (2,163)
(685) (633)
8,185 6,993
(2,114) (1,969)
(1,690) (1,472)
(2,718) (1,237)
(4,623) (3,747)
(10,336) (9,442)
2,906 4,014
66 65
889 1,050
2,843 3,955
2,834 360
549 (134)
(11,394) (8,557)
796 1,519
(20) —
64 6
4,299 2,774
5139 3 4,299
402§ 371
3,374 3,062



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (the “corporation”) is a global alternative asset management company. References in these
financial statements to “Brookfield,” “us,” “we,” “our” or “the company” refer to the corporation and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries and consolidated entities. The company owns and operates assets with a focus on real estate, renewable power,
infrastructure and private equity. The corporation is listed on the New York, Toronto and Euronext stock exchanges under the
symbols BAM, BAM.A and BAMA, respectively. The corporation was formed by articles of amalgamation under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) and is registered in Ontario, Canada. The registered office of the corporation is Brookfield Place,

181 Bay Street, Suite 300, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2T3.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

These financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of the company on March 29, 2018.
b) Adoption of Accounting Standards

The company has applied new and revised standards issued by the IASB that are effective for the period beginning on or after
January 1, 2017 as follows:

i. Income Tax

The amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes clarify the following aspects: (i) unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair
value in the financial statements and measured at cost for tax purposes give rise to a deductible temporary difference regardless
of whether the debt instrument’s holder expects to recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use; (ii) the
carrying amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of probable future taxable profits; (iii) estimates for future taxable profits
exclude tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deductible temporary differences; and (iv) an entity assesses a deferred tax
asset in combination with other deferred tax assets. The company adopted the amendments on January 1, 2017, on a prospective
basis; the adoption did not have a significant impact on the company’s consolidated financial statements.

ii. Statement of Cash Flows

In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (“IAS 77), effective for annual periods beginning
January 1, 2017. The IASB requires that the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are disclosed (to the
extent necessary): (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes. Since the
amendments were issued less than one year before the effective date, the company was required to provide comparative information
when it first applies the amendments. The company has determined that there are no material impacts on its consolidated financial
statements as the existing disclosures already include the material information required by the amendments.

¢) Future Changes in Accounting Standards

i. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) specifies how and when revenue should be recognized as well as
requiring more informative and relevant disclosures. The standard also requires additional disclosures about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts. The standard supersedes IAS 18, Revenue,
IAS 11, Construction Contracts and a number of revenue-related interpretations. IFRS 15 applies to nearly all contracts with
customers: the main exceptions are leases, financial instruments and insurance contracts. IFRS 15 must be applied for periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early application permitted. An entity may adopt the standard on a fully retrospective
basis or on a modified retrospective basis.

Management assessed the company’s revenue streams and has substantially completed accumulating, identifying and inventorying
detailed information on contracts that may be impacted by the changes at the transition date. Management has also nearly finalized
the documented analysis and assessment of the potential impact to IT systems and internal controls. The key areas of focus within
the context of the standard relate primarily to the identification of performance obligations and the evaluation of the appropriate
period of recognition of revenue for each of these performance obligations.
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IFRS 15 requires a higher threshold of probability to be achieved with regards to recognizing revenue arising from variable
consideration and claims and variations resulting from contract modifications compared to the current standards. It will therefore
give rise to a delay in the recognition of revenue, particularly in our construction services business, which often comes with
recognition uncertainty depending on the progress of our construction projects and gives rise to contract modifications that require
customers’ approvals before revenue can be recognized. While revenue is currently recognized when it is probable that work
performed will result in revenue, under the new standard revenue will be recognized when it is highly probable that a significant
reversal of revenue will not occur as a result of these items. Significant judgments and estimates have been used to determine the
impact, including the assessment of the probability of customer approval of variations and acceptance of claims and estimation
of project completion dates. Despite this variability, a contract’s cash flows and overall profitability at completion will be the same
under the new method as under the current method.

We will adopt the new revenue guidance effective January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective approach, by recognizing the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of consolidated retained earnings
asif'the standard had always been in effect — comparative periods will not be restated. We expect a reduction in opening consolidated
retained earnings of approximately $250 million, net of taxes.

ii. Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final publication of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), superseding IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. IFRS 9 establishes principles for the financial reporting of financial assets and financial liabilities that will present
relevant and useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an
entity’s future cash flows. This new standard also includes a new general hedge accounting standard which will align hedge
accounting more closely with risk management. It does not fully change the types of hedging relationships or the requirement to
measure and recognize ineffectiveness; however, it will allow more hedging strategies that are used for risk management purposes
to qualify for hedge accounting and introduce more judgment to assess the effectiveness of a hedging relationship. The standard
has a mandatory effective date for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted.

A global team has evaluated the impact of adopting IFRS 9 on its consolidated financial statements and business processes.
Management participated in a number of strategic planning and analysis sessions with its subsidiaries and associates in order to
evaluate the impact of the standard primarily focusing on the appropriateness of financial asset classification and the consideration
of'the financial asset impairment requirements under the Standard. Changes resulting from the standard relating to hedge accounting
have been evaluated centrally and we have determined that certain hedge accounting relationships relating to aggregated foreign
currency exposures will qualify for hedge accounting and, consequently, management is in the process of finalizing the hedge
documentation for these relationships with the view to apply hedge accounting to these relationships prospectively commencing
on January 1, 2018.

The company is finalizing the documented analysis and assessment of potential impacts to IT systems and internal controls. We
will adopt IFRS 9 effective January 1, 2018, by recognizing the cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard as an
increase to the opening balance of retained earnings as if the standard had always been in effect and whereby comparative periods
will not be restated. No material adjustments are expected, and we expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have an immaterial
impact to our net income on an ongoing basis.

iii. Leases

In January 2016, the IASB published a new standard — IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16”). The new standard brings most leases on
balance sheet, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely
unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier adoption permitted if IFRS 15 has
also been applied. The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements.

iv. Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (“IFRIC 22”) clarifies that the date of foreign currency
transactions for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part thereof) is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and
may be applied either retrospectively or prospectively. The company plans to adopt the standard using the prospective approach,
and does not expect a material impact.
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v. Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

In June 2017, the IASB published IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (“IFRIC 23”), effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2019. The interpretation requires an entity to assess whether it is probable that a tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings and to exercise judgment
in determining whether each tax treatment should be considered independently or whether some tax treatments should be considered
together. The decision should be based on which approach provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty. An
entity also has to consider whether it is probable that the relevant authority will accept each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments,
assuming that the taxation authority with the right to examine any amounts reported to it will examine those amounts and will
have full knowledge of all relevant information when doing so. The interpretation may be applied on either a fully retrospective
basis or a modified retrospective basis without restatement of comparative information. The company is currently evaluating the
impact of IFRIC 23 on its consolidated financial statements.

d) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
i. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its subsidiaries, which are the entities over which
the company exercises control. Control exists when the company has the power to direct the relevant activities, exposure or rights
to variable returns from involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
its returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control is obtained and continue to be consolidated until the date when
control is lost. The company continually reassesses whether or not it controls an investee, particularly if facts and circumstances
indicate there is a change to one or more of the control criteria previously mentioned. In certain circumstances when the company
has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the company’s voting rights are sufficient to give it power.

Non-controlling interests in the equity of the company’s subsidiaries are included within equity on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. All intercompany balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses are eliminated in full.

Certain of the company’s subsidiaries are subject to profit sharing arrangements, such as carried interest, between the company
and the non-controlling equity holders, whereby the company is entitled to a participation in profits, as determined under the
agreements. The attribution of net income amongst equity holders in these subsidiaries reflects the impact of these profit sharing
arrangements when the attribution of profits as determined in the agreement is no longer subject to adjustment based on future
events and correspondingly reduces non-controlling interests’ attributable share of those profits.

Gains or losses resulting from changes in the company’s ownership interest of a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions and are recorded within ownership changes as a component of equity. When we dispose
of all or part of a subsidiary, the difference between the carrying value of what is sold and the proceeds from disposition is
recognized within other income and gains in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of control of a subsidiary are expensed immediately within fair value
changes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Refer to Note 4 for additional information on subsidiaries of the company with significant non-controlling interests.
ii. Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates are entities over which the company exercises significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but without control or joint control over those policies. Joint ventures
are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have the rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The company accounts for associates and
joint ventures using the equity method of accounting within equity accounted investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Interests in associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method are initially recognized at cost. At the time of
initial recognition, if the cost of the associate or joint venture is lower than the proportionate share of the investment’s underlying
fair value, the company records a gain on the difference between the cost and the underlying fair value of the investment in net
income. If the cost of the associate or joint venture is greater than the company’s proportionate share of the underlying fair value,
goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the carrying value of the company’s interest in an associate or joint venture is adjusted for the company’s share of
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comprehensive income and distributions of the investee. Profit and losses resulting from transactions with an associate or joint
venture are recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on the interests of unrelated investors in the investee. The
carrying value of associates or joint ventures is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. Impairment losses on equity
accounted investments may be subsequently reversed in net income. Further information on the impairment of long-lived assets
is available in Note 2(j).

iii. Joint Operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, related to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of parties sharing control.
The company recognizes only its assets, liabilities and share of the results of operations of the joint operation. The assets, liabilities
and results of joint operations are included within the respective line items of the Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

e) Foreign Currency Translation

The U.S. dollar is the functional and presentation currency of the company. Each of the company’s subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures and joint operations determines its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each subsidiary, associate, joint venture and joint operation are measured using that functional currency.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations having a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and revenues and expenses at average rates during the period. Gains or losses on translation
are accumulated as a component of equity. On the disposal of a foreign operation, or the loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, the component of accumulated other comprehensive income relating to that foreign operation is reclassified to net
income. Gains or losses on foreign currency denominated balances and transactions that are designated as hedges of net investments
in these operations are reported in the same manner.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities of the company are translated using the rate of exchange prevailing
atthe reporting date and non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Revenues and expenses are measured at average rates during the period. Gains or
losses on translation of these items are included in net income. Gains or losses on transactions which hedge these items are also
included in net income. Foreign currency denominated non-monetary assets and liabilities, measured at historic cost, are translated
at the rate of exchange at the transaction date.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

g) Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of operations, the company enters into various transactions on market terms with related parties. The majority
of transactions with related parties are between consolidated entities and eliminate on consolidation. We consider key management
personnel, the Board of Directors and material shareholders to be related parties. See additional details in Note 28. The company’s
subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests are described in Note 4 and its associates and joint ventures are described
in Note 10.

h) Operating Assets
i. Investment Properties

The company uses the fair value method to account for real estate classified as an investment property. A property is determined
to be an investment property when it is principally held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment
properties also include properties that are under development or redevelopment for future use as investment property.
Investment property is initially measured at cost including transaction costs, or at fair values if acquired in a business combination.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
are included in net income during the period in which they arise.

Fair values are completed by undertaking one of two accepted income approach methods, which include either: (i) discounting
the expected future cash flows, generally over a term of 10 years including a terminal value based on the application of a
capitalization rate to estimated year 11 cash flows; or (ii) undertaking a direct capitalization approach whereby a capitalization
rate is applied to estimated current year cash flows. The future cash flows of each property are based upon, among other things,
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rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future leases reflecting current conditions, less future
cash outflows relating to such current and future leases.

Commercial developments are also measured using a discounted cash flow model, net of costs to complete, as of the balance sheet
date. Development sites in the planning phases are measured using comparable market values for similar assets.

ii. Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The company uses the revaluation method of accounting for certain classes of property, plant and equipment as well as certain
assets which are under development for future use as property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment measured
using the revaluation method is initially measured at cost, or at fair values if acquired in a business combination, and subsequently
carried at its revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed on an annual basis at the end of each fiscal year, commencing
in the first year subsequent to the date of acquisition, unless there is an indication that assets are impaired. Where the carrying
amount of an asset increases as a result of a revaluation, the increase is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity in revaluation surplus, unless the increase reverses a previously recognized impairment recorded through net income, in
which case that portion of the increase is recognized in net income.

Where the carrying amount of an asset decreases, the decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of any
balance existing in revaluation surplus in respect of the asset, with the remainder of the decrease recognized in net income.
Depreciation of an asset commences when it is available for use. On loss of control or partial disposition of an asset measured
using the revaluation method, all accumulated revaluation surplus or the portion disposed of, respectively, is transferred into
retained earnings or ownership changes, respectively.

iii. Renewable Power Generation

Renewable power generating assets, including assets under development, are classified as property, plant and equipment and are
accounted for using the revaluation method. The company determines the fair value of its renewable power generating assets using
discounted cash flow analysis, which includes estimates of forecasted revenue, operating costs, maintenance and other capital
expenditures. Discount rates are selected for each facility giving consideration to the expected proportion of contracted to
uncontracted revenue and markets into which power is sold.

Generally, the first 20 years of cash flow are discounted with a residual value based on the terminal value cash flows. The fair
value and estimated remaining service lives are reassessed on an annual basis.

Depreciation on renewable power generating assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated service lives of the
assets, which are as follows:

(YEARS) Useful Lives
DIAIMIS ...ttt ettt e be b e et e e b et e etbeatteeaeeeteebeebeebeanbeerbeeateetbeeasearaeeaeereereens Upto 115
PRISEOCKS ...ttt h bttt h et h ettt b e ettt be s Up to 60
POWETIOUSES ...ttt bbbt b ettt s et b et e st e e bt b e a e e b et e st s e eme et et en e et e e e bt saeneebeneeneenenis Upto 115
Hydroelectric SENETrating UNILS...........c.cecieuieieieiierreeteereereereeteereeseesesessesteeseeseeseessessessesseeseeseeseesseseessessensensesensensas Upto 115
WiINd ENETATING UNILS.......c.ecviviitiietiiteeeetietetesteee et ete st ete sttt ete s etesseseesesaesesseseesessesesseseesessesesseseesasseseesesseseseseasaneas Up to 30
SOlAr GENETALING UNILS .....c.viiiiietietietieieeeeiieiet et et e st e steeteeteeteestessessessessasseeseeseessessessessessessesesseeseeseessessassassansasassaes Up to 30
OtNCT @SSELS .....vivivietietietiett et et et et et et e eteete et et et et et e e teeaeeteessessesseaseaseseeseeseeseeseessessensensenseseeseeseessersersensensensesereas Up to 60

Cost is allocated to the significant components of power generating assets and each component is depreciated separately.

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment in our Brazilian renewable power operations is based on the duration of
the authorization or the useful life of a concession. The weighted-average remaining duration at December 31, 2017 is 15 years
(2016 — 15 years). Land rights are included as part of the concession or authorization and are subject to depreciation.

iv. Sustainable Resources

Sustainable resources consist of standing timber and other agricultural assets and are measured at fair value after deducting the
estimated selling costs and are recorded in accounts receivable and other on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Estimated selling
costs include commissions, levies, delivery costs, transfer taxes and duties. The fair value of standing timber is calculated using
the present value of anticipated future cash flows for standing timber before tax and terminal dates of 30 years. Fair value is
determined based on felling plans, assessments regarding growth, timber prices and felling and silviculture costs. Changes in fair
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value are recorded in net income in the period of change. The company determines fair value of its standing timber using external
valuations on an annual basis.

Harvested timber is included in inventory and is measured at the lower of fair value less estimated costs to sell at the time of
harvest and net realizable value.

Land used in the production of standing timber, as well as bridges, roads and other equipment used in sustainable resources
production are accounted for using the revaluation method and included in property, plant and equipment. Bridges, roads and
equipment are depreciated over their useful lives, generally 3 to 30 years.

v. Infrastructure

Utilities, transport, communication and energy assets within our infrastructure operations as well as assets under development
classified as property, plant and equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are accounted for using the revaluation method.
The company determines the fair value of its utilities, transport, communication and energy assets using discounted cash flow
analysis, which includes estimates of forecasted revenue, operating costs, maintenance and other capital expenditures. Valuations
are performed internally on an annual basis. Discount rates are selected for each asset, giving consideration to the volatility and
geography of its revenue streams.

Depreciation on utilities, transport, communication and energy assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
service lives of the components of the assets, which are as follows:

(YEARS) Useful Lives
BUIIAINES ...ttt ettt et et et et e s te e te et e ese e st e s b e s b e s b e b e b e ebe e st e st et b ess e s b et e beereeseeteeseeseensensensansentn Up to 70
Leasehold IMPIOVEIMENLS........cc.ccviiuiitietieiieiieeieiet et et e ete ettt ete et et et esesbeeseeseeseessessessessasesseeseesseseeseessensensensensensas Up to 50
District energy systems and gas STOTAZE ASSELS.........cecvevrrerierirrereireiererseeesesteressetesessesessessesessessssessesessessssessesesseses Up to 50
Machinery, equipment, transSmission Stations and TOWETS .........c.ccververuerrerrieieiereeeeressessessessessessessessesseessessessessenses Up to 40
INEEWOTK SYSTEIIIS ...c.eutititietieiteit ettt ettt ettt ettt et b e bbbt ea e st e st et et e st e s bt sb e e bt ebtes e e st em b et eabeebeebeebeestentennenbentenee Up to 60
Rail and transSpOIt ASSELS ...........ooviiiiiiiiiii e Up to 40

The fair value and the estimated remaining service lives are reassessed annually.

Public service concessions that provide the right to charge users for a service in which the service and fee is regulated by the
grantor are accounted for as intangible assets.

vi. Real Estate — Hospitality Assets

Hospitality operating assets within our real estate operations are classified as property, plant and equipment and are accounted for
using the revaluation method. The company determines the fair value for these assets by using a depreciated replacement cost
method based on the age, physical condition and the construction costs of the assets. Fair value of hospitality properties are also
reviewed in reference to each hospitality asset’s enterprise value which is determined using a discounted cash flow model.

Depreciation on hotel assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the components of the assets,
which range from 5 to 50 years for buildings and building improvements, 13 to 15 years for land improvements and 2 to 15 years
for other equipment.

vii. Private Equity

The company accounts for its private equity property, plant and equipment using the cost model. Costs include expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Depreciation of an asset commences when it is available for use. PP&E is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of the asset as follows:

(YEARS) Useful Lives
BUILAINES .....cveeeieieiect ettt ettt ettt et et et et e st e ebeebeeseeseeseessessas s e baeseebeessessessessessessesbebebeeaeeseeseeneensentan Up to 50
Leasehold IMPIOVEIMENLS...........ccvivuieiieiietietiete et ettt eeteeteereeteeteeteete st easeseseeseeseeseessessessessensesseesesseeseeseeseessensensensas Up to 40
Machinery and EQUIPINENL ...........ccocirieuirieiitiietiteteeteee et eee et eeete s eseesesseteeseseesesseseesessesessesesseseesesseseesessesessesessesseses Up to 20
Oil and gas related SQUIPIMENT ...........cciiuiiiieiieiieiieieterteet et e e e ete et et eae s et e s beebeeseeseessessessessessassessessaessessessessensans Upto 10
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viii. Other Property, Plant and Equipment

The company accounts for its other property, plant and equipment using the revaluation method or the cost model, depending on
the nature of the asset and the operating segment.

Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment measured using the revaluation method is initially measured at cost and
subsequently carried at its revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Under the cost method, assets are initially recorded at cost and are
subsequently depreciated over the assets’ useful lives, unless an impairment is identified requiring a write-down to estimated
fair value.

Oil and natural gas pre-licensing costs incurred before the legal right to explore a specific area have been obtained are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Once the legal right to explore has been acquired and development and exploration costs
commence, attributable costs are capitalized. The net carrying value of oil and gas properties is depleted using the production
method based on estimated proved plus probable oil and natural gas reserves.

ix. Inventory
Private Equity

Fuel inventories within our Private Equity segment are traded in active markets and are purchased with the view to resell in the
near future, generating a profit from fluctuations in prices or margins. As a result, fuel inventories are carried at market value by
reference to prices in a quoted active market, in accordance with the commodity broker-trader exemption granted by IAS 2,
Inventories. Changes in fair value less costs to sell are recognized in direct costs. Fuel products that are held for extended periods
in order to benefit from future anticipated increases in fuel prices or located in territories where no active market exists are
recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Products and chemicals used in the production of biofuels are valued at
the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Real Estate

Residential development lots, homes and residential condominium projects are recorded in inventory. Residential development
lots are recorded at the lower of cost, which includes pre-development expenditures and capitalized borrowing costs, and net
realizable value, which the company determines as the estimated selling price of the inventory in the ordinary course of business
in its completed state, less estimated expenses, including holding costs, costs to complete and costs to sell.

Homes and other properties held for sale, which include properties subject to sale agreements, are recorded at the lower of cost
and net realizable value in inventory. Costs are allocated to the saleable acreage of each project or subdivision in proportion to
the anticipated revenue.

Residential Development

Inventories consist of land held for development, land under development, homes under construction, completed homes and model
homes. In addition to direct land acquisitions, land development and improvement costs and home construction costs, costs also
include interest, real estate taxes and direct overhead related to development and construction, which are capitalized to inventory
during the period beginning with the commencement of development and ending with the completion of construction or
development. Indirect costs are allocated to homes or lots based on the number of units in a community.

Land and housing assets are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value, which the company determines as the estimated
selling price of the inventory in the ordinary course of business in its completed state, less estimated expenses, including holding
costs, costs to complete and costs to sell.
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X. Other Financial Assets

Other financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss, available for sale or at amortized cost depending on their
nature and use within the company’s business. Changes in the fair values of financial instruments classified as fair value through
profit or loss and available for sale are recognized in net income and other comprehensive income, respectively. The cumulative
changes in the fair values of available-for-sale securities previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income are
reclassified to net income when the security is sold, when there is a significant or prolonged decline in fair value or when the
company acquires a controlling or significant interest in the underlying investment and commences equity accounting or
consolidating the investment. Other financial assets are recognized on their trade date and initially recorded at fair value with
changes in fair value recorded in net income or other comprehensive income in accordance with their classification. Fair values
of financial instruments are determined by reference to quoted bid or ask prices, as appropriate. Where bid and ask prices are
unavailable, the closing price of the most recent transaction of that instrument is used.

The company assesses the carrying value of available-for-sale securities for impairment when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. When objective evidence of impairment exists, the cumulative loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to net income.

Other financial assets also include loans and notes receivable which are recorded initially at fair value and, with the exception of
loans and notes receivable designated as fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any applicable provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Loans and receivables designated as fair value through profit or loss are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded
in net income in the period in which they arise.

i) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

Fair value measurement is disaggregated into three hierarchical levels: Level 1, 2 or 3. Fair value hierarchical levels are directly
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurement are observable. The levels are as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability
through correlation with market data at the measurement date and for the duration of the asset or liability’s anticipated
life.

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable and reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and
the risk inherent in the inputs in determining the estimate.

Referto the investment properties and revaluation of property, plant and equipment explanations for the approach taken to determine
the fair value of these operating assets.

Further information on fair value measurements is available in Notes 6, 7, 11 and 12.
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j) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

At each balance sheet date or more often if events or circumstances indicate there may be impairment, the company assesses
whether its assets, other than those measured at fair value with changes in value recorded in net income, have any indication of
impairment. An impairment is recognized if the recoverable amount, determined as the higher of the estimated fair value less costs
of disposal and the discounted future cash flows generated from use and eventual disposal from an asset or cash-generating unit,
is less than their carrying value. Impairment losses are recorded as fair value changes within the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. The projections of future cash flows take into account the relevant operating plans and management’s best estimate
of the most probable set of conditions anticipated to prevail. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the lesser of the revised estimate of its recoverable amount and the carrying
amount that would have been recorded had no impairment loss been recognized previously.

k) Accounts Receivable

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any allowance for uncollectability.

I) Intangible Assets

Finite life intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses and are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortization is recorded within depreciation and amortization
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Certain of the company’s intangible assets have an indefinite life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset
is expected to generate cash flows. Indefinite life intangible assets are recorded at cost unless an impairment is identified which
requires a write-down to its recoverable amount.

Indefinite life intangible assets are evaluated for impairment annually or more often if events or circumstances indicate there may
be an impairment. Any impairment of the company’s indefinite life intangible assets is recorded in net income in the period in
which the impairment is identified. Impairment losses on intangible assets may be subsequently reversed in net income.

m) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the price paid for the acquisition of an entity over the fair value of the net identifiable tangible
and intangible assets and liabilities acquired. Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit to which it relates. The company
identifies cash-generating units as identifiable groups of assets that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets.

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually or more often if events or circumstances indicate there may be an impairment.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing if the carrying value of a cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill,
exceeds its recoverable amount determined as the greater of the estimated fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of a cash-generating unit are first allocated to the carrying value of goodwill and any excess is allocated
to the carrying amount of assets in the cash-generating unit. Any goodwill impairment is recorded in income in the period in which
the impairment is identified. Impairment losses on goodwill are not subsequently reversed. On disposal of a subsidiary, any
attributable amount of goodwill is included in determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

n) Subsidiary Equity Obligations

Subsidiary equity obligations include subsidiary preferred equity units, subsidiary preferred shares and capital securities, limited-
life funds and redeemable fund units.

Subsidiary preferred equity units and capital securities are preferred shares that may be settled by a variable number of common
equity units upon their conversion by the holders or the company. These instruments, as well as the related accrued distributions,
are classified as liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Dividends or yield distributions on these instruments are recorded
as interest expense. To the extent conversion features are not closely related to the underlying liability the instruments are bifurcated
into debt and equity components.

Limited-life funds represent the interests of others in the company’s consolidated funds that have a defined maximum fixed life
where the company has an obligation to distribute the residual interests of the fund to fund partners based on their proportionate
share of the fund’s equity in the form of cash or other financial assets at cessation of the fund’s life.
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Redeemable fund units represent interests of others in consolidated subsidiaries that have a redemption feature that requires the
company to deliver cash or other financial assets to the holders of the units upon receiving a redemption notice.

Limited-life funds and redeemable fund units are classified as liabilities and recorded at fair value within subsidiary equity
obligations on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value are recorded in net income in the period of the change.

0) Revenue Recognition
i. Asset Management

Asset management revenues consist of base management fees, advisory fees, incentive distributions and performance-based
incentive fees which arise from the rendering of services. Revenues from base management fees, advisory fees and incentive
distributions are recorded on an accrual basis based on the amounts receivable at the balance sheet date and are recorded within
revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenues from performance-based incentive fees and profit sharing arrangements are recorded on the accrual basis based on the
amount that would be due under the formula established by the contract where it is no longer subject to adjustment based on future
events. A significant portion of the asset management revenues are eliminated on consolidation, and that which survives is recorded
as revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

ii. Real Estate Operations

Real estate revenues primarily consist of rental revenues from leasing activities and hospitality revenues and interest and dividends
from unconsolidated real estate investments.

Real estate rental income is recognized when the property is ready for its intended use. Office and retail properties are considered
to be ready for their intended use when the property is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, which generally
occurs upon completion of construction and receipt of all occupancy and other material permits.

The company has retained substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of'its investment properties and therefore accounts
for leases with its tenants as operating leases. Revenue recognition under a lease commences when the tenant has a right to use
the leased asset. The total amount of contractual rent to be received from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease; a straight-line or free rent receivable, as applicable, is recorded as a component of investment property
for the difference between the amount of rental revenue recorded and the contractual amount received. Rental revenue includes
percentage participating rents and recoveries of operating expenses, including property, capital and similar taxes. Percentage
participating rents are recognized when tenants’ specified sales targets have been met. Operating expense recoveries are recognized
in the period that recoverable costs are chargeable to tenants.

Revenue from the sales of land and buildings not classified as investment properties is recognized at the time that the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred, possession or title passes to the purchaser, all material conditions of the sales contract
have been met and a significant cash down payment or appropriate security is received.

Revenue from hospitality operations are recognized when goods and services are provided, and collection is reasonably assured.
iii. Renewable Power Operations

Renewable power revenues are derived from the sale of electricity and are recorded at the time power is provided based upon the
output delivered and capacity provided at rates specified under either contract terms or prevailing market rates. Costs of generating
electricity are recorded as incurred.

iv. Sustainable Resources Operations

Revenue from timberland operations is derived from the sale of logs and related products. The company recognizes sales to external
customers when the product is shipped, title passes, and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue from agricultural development
operations is recognized at the time that the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred.

v. Infrastructure Operations

Utilities Operations

Revenue from utilities operations is derived from the distribution and transmission of energy as well as from the company’s coal
terminal. Distribution and transmission revenue is recognized when services are rendered based upon usage or volume during that
period. Terminal infrastructure charges are charged at set rates per tonne of coal based on each customer’s annual contracted
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tonnage and are then recognized on a pro rata basis each month. The company’s coal terminal also recognizes variable handling
charges based on tonnes of coal shipped through the terminal.

Transport Operations

Revenue from transport operations consists primarily of freight and transportation services revenue. Freight and transportation
services revenue is recognized at the time of the provision of services based primarily on usage or volume throughput during
the period.

Energy Operations

Revenue from energy operations consists primarily of energy transmission, distribution and storage income. Energy revenue is
recognized when services are provided and are rendered based upon usage or volume throughput during the period.

Communications Infrastructure

Revenue from communications infrastructure is derived from contracts with media broadcasting and telecommunication customers
to access infrastructure. Customers pay upfront and recurring fees to lease space on towers to host their equipment. Recurring
rental revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis based on lease agreements. Upfront payments which are separable from the
recurring revenue under IFRIC 18 are recognized on a percentage of completion basis on the construction asset to which they relate.

vi. Private Equity Operations

Revenue from our private equity operations primarily consists of revenues from the sale of goods or products and rendering of
services. Sales are recognized when the product is shipped, title passes, and collectability is reasonably assured. Service revenues
are recognized when the services are provided.

Revenues from construction contracts are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method once the outcome of the
construction contract can be estimated reliably, in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract, and to the extent to which
collectability is reasonably assured. The stage of completion is measured by reference to actual costs incurred as a percentage of
estimated total costs of each contract. When the outcome cannot be reliably determined, contract costs are expensed as incurred
and revenue is only recorded to the extent that the costs are determined to be recoverable. Where it is probable that a loss will
arise from a construction contract, the excess of total expected costs over total expected revenue is recognized as an
expense immediately.

Within our business services operations, revenue from the sale of goods in our U.K. road fuel service business represents net
invoiced sales of fuel products and RTFO certificates, excluding value added taxes but including excise duty, which has been
assessed to be a production tax and recorded as part of the consideration received. Revenue is recognized at the point that title
passes to the customer.

vii. Residential Development Operations

Revenue from residential land sales is recognized at the time that the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred, which
is generally when possession or title passes to the purchaser, all material conditions of the sales contract have been met and a
significant cash down payment or appropriate security is received.

Revenue from the sale of homes and residential condominium projects is recognized upon completion, when title passes to the
purchaser upon closing and at which time all proceeds are received or collectability is reasonably assured.

viii. Investments in Financial Assets

Dividend and interest income from other financial assets are recorded within revenues when declared or on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method.

Interest revenue from loans and notes receivable, less a provision for uncollectible amounts, is recorded on the accrual basis using
the effective interest method.

xii. Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains represent the excess of proceeds over carrying values on the disposition of subsidiaries, investments or
assets, or the settlement of liabilities for less than carrying values.
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p) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The company selectively utilizes derivative financial instruments primarily to manage financial risks, including interest rate,
commodity and foreign exchange risks. Derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value within the company’s
consolidated financial statements. Hedge accounting is applied when the derivative is designated as a hedge of a specific exposure
and there is assurance that it will continue to be effective as a hedge based on an expectation of offsetting cash flows or fair values.
Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the derivative no longer qualifies as a hedge or the hedging relationship is
terminated. Once discontinued, the cumulative change in fair value of a derivative that was previously recorded in other
comprehensive income by the application of hedge accounting is recognized in net income over the remaining term of the original
hedging relationship. The assets or liabilities relating to unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses on derivative financial
instruments are recorded in accounts receivable and other or accounts payable and other, respectively.

i. Items Classified as Hedges

Realized and unrealized gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts designated as hedges of currency risks relating to a net
investment in a subsidiary or an associate are included in equity. Gains or losses are reclassified into net income in the period in
which the subsidiary or associate is disposed of or to the extent that the hedges are ineffective. Where a subsidiary is partially
disposed, and control is retained, any associated gains or costs are reclassified within equity to ownership changes. Derivative
financial instruments that are designated as hedges to offset corresponding changes in the fair value of assets and liabilities and
cash flows are measured at their estimated fair value with changes in fair value recorded in net income or as a component of equity,
as applicable.

Unrealized gains and losses on interest rate contracts designated as hedges of future variable interest payments are included in
equity as a cash flow hedge when the interest rate risk relates to an anticipated variable interest payment. The periodic exchanges
of payments on interest rate swap contracts designated as hedges of debt are recorded on an accrual basis as an adjustment to
interest expense. The periodic exchanges of payments on interest rate contracts designated as hedges of future interest payments
are amortized into net income over the term of the corresponding interest payments.

Unrealized gains and losses on electricity contracts designated as cash flow hedges of future power generation revenue are included
in equity as a cash flow hedge. The periodic exchanges of payments on power generation commodity swap contracts designated
as hedges are recorded on a settlement basis as an adjustment to power generation revenue.

ii. Items Not Classified as Hedges

Derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedges are carried at their estimated fair value, and gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognized in net income in the period in which the change occurs. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on equity derivatives used to offset changes in share prices in respect of vested Deferred Share Units and Restricted
Share Units are recorded together with the corresponding compensation expense. Realized and unrealized gains on other derivatives
not designated as hedges are recorded in revenues, direct costs or corporate costs, as applicable. Realized and unrealized gains
and losses on derivatives which are considered economic hedges, and where hedge accounting is not able to be elected, are recorded
in fair value changes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

q) Income Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to tax authorities, net of recoveries, based
on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Current and deferred income tax relating to
items recognized directly in equity are also recognized in equity. Deferred income tax liabilities are provided for using the liability
method on temporary differences between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and for the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that deductions, tax credits and tax losses can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred income
tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the income tax assets will
be recovered. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the liability settled, based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.
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r) Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of a business acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
in exchange for control of the acquiree. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognized at
their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets that are classified as held for sale which are recognized and
measured at fair value less costs to sell. The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportion of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognized.

To the extent the fair value of consideration paid exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable tangible and intangible assets, the
excess is recorded as goodwill. To the extent the fair value of consideration paid is less than the fair value of net identifiable
tangible and intangible assets, the excess is recognized in net income.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, previously held interests in the acquired entity are re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date, which is the date control is obtained, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in net income,
other than amounts transferred directly to retained earnings. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to net income. Transaction costs are
recorded as an expense within fair value changes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

s) Other Items
i. Capitalized Costs

Capitalized costs related to assets under development and redevelopment include all eligible expenditures incurred in connection
with the acquisition, development and construction of the asset until it is available for its intended use. These expenditures consist
of costs that are directly attributable to these assets.

Borrowing costs are capitalized when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use.

ii. Share-based Payments

The company issues share-based awards to certain employees and non-employee directors. The cost of equity-settled share-based
transactions, comprised of share options, restricted shares and escrowed shares, is determined as the fair value of the award on
the grant date using a fair value model. The cost of equity-settled share-based transactions is recognized as each tranche vests and
is recorded in contributed surplus as a component of equity. The cost of cash-settled share-based transactions, comprised of
Deferred Share Units (“DSUs”) and Restricted Share Units (“RSUSs”), is measured as the fair value at the grant date, and expensed
on a proportionate basis consistent with the vesting features over the vesting period with the recognition of a corresponding liability.
The liability is recorded as a provision within accounts payable and other and measured at each reporting date at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in net income.

iii. Provisions

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing that is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. The company’s significant provisions consist of pensions and other long-term and post-employment
benefits, warranties on some products or services, obligations to retire or decommission tangible long-lived assets and the cost of
legal claims arising in the normal course of operations.

a. Pensions and Other Post-Employment Benefits

The company offers pension and other post-employment benefit plans to employees of certain of its subsidiaries, with certain of
these subsidiaries offering defined benefit plans. Defined benefit pension expenses, which include the current year’s service cost,
are included in direct costs. For each defined benefit plan, we recognize the present value of our defined benefit obligations less
the fair value of the plan assets as a defined benefit liability reported in accounts payable and other on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The company’s obligations under its defined benefit pension plans are determined periodically through the preparation of
actuarial valuations.
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b.  Other Long-Term Incentive Plans

The company provides long-term incentive plans to certain employees whereby the company allocates a portion of the amounts
realized through subsidiary profit sharing agreements to its employees. The cost of these plans is recognized over the requisite
service period, provided it is probable that the vesting conditions will be achieved, based on the underlying subsidiary profit
sharing arrangement. The liability is recorded within accounts payable and other and measured at each reporting date with the
corresponding expense recognized in direct costs.

c. Warranties, Asset Retirement, Legal and Other

Certain consolidated entities offer warranties on the sale of products or services. A provision is recorded to provide for future
warranty costs based on management’s best estimate of probable warranty claims.

Certain consolidated entities have legal obligations to retire tangible long-lived assets. A provision is recorded at each reporting
date to provide for the estimated fair value of the asset retirement obligation upon decommissioning of the asset period.

In the normal course of operations, the company may become involved in legal proceedings. Management analyzes information
about these legal matters and provides provisions for probable contingent losses, including estimated legal expenses to resolve
the matters. Internal and external legal counsel are used in order to estimate the probability of an unfavorable outcome and the
amount of loss.

t) Critical Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the carried amounts of
certain assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
recorded during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

In making estimates and judgments, management relies on external information and observable conditions, where possible,
supplemented by internal analysis as required. These estimates and judgments have been applied in a manner consistent with prior
periods and there are no known trends, commitments, events or uncertainties that the company believes will materially affect the
methodology or assumptions utilized in making estimates and judgments in these consolidated financial statements.

i. Critical Estimates

The significant estimates used in determining the recorded amount for assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
include the following:

a. Investment Properties

The critical assumptions and estimates used when determining the fair value of commercial properties are: the timing of rental
income from future leases reflecting current market conditions, less assumptions of future cash costs in respect of current and
future leases; maintenance and other capital expenditures; discount rates; terminal capitalization rates; and terminal valuation
dates. Properties under development are recorded at fair value using a discounted cash flow model which includes estimates in
respect of the timing and cost to complete the development.

Further information on investment property estimates is provided in Note 11.
b.  Revaluation Method for Property, Plant and Equipment

When determining the carrying value of property, plant and equipment using the revaluation method, the company uses the
following critical assumptions and estimates: the timing of forecasted revenues; future sales prices and associated expenses; future
sales volumes; future regulatory rates; maintenance and other capital expenditures; discount rates; terminal capitalization rates;
terminal valuation dates; useful lives; and residual values. Determination of the fair value of property, plant and equipment under
development includes estimates in respect of the timing and cost to complete the development.

Further information on estimates used in the revaluation method for property, plant and equipment is provided in Note 12.
c. Financial Instruments

Estimates and assumptions used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are: equity and commodity prices; future
interest rates; the credit worthiness of the company relative to its counterparties; the credit risk of the company’s counterparties;
estimated future cash flows; the amount of the liability and equity components of compound financial instruments; discount rates
and volatility utilized in option valuations.

Further information on estimates used in determining the carrying value of financial instruments is provided in Notes 6, 25 and 26.
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d. Inventory

The company estimates the net realizable value of its inventory using estimates and assumptions about future development costs,
costs to hold and future selling costs.

e. Sustainable Resources

The fair value of standing timber and agricultural assets is based on the following estimates and assumptions: the timing of
forecasted revenues and prices; estimated selling costs; sustainable felling plans; growth assumptions; silviculture costs; discount
rates; terminal capitalization rates; and terminal valuation dates.

£ Other

Other estimates and assumptions utilized in the preparation of the company’s consolidated financial statements are: the assessment
or determination of net recoverable amount; oil and gas reserves; depreciation and amortization rates and useful lives; estimation
of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units for impairment assessments of goodwill and intangible assets; ability to utilize tax
losses and other tax measurements; fair value of assets held as collateral and the percentage of completion for construction contracts.

ii. Critical Judgments

Management is required to make critical judgments when applying its accounting policies. The following judgments have the
most significant effect on the consolidated financial statements:

a. Control or Level of Influence

When determining the appropriate basis of accounting for the company’s investees, the company makes judgments about the
degree of influence that it exerts directly or through an arrangement over the investees’ relevant activities. This may include
the ability to elect investee directors or appoint management. Control is obtained when the company has the power to direct the
relevant investing, financing and operating decisions of an entity and does so in its capacity as principal of the operations, rather
than as an agent for other investors. Operating as a principal includes having sufficient capital at risk in any investee and exposure
to the variability of the returns generated as a result of the decisions of the company as principal. Judgment is used in determining
the sufficiency of the capital at risk or variability of returns. In making these judgments, the company considers the ability of other
investors to remove the company as a manager or general partner in a controlled partnership.

b. Investment Properties

When applying the company’s accounting policy for investment properties, judgment is applied in determining whether certain
costs are additions to the carrying amount of the property and, for properties under development, identifying the point at which
practical completion of the property occurs and identifying the directly attributable borrowing costs to be included in the carrying
value of the development property.

¢.  Property, Plant and Equipment

The company’s accounting policy for its property, plant and equipment requires critical judgments over the assessment of carrying
value, whether certain costs are additions to the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as opposed to repairs and
maintenance, and for assets under development the identification of when the asset is capable of being used as intended
and identifying the directly attributable borrowing costs to be included in the asset’s carrying value.

For assets that are measured using the revaluation method, judgment is required when estimating future prices, volumes, discount
and capitalization rates. Judgment is applied when determining future electricity prices considering broker quotes for the years in
which there is a liquid market available and, for the subsequent years, our best estimate of electricity prices from renewable sources
that would allow new entrants into the market.

d. Common Control Transactions

The purchase and sale of businesses or subsidiaries between entities under common control are not specifically addressed in IFRS
and accordingly, management uses judgment when determining a policy to account for such transactions taking into consideration
other guidance in the IFRS framework and pronouncements of other standard-setting bodies. The company’s policy is to record
assets and liabilities recognized as a result of transfers of businesses or subsidiaries between entities under common control at
carrying value. Differences between the carrying amount of the consideration given or received and the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities transferred are recorded directly in equity.
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e. Indicators of Impairment

Judgment is applied when determining whether indicators of impairment exist when assessing the carrying values of the company’s
assets, including: the determination of the company’s ability to hold financial assets; the estimation of a cash-generating unit’s future
revenues and direct costs; the determination of discount and capitalization rates; and when an asset’s carrying value is above the
value derived using publicly traded prices which are quoted in a liquid market.

£ Income Taxes

The company makes judgments when determining the future tax rates applicable to subsidiaries and identifying the temporary
differences that relate to each subsidiary. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply during the period when the assets are realized or the liabilities settled, using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the consolidated balance sheet dates. The company measures deferred income taxes associated with its investment
properties based on its specific intention with respect to each asset at the end of the reporting period. Where the company has a
specific intention to sell a property in the foreseeable future, deferred taxes on the building portion of an investment property are
measured based on the tax consequences that would follow the disposition of the property. Otherwise, deferred taxes are measured
on the basis the carrying value of the investment property will be recovered substantially through use.

g.  Classification of Non-Controlling Interests in Limited-Life Funds

Non-controlling interests in limited-life funds are classified as liabilities (subsidiary equity obligations) or equity (non-controlling
interests) depending on whether an obligation exists to distribute residual net assets to non-controlling interests on liquidation in
the form of cash or another financial asset or assets delivered in kind. Judgment is required to determine what the governing
documents of each entity require or permit in this regard.

h. Other

Other critical judgments include the determination of effectiveness of financial hedges for accounting purposes; the likelihood
and timing of anticipated transactions for hedge accounting; and the determination of functional currency.

3. SEGMENTED INFORMATION
a) Operating Segments

Our operations are organized into five operating business groups in addition to our corporate and asset management activities,
which collectively represent seven operating segments for internal and external reporting purposes. We measure performance
primarily using Funds from Operations (“FFO”) generated by each operating segment and the amount of capital invested by the
corporation in each segment using common equity by segment.

Our operating segments are as follows:

i.  Asset management operations include managing our listed partnerships, private funds and public securities on behalf of our
investors and ourselves. We generate contractual base management fees for these activities as well as incentive distributions
and performance income, including performance fees, transaction fees and carried interest. Common equity in our asset
management segment is immaterial.

il. Real estate operations include the ownership, operation and development of core office, core retail, opportunistic and other
properties.

iii. Renewable power operations include the ownership, operation and development of hydroelectric, wind, solar, storage and
other power generating facilities.

iv. Infrastructure operations include the ownership, operation and development of utilities, transport, energy, communications
and sustainable resource assets.

v.  Private equity operations include a broad range of industries, and are mostly focused on construction, other business services,
energy, and industrial operations.

vi. Residential development operations consist of homebuilding, condominium development and land development.

vii. Corporate activities include the investment of cash and financial assets, as well as the management of our corporate
capitalization, including corporate borrowings and preferred equity, which fund a portion of the capital invested in our other
operations. Certain corporate costs such as technology and operations are incurred on behalf of our operating segments and
allocated to each operating segment based on an internal pricing framework.
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b) Segment Financial Measures

FFO is a key measure of our financial performance and our segment measure of profit and loss. It is utilized by our Chief Operating
Decision Maker in assessing operating results and the performance of our businesses on a segmented basis. We define FFO as net
income excluding fair value changes, depreciation and amortization and deferred income taxes, net of non-controlling interests.
When determining FFO, we include our proportionate share of the FFO from equity accounted investments on a fully diluted
basis. FFO also includes realized disposition gains and losses, which are gains or losses arising from transactions during the
reporting period, adjusted to include associated fair value changes and revaluation surplus recorded in prior periods, taxes payable
or receivable in connection with those transactions and amounts that are recorded directly in equity, such as ownership changes.

We use FFO to assess our performance as an asset manager and as an investor in our assets. FFO from our asset management
segment includes fees, net of the associated costs, that we earn from managing capital in our listed partnerships, private funds and
public securities accounts. We are also eligible to earn incentive payments in the form of incentive distributions, performance fees
or carried interest. As an investor in our assets, our FFO represents the company’s share of revenues less costs incurred within our
operations, which include interest expenses and other costs. Specifically, it includes the impact of contracts that we enter into to
generate revenues, including power sales agreements, contracts that our operating businesses enter into such as leases and take or
pay contracts and sales of inventory. FFO includes the impact of changes in leverage or the cost of that financial leverage and
other costs incurred to operate our business.

We use realized disposition gains and losses within FFO in order to provide additional insight regarding the performance of
investments on a cumulative realized basis, including any unrealized fair value adjustments that were recorded in prior periods
and not otherwise reflected in current period FFO, and believe it is useful to investors to better understand variances between
reporting periods. We exclude depreciation and amortization from FFO, as we believe that the value of most of our assets typically
increase over time, provided we make the necessary maintenance expenditures, the timing and magnitude of which may differ
from the amount of depreciation recorded in any given period. In addition, the depreciated cost base of our assets is reflected in
the ultimate realized disposition gain or loss on disposal. As noted above, unrealized fair value changes are excluded from FFO
until the period in which the asset is sold. We also exclude deferred income taxes from FFO because the vast majority of the
company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities are a result of the revaluation of our assets under IFRS.

Our definition of FFO may differ from the definition used by other organizations, as well as the definition of FFO used by the
Real Property Association of Canada (“REALPAC”) and the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc.
(“NAREIT”), in part because the NAREIT definition is based on U.S. GAAP, as opposed to IFRS. The key differences between
our definition of FFO and the determination of FFO by REALPAC and/or NAREIT are that we include the following: realized
disposition gains or losses and cash taxes payable or receivable on those gains or losses, if any; foreign exchange gains or losses
on monetary items not forming part of our net investment in foreign operations; and foreign exchange gains or losses on the sale
of an investment in a foreign operation. We do not use FFO as a measure of cash generated from our operations.

We illustrate how we derive FFO for each operating segment and reconcile total FFO to net income in Note 3(c)(v) of the
consolidated financial statements. We do not use FFO as a measure of cash generated from our operations.

i. Segment Balance Sheet Information

We use common equity by segment as our measure of segment assets when reviewing our deconsolidated balance sheet because
it is utilized by our Chief Operating Decision Maker for capital allocation decisions.

ii. Segment Allocation and Measurement

Segment measures include amounts earned from consolidated entities that are eliminated on consolidation. The principal adjustment
is to include asset management revenues charged to consolidated entities as revenues within the company’s Asset Management
segment with the corresponding expense recorded as corporate costs within the relevant segment. These amounts are based on
the in-place terms of the asset management contracts between the consolidated entities. Inter-segment revenues are determined
under terms that approximate market value.

The company allocates the costs of shared functions that would otherwise be included within its corporate activities segment, such
as information technology and internal audit, pursuant to formal policies.
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¢) Reportable Segment Measures

AS AT AND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED . . .
DEC. 31,2017 Asset Renewable Private Residential Corporate Total
(MILLIONS) Management Real Estate Power  Infrastructure Equity  Development Activities Segments  Notes
External revenues ............ $ 286 $ 6,824 $ 2,788 § 3859 $ 24220 $ 2,447 $ 362 $ 40,786
Inter-segment revenues.... 1,181 38 — 12 357 — — 1,588 i
Segmented revenues........ 1,467 6,862 2,788 3,871 24,577 2,447 362 42,374
FFO from equity

accounted investments .. — 904 23 904 229 1 8 2,069 ii
Interest expense .. . — (1,901) (691) (453) (237) (83) (261) (3,626) iii
Current income taxes. — (63) 39) (111) (84) (46) 57 (286) iv
Funds from operations 970 2,004 270 345 333 34 (146) 3,810 v
Common equity ............... 312 16,725 4,944 2,834 4,215 2,915 (7,893) 24,052
Equity accounted

investments.................... — 19,596 509 8,793 2,385 346 365 31,994
Additions to non-current

assets' ... — 10,025 7,555 7,991 6,307 74 328 32,280

1. Includes equity accounted investments, investment properties, property, plant and equipment, sustainable resources, intangible assets and goodwill

AS AT AND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED . . .
DEC. 31,2016 Asset Renewable Private Residential Corporate Total
(MILLIONS) Management Real Estate Power  Infrastructure Equity  Development Activities Segments  Notes
External revenues ............ $ 348 $ 6,324 § 2,474 § 2,414 § 9,603 § 3,019 § 229 $ 24,411
Inter-segment revenues.... 972 14 — — 359 — 6 1,351 i
Segmented revenues........ 1,320 6,338 2,474 2,414 9,962 3,019 235 25,762
FFO from equity

accounted investments .. — 896 9 683 163 6 (6) 1,751 ii
Interest expense ............... — (1,736) (615) (409) (147) 1) (241) (3,239) iii
Current income taxes....... — 21) (43) (35) (40) (51) (23) (213) iv
Funds from operations..... 866 1,561 180 374 405 63 (212) 3,237 v
Common equity ............... 328 16,727 4,826 2,697 2,862 2,679 (7,620) 22,499
Equity accounted

investments.................... — 16,628 206 7,346 336 374 87 24,977

Additions to non-current
assets' ..o — 12,311 6,899 5,105 359 93 59 24,826

1. Includes equity accounted investments, investment properties, property, plant and equipment, sustainable resources, intangible assets and goodwill
i. Inter-Segment Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the adjustment to external revenues when determining segmented revenues consists of
asset management fee revenues and leasing revenues earned from consolidated entities totaling $1.2 billion (2016 — $986 million),
revenues earned on construction projects between consolidated entities totaling $357 million (2016 — $359 million) and interest
income on loans between consolidated entities totaling $19 million (2016 — $6 million), which were eliminated on consolidation
to arrive at the company’s consolidated revenues.

ii. FFO from Equity Accounted Investments

The company determines FFO from its equity accounted investments by applying the same methodology utilized in adjusting net
income of consolidated entities. The following table reconciles the company’s consolidated equity accounted income to FFO from
equity accounted investments.

fl\(/l)ﬁ, THE Sg])EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Consolidated equity accounted INCOME............ceuiuiiriiiiiiiiiiiiiicre e $ 1,213 $ 1,293
Non-FFO items from equity accounted InVeSHMENts' ..............cco..ovveveeveeveeereseeeseeeseeeesee s 856 458
FFO from equity accounted INVESIMENLTS ..........cc.cciruiiiiriciniiiiieeceee et $ 2,069 $ 1,751

1. Adjustment to back out non-FFO expenses (income) that are included in consolidated equity accounted income including depreciation and amortization, deferred taxes
and fair value changes from equity accounted investments
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iii. Interest Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the adjustment to interest expense consists of interest on loans between consolidated
entities totaling $18 million (2016 — $6 million) that is eliminated on consolidation, along with the associated revenue.

iv. Current Income Taxes

Current income taxes are included in FFO but are aggregated with deferred income taxes in income tax expense on the company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The following table reconciles consolidated income taxes to current income taxes
by segment:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31

(MILLIONS) 2017 2016
Current tax TECOVETY (EXPEISE) .....cviuriuiiiiiiiiiieteriiitireseiie ettt ea et $ (286) $ (213)
Deferred income tax r€COVEIY (EXPENSE) .....evererveuirreirririeiiateiesintertatestesesseseesesesesseeesessesessesesessenesnes (327) 558
INCOME taX TECOVETY (EXPEISE) ...cuvneeviureuiriieiieieieetieeiee ettt ettt eae st e e ie et et ee e see e ae e aesaeneenens $ ©613) $ 345

v. Reconciliation of Net Income to Total FFO

The following table reconciles net income to total FFO:

(ic/[)FL THE Sg])EARS ENDED DEC. 31 Note 2017 2016
INEE INICOIMIE .ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e eeeeeeeeeeseesasaes e eaeeeeeeeeeeeeerenaanas $ 4551 $ 3,338
Realized disposition gains in fair value changes or prior periods...........ccccveerereereinennene vi 1,116 766
Non-controlling interests in FFO .........cccccoiiiiiiiiicccceeeeeeeeeeeae (4,964) (2,917)
Financial statement components not included in FFO
Equity accounted fair value changes and other non-FFO items.........ccccccoeoiveniineninenne 856 458
Fair value Changes ..........c..coooiiiiiice e (421) 130
Depreciation and amOTtiZAtION ............coueevueuiruerierinieiniinieentereeeeee sttt eeeeene 2,345 2,020
Deferred INCOME TAXES . ...c.veuirierietiteiieteiet ettt sttt et sttt eene 327 (558)
TOAL FEO ...t e s e e e e s aen e ee e eeaee e $ 3810 $ 3,237

vi. Realized Disposition Gains

Realized disposition gains include gains and losses recorded in net income arising from transactions during the current period
adjusted to include fair value changes and revaluation surplus recorded in prior periods in connection with the assets disposed.
Realized disposition gains also include amounts that are recorded directly in equity as changes in ownership, as opposed to net
income, because they result from a change in ownership of a consolidated entity.

The realized disposition gains recorded in fair value changes or revaluation surplus were $1,116 million for the year ended
December 31,2017 (2016 — $766 million), of which $1,038 million relates to prior periods (2016 — $732 million). There were no
realized disposition gains recorded directly in equity as changes in ownership.

d) Geographic Allocation

The company’s revenues by location of operations are as follows:

(ic/[)FL THE Sg])EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
UNTEEA SEALES ...vvieiiiieieeiieciie ettt ettt ettt ettt e e et e e teeeaeeste e be e beebeesbeesbeenseesseesseessasssesssasssesssenseenses $ 8,284 $ 8,073
(O 4 1o H OO RUROPRRRTRNt 5,883 4,427
UNIted KINGAOM....uiiiiieiecieiecect ettt ettt ettt e st e tesbesaeebesseeseeseessessensensesensessessassessseneans 15,106 2,858
ONET BUTOPE «.vvevteetiiiiietietietete ettt s e te ettt e st et et e s tesbeeseeseeseessessess e sasseeseassassessessassassassassassesseeseans 617 465
AUSITALIA ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et te ettt et te et e st et et ere et eaeebe b ete et e st ete et ereetenseteetensern 4,405 3,843
3,206 1,737

970 975

2,315 2,033

$ 40,786 $ 24,411
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The company’s consolidated assets by location are as follows:

8\?1?11%%1%)3 ! 2017 2016
UNIEEA SEALES ..evvevieireiieieiesie st st et et et este et e testeeteeteeteeseesaeseeseensensesseasesseeseeseensensensensensensessessessesseeneans $ 84,860 $ 75,556
CANAAA. ...ttt ettt h bttt b st bbb a et et R et ettt e st et e et et e st et e et 21,897 19,324
UNIted KINGAOM ...ttt ettt sttt bttt e et et e s besbesbesbeeneeneans 20,005 15,740
Oher EUTOPE ...ttt sttt sttt st b ettt ene e 3,979 4,460
AAUSETALIA 1.ttt a bbbt h b n e bt s bttt n et e e b e beneenan 14,501 12,920
BIAZIL ..ttt b ekttt b et b et n e 23,931 12,807
Colombia.... 7,362 7,296
(@11 115 OO OO OO OE OSSO SRO SRRSO 16,185 11,723
$ 192,720 $ 159,826
e¢) Revenues Allocation
Total external revenues within our operating segments are as follows:
{ﬁﬁ{%—({)ﬁ\]\gl)iARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
ASSEt MANAZEIMICIIT «....outiuiiieiitiitteeteit ettt sttt et ettt et e be s bttt e bt e bt e bt estessensesnesaesaesbesbesueeueeneens $ 286 S 348
Real estate
COTE OFTICE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et sttt eae 2,121 2,170
OppOortuniStic aNd OtHET .....c.coviiiiiiiiiciiie ettt ettt sttt ene 4,703 4,154
Renewable power
Hydroelectric 2,183 2,055
Wind energy, solar, Storage & Other ..........cocociviiririiiniciee e 605 419
Infrastructure
UBIIEIES ©nvveeeeetieeteeettete et et ettt e et e et e etteeteeetaeeaeeste e seesbeesseenseesseesseessasssesssesssensaesssenseeseenseenseenseensans 1,785 825
TTANSPOTT. ...ttt ettt et sb e sa e sa e sa e ea ettt bbbt bttt eae 1,290 892
EIEIZY ...ttt 460 398
Sustainable resources and OtheT.............ccoiiiiriiiiiiiiic e 324 299
Private equity
CONSIIUCHION SEIVICES. c.veueuitenietentenieteneetetestatesteteeteseaseseseateseeseseseaseseesensesesseneesesesesseneesenseneaseneanens 4,650 4,028
BUSINESS SEIVICES ..vvvviiiiieiiieeietieeeeetee e e e ettt e e e et e e e ettt e e e eaateesesaaaeessessaeeessensaseessssaseessasssseesssnsseessnnnnes 16,224 2,006
ENEIZY .ottt st 280 441
Industrial and other operations .. 3,066 3,128
Residential deVeIOPMENL .........cc.cciiuiiiiriiiieieecece ettt 2,447 3,019
COTPOTALE ACLIVITIES ...vuitinieiiteiietertei ettt ettt ettt ettt e b ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt st et et e bt st neene 362 229
$ 40,786 $ 24,411
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4. SUBSIDIARIES

The following table presents the details of the company’s subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests:

Ownership Interest Held by
Non-Controlling Interests'”

Jurisdiction
AS AT DEC. 31 of Formation 2017 2016
Brookfield Property Partners L.P. (“BPY™)..c.cccoeeirimneirneieinniecinneceneereeceneenene Bermuda 30.6% 31.2%
Brookfield Renewable Partners L.P. (“BEP”)......ccccccooiimininiiiiieieeecceeeeeene Bermuda 39.8% 38.7%
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners L.P. (“BIP”) ....ccccoovieieieieieieeeseeeeeeeeeeene Bermuda 70.1% 70.2%
Brookfield Business Partners L.P. (“BBU”)........oooouoiuoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Bermuda 32.0% 25.1%

1. Control and associated voting rights of the limited partnerships (BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU) resides with their respective general partners which are wholly owned subsidiaries
of the company. The company’s general partner interest is entitled to earn base management fees and incentive payments in the form of incentive distribution rights or
performance fees

2. The company’s ownership interest in BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU includes a combination of redemption-exchange units (REUs), Class A limited partnership units, special
limited partnership units and general partnership units in each subsidiary, where applicable. Each of BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU’s partnership capital includes its Class A
limited partnership units whereas REUs and general partnership units are considered non-controlling interests for the respective partnerships. REUs share the same
economic attributes in all respects except for the redemption right attached thereto. The REUs and general partnership units participate in earnings and distributions on
a per unit basis equivalent to the per unit participation of the Class A limited partnership units of the subsidiary

3. BBU was formed during 2016 through a special dividend of approximately 19 million limited partnership units, equivalent to a 20.7% economic interest in BBU, to the
shareholders of the company’s Class A shares and Class B shares

During 2017, BBU and BEP completed equity issuances in which the company participated. The BBU and BEP issuances decreased
the company’s interest by 6.9% and 1.1%, respectively, as the company participated at a lower interest than its ownership prior
to the issuances.

The table below presents the exchanges on which the company’s subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests were
publicly listed as of December 31, 2017:

TSX NYSE Nasdaq
N/A BPY

BEP N/A

BIP N/A

BBU N/A

1. BPY voluntarily moved its U.S. stock exchange listing from the New York Stock Exchange to the Nasdaq Stock Market effective November 16, 2017

The following table outlines the composition of accumulated non-controlling interests presented within the company’s consolidated
financial statements:

ﬁﬁ%‘;\%—f 1 2017 2016
BPY ettt ettt ettt ettt s ettt ettt et ettt e e ee e eene $ 19,736 S 18,790
BEP. et st r ettt et e a e e ean e s e enee e nne 10,139 8,879
BIP .ottt 11,376 7,710
BBU .ttt 4,000 2,173
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests. ........c.ccceereireinenecnencseenenn 6,377 5,683

$ 51,628 $ 43,235

2017 ANNUAL REPORT 140



All publicly listed entities are subject to independent governance. Accordingly, the company has no direct access to the assets of
these subsidiaries. Summarized financial information with respect to the company’s subsidiaries with significant non-controlling
interests are set out below. The summarized financial information represents amounts before intra-group eliminations:

BPY BEP BIP BBU

f}jﬂ%ﬂ;f‘m THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
CUITeNt ASSELS...vvervreererieieereeeesereneeeeees $ 3912 $ 4198 $ 1,666 $§ 907 $ 1512 $ 1632 $ 6,433 $ 4,076
Non-current assets ........coceeveeveereeneennens 80,435 73,929 29,238 26,830 27,965 19,643 9,371 4,117
Current liabilities (11,829)  (8,276)  (2,514)  (1,733)  (1,564)  (1,515)  (5,690)  (2,556)
Non-current liabilities.........cc.ccccveeeenene. (37,394) (35,690) (14,108) (13,332) (14,439) (10,116)  (4,050) (1,599)
Non-controlling interests ...........c.c.ceveveuene (19,736) (18,790) (10,139)  (8,879) (11,376) (7,710)  (4,000) (2,173)
Equity attributable to Brookfield............. $15388 $15371 $ 4,143 § 3,793 § 2,098 $ 1934 § 2,064 § 1,865
REVENUES...c.vvviieeieiiiieicenieeieceeeeeiees $ 6135 $ 5352 $ 2,625 $ 2,516 $ 3,535 $ 2,115 $22,823 § 7,960
Net income attributable to: -

Non-controlling interests...........c.c......... $ 2234 § 1,501 $ 103 $ 97 $ 569 $ 408 $ 29 § (170)

Shareholders..........coeecerreerennecninnnee 234 1,216 (52) 57 5 120 (81) (32)

$ 2468 $ 2,717 § 51 § 40 $ 574 $ 528 § 215 § (202)

Other comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:

Non-controlling interests............coeuu.. $ 532 $§ (B6)$ 78 $ 915 $§ 269 $ 426 $ 64 § 101
Shareholders.........c.ccovueuvvrerieriinerenenenn 348 (210) 564 414 54 150 45 32
$ 880 $ (246) $ 1,350 $ 1329 $ 323 § 576 $ 109 $ 133

The summarized cash flows of the company’s subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests are as follows:

BPY BEP BIP BBU

fﬁﬁ{%ﬁ?}ims ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Cash flows from (used in):

Operating activities ..........coeeeverveeruenne $ 639 § 745 $ 928 § 632 $ 1481 $ 753 $§ 290 § 229

Financing activities ........c.ccoceeevereeeneene. 1,248 2,906 27 2,709 3,814 899 1,353 586

Investing activities ........c.covvevecrrruerencnee (1,886)  (3,234) (328) (3,191) (5,721)  (1,058)  (1,595) (96)
Distributions paid to non-controlling

interests in common equity.................... $ 255 $ 250 $ 227 § 201 $ 48 $ 383 § 9 § 2

141 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



5. ACQUISITIONS OF CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES
a) Completed During 2017

The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of business combinations that occurred in the year ended
December 31, 2017. No material changes were made to the provisional allocations:

Renewable Real Estate
(MILLIONS) Power Private Equity  Infrastructure and Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents ...............cccocoeveveneen. $ 762 $ 335 % 89 $ 39§ 1,225
Accounts receivable and other............cc........... 980 2,393 345 134 3,852
INVentory ..o — 701 — 3 704
Equity accounted investments ..............c.cco...... — 231 — — 231
Investment properties ........c..coceceeveverveerrenneuennee — — — 5,851 5,851
Property, plant and equipment..............cccoeueene. 6,923 501 100 281 7,805
Intangible asSets.........ccevveverierierierieriereseeenene 27 2,870 5,515 — 8,412
GOOAWilL..oovveiiiiiiciieieeteee e — 342 815 — 1,157
Deferred income tax assets..........ccecereeereeeeenne 18 59 — — 77
Total ASSELS....eevieeeirieieeeieee et 8,710 7,432 6,864 6,308 29,314
Less:
Accounts payable and other............c.ccceeuennene (1,391) (2,109) (222) (169) 3,891)
Non-recourse borrowings............cceeeeverveennne. (4,902) (1,678) (30) (1,955) (8,565)
Deferred income tax liabilities....................... (59) (806) (957) (45) (1,867)
Non-controlling nterests’ ..o, (830) (826) “477) (123) (2,256)
(7,182) (5,419) (1,686) (2,292) (16,579)
Net assets acquired ..........ocoovevevvveverrerverenenennen $ 1,528 $ 2,013 $ 5,178  $ 4,016 $ 12,735
CONSIAETAONT oo $ 1,528 § 2,006 $ 5178 $ 3845 $ 12,557

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition
2. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests that participated in the acquisition as investors in Brookfield-sponsored private funds or as
co-investors

Brookfield recorded $15.9 billion of revenue and $694 million of net income in 2017 from the acquired operations as a result of
the acquisitions made during the year. If the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the year, they would have contributed
$25.5 billion and $1 billion to total revenue and net income, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of significant business combinations that occurred in 2017:

Renewable Power Private Equity Infrastructure Real Estate

Manu- Mumbai

TerraForm  TerraForm factured Houston Office

(MILLIONS) Power Global BRK  Greenergy NTS Housing Center Portfolio
Cash and cash equivalents.......... $ 149 § 611 $ 296 $ 28§ 89 § 16 $ — 3 11
Accounts receivable and other ... 707 266 1,043 1,290 317 79 22 12
INVENtOry ....ooveeeeeeeeicieeieeceee — — 10 650 — — — —
Equity accounted investments.... — — 109 114 — — — —
Investment properties ................. — — — — — 2,107 825 679
Property, plant and equipment.... 5,678 1,208 200 154 — — — —
Intangible assets ........c.coeeerennene — — 2,467 212 5,515 — — —
GoOdWill ..o — — 17 92 804 — — —
Deferred income tax assets......... — 18 50 9 — — — —
Total assets 6,534 2,103 4,192 2,549 6,725 2,202 847 702

Less:

Accounts payable and other .... (1,239) (142) (227) (1,744) (202) (36) (28) (44)
Non-recourse borrowings........ (3,714) (1,188) (1,468) (210) — (1,261) — (511)
Deferred income tax liabilities (33) (15) (746) (52) (946) — — (45)
Non-controlling interests'........ (829) ) (745) 81) 477) (30) _ _
(5,815) (1,346) (3,186) (2,087) (1,625) (1,327) (28) (600)

Net assets acquired..........oovuennne $ 719 $ 757 $ 1,006 $ 462 $ 5100 $ 875 §$ 819 $ 102
Consideration” .........cccovvvereven $ 719 $ 757 $ 1,006 $ 462 $ 5,100 $ 768 $ 819 § 102

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition
2. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests that participated in the acquisition as investors in Brookfield-sponsored private funds or as
co-investors

Significant acquisitions completed in 2017 include:

On March 9,2017, a subsidiary of the company acquired Manufactured Housing, a portfolio of manufactured housing communities
in the U.S., for total consideration of $768 million, including $578 million cash consideration with the remainder funded through
debt financing. The acquisition was made through a Brookfield-sponsored real estate fund and generated a bargain purchase gain
of $107 million recorded in fair value changes as a result of changes in the underlying market conditions subsequent to signing
the purchase and sale agreement in the second quarter of 2016. Excluding the impact of the bargain purchase gain, total revenues
and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year are $237 million and
$86 million, respectively.

On April 4, 2017, we acquired a 90% ownership interest in Nova Transportadora do Sudeste S.A. (“NTS”), a Brazilian regulated
gas transmission business, alongside our institutional partners. Total consideration paid by the consortium was $5.1 billion, which
consists of a cash consideration of $4.2 billion and deferred consideration of less than $1 billion payable five years from the close
of'the transaction. Upon acquisition of NTS, an additional deferred tax liability of $893 million was recorded. The deferred income
tax liability arose as the tax bases of the net assets acquired were lower than their fair values. The inclusion of this liability in the
net book value of the acquired business gave rise to goodwill of $804 million which is recoverable so long as the tax circumstances
that gave rise to the goodwill do not change. To date, no such changes have occurred. None of the goodwill recognized is deductible
for income tax purposes. Total revenues and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the
beginning of the year are $1.3 billion and $660 million, respectively.

On April 25, 2017, a subsidiary of the company acquired a 70% interest in BRK Ambiental Participa¢des S.A. (“BRK”™), a
Brazilian water treatment business, together with institutional investors, for total consideration of $1,006 million. BRK owns
several other investments, all at different ownership levels. Total revenues and net income that would have been recorded if the
transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year are $758 million and $64 million, respectively.
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OnMay 10,2017, asubsidiary of the company acquired an 85% ownership interest of Greenergy Fuels Holdings Ltd. (“Greenergy”),
a U K. road fuel provider, together with our institutional partners. The acquisition was made for total consideration of $462 million.
Total revenues and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year are
$19.8 billion and $26 million, respectively.

On October 16, 2017, a subsidiary of the company, along with its institutional partners, acquired a 51% interest in TerraForm
Power, Inc., a large scale diversified portfolio of solar and wind assets located predominantly in the U.S., for total consideration
of $719 million. Total revenues and net loss that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the
year are $622 million and $46 million, respectively.

On December 1, 2017, a subsidiary of the company acquired Houston Center, a 4.2 million square foot mixed-use office and retail
complex in Houston, Texas, for total consideration of $819 million, including $175 million cash consideration with the remainder
funded through debt financing. As of December 31, 2017, the valuation of investment properties was still under evaluation.
Accordingly, they have been accounted for on a provisional basis. Total revenues and net income that would have been recorded
if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year are $120 million and $26 million, respectively.

On December 7, 2017, a subsidiary of the company acquired a portfolio of 14 office properties with 2.7 million square feet of
office space in Mumbai, India (“Mumbai Office Portfolio™), for total consideration of $102 million. As of December 31, 2017,
the valuations of investment properties acquired and debt obligations assumed were still under evaluation. Accordingly, they have
been accounted for on a provisional basis. Total revenues and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had
occurred at the beginning of the year are $53 million and $1 million, respectively.

On December 28, 2017, a subsidiary of the company, along with its institutional partners, acquired a 100% interest in TerraForm
Global, Inc., a large scale diversified portfolio of solar and wind assets located predominantly in Asia and South America, for total
consideration of $757 million. Total revenues and net loss that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the
beginning of the year are $249 million and $33 million, respectively.

b) Completed During 2016

The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of business combinations that occurred in 2016. No material
changes were made to the provisional allocations disclosed in the 2016 consolidated financial statements:

Renewable Infrastructure

(MILLIONS) Real Estate Power and Other Total

Cash and cash equivalents...........coceceeieienienenienieneneeeeeeeeeen $ 119 § 117 $ 155  $ 391

Accounts receivable and other ............cccoeevveiieciiiiiicciiciecceeceee 155 177 672 1,004

INVENtOTY .voveeeeeeeieeeeeeeeieenen 10 15 39 64

Equity accounted investments — — 115 115

Investment ProPerties ..........oceiivirieiiiniiiiiiiiiiccceceee s 9,234 — — 9,234

Property, plant and equipmMent.............coeeveiririeineineeeeeeenes 652 5,741 1,067 7,460

INtangible ASSELS ..c.eeueeuieiiiiierieriereeet s 2 — 1,225 1,227

Goodwill 17 799 470 1,286

Deferred inCOME taX @SSELS.....ccceuerrererrerieririeririiieierieteeeene et seens 2 — 12 14

TOtAl ASSELS ...veueiieeieiieiietet et s 10,191 6,849 3,755 20,795

Less:

Accounts payable and other ...........c.coceoeirerriniineine e (413) (385) (318) (1,116)
NoN-recourse bOITOWINGS ..........ccceuerueirierieirieieiieeeereeeseeeeeeeenens (2,859) (1,130) (1,161) (5,150)
Deferred income tax liabilities.... 39 (1,020) (263) (1,318)
Non-controlling interests' ...........coo..evverrrererverereseseseesessesesseeeeseesesonn. (33) (1,417) (1,402) (2,852)

(3,340) (3,952) (3,144) (10,436)

Net aSSets ACQUITEM .......eeeuirieuirieiriiieinieertec ettt $ 6,851 $ 2,897 $ 611 $ 10,359

CONSIACTAON ... $ 6,824 $ 2,897 $ 611 $ 10,332

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition

2. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests
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Brookfield recorded $1.7 billion of revenue and $223 million of net income from the acquired operations as a result of the
acquisitions made during the year. If the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the year, they would have contributed
$3.0 billion and $230 million to total revenue and net income, respectively.

The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of significant business combinations that occurred in 2016:

Real Estate Renewable Power Infrastructure
IFC Simply City Student
(MILLIONS) Rouse Seoul Storage Point  Housing Isagen Holtwood Rutas Niska Linx
Cash and cash
equivalents ............o..... $ 32 8% 25 % 16 § 1 § 33 § 113 § — $ 115 8 15§ 12
Accounts receivable and
(611115 94 13 28 5 3 174 1 121 99 232
Inventory ........ccocevveveennene — — 2 — — 15 — — 39 —
Equity accounted
INVEStMEnts ........coeeeenne — — — — — — — — — 115
Investment properties..... 3,010 1,911 1,044 742 608 — — — — —
Property, plant and
equipment..........cc.co..... 13 303 — — — 4,772 859 6 825 229
Intangible assets..... — 2 — — 1 — — 973 — 69
Goodwill ......coeerennen — — — 12 5 799 — 139 82 210
Deferred income tax
ASSELS cuvrvreiereeeierereaan — 2 — — — — — — — —
Total assets........cccevuennene 3,149 2,256 1,090 760 650 5,873 860 1,354 1,060 867
Less:
Accounts payable and
other.....ccocevveeneinnne. (231) (107) (12) 6) (49) (381) (1) 7 (71) (148)
Non-recourse
borrowings................. (1,840) — (592) — (202) (1,130) — (441) (337) (181)
Deferred income tax
liabilities.......ccccoeeueneee — (35) — — —  (1,019) — (153) a7 (33)
Non-controlling
interests' .........c........ (15) — (15) — 2) (1,417) — (626) (348) (360)
(2,086) (142) (619) (6) (253) (3,947 1 1,227 (833) (722)
Net assets acquired......... $ 1,063 $2,114 § 471 $ 754 $ 397 $1926 $ 859 $ 127 $ 227 § 145
Consideration”................ $ 1,063 $2114 $ 471 $§ 754 $ 397 $1,926 $ 859 $ 127 § 227 $ 145

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition
2. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests

InJanuary 2016, a subsidiary of the company acquired an initial 57.6% interest in Isagen S.A. E.S.P. (“Isagen”) from the Colombian
government for total consideration of $1.9 billion with a cash contribution of $510 million funded by non-recourse borrowings and
$1.2 billion from the subsidiary’s institutional partners. Isagen is Colombia’s third-largest power generation company which owns
and operates a 3,032-megawatt (“MW?”) portfolio, consisting predominantly of six, largely reservoir-based, hydroelectric facilities.

Following the acquisition, the subsidiary of the company was required to conduct two mandatory tender offers (the “MTOs”) for
the remaining publicly held shares at the same price per share paid for the 57.6% controlling interest. The first MTO closed in
May 2016, in which the subsidiary acquired an additional 26% of economic interest for $929 million. The second MTO closed
in September 2016 with total consideration of $605 million, and the subsidiary effectively owns 99.64% of Isagen as of September
30, 2016 after giving effect to the initial acquisition and the two MTOs. The company is accounting for the initial acquisition of
the 57.6% controlling interest and the MTOs as separate transactions. The acquisition resulted in $799 million of goodwill due to
the recognition of a deferred tax liability because the tax bases of the Isagen net assets are significantly lower than their acquisition
date fair value. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of
the year would have been $886 million and $120 million, respectively.
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In March 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a self-storage (“Simply Storage”) operation for total
consideration of $471 million with a cash contribution of $372 million. Total revenue and net income that would have been
recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $105 million and $71 million, respectively.

In April 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a portfolio of student housing assets (“Student Housing”)
for total consideration of $397 million with a cash contribution of $209 million. Total revenue and net income that would have
been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $42 million and $5 million, respectively.

In April 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of hydroelectric facilities in Pennsylvania (“Holtwood”) for
total cash consideration of $859 million. Total revenue and net loss that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred
at the beginning of the year would have been $46 million and $1 million, respectively.

In June 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a portfolio of toll roads in Peru (“Rutas”) for total
consideration of $127 million with a cash contribution of $118 million. Total revenue and net loss that would have been recorded
if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $122 million and $6 million, respectively.

In July 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a North American gas storage business (“Niska”) for total
consideration of $227 million with a cash contribution of $67 million and senior notes already owned by the subsidiary. The
subsidiary remeasured its existing senior notes to fair value of $141 million at the acquisition date with a remeasurement gain of
$24 million recorded in the income. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred
at the beginning of the year would have been $136 million and $29 million, respectively.

In July 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a retail mall business (“Rouse”) for total consideration of
$1.1 billion with a cash contribution of $587 million. The subsidiary accounted for the acquisition as a step acquisition, and
remeasured its existing 33% equity interest in Rouse to fair value of $354 million at the acquisition date with no material
remeasurement gain or loss. Total revenue and net loss that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the
beginning of the year would have been $335 million and $58 million, respectively.

In August 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of an Australia port business (“Linx”) for total consideration
of $145 million, comprising $13 million in cash and a portion of the subsidiary’s previously existing interest with an acquisition
date fair value of $132 million. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the
beginning of the year would have been $504 million and $12 million, respectively.

In December 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a mixed-use property in South Korea (“IFC Seoul”)
and an office tower in U.K. (“City Point”) for total consideration of $2.1 billion with a cash contribution of $875 million and
$754 million with a cash contribution of $147 million, respectively. The subsidiary accounts for the City Point acquisition as a
step acquisition and remeasured its existing loan interest to fair value at acquisition date of $93 million with a remeasurement loss
of $34 million. If the transactions had occurred at the beginning of the year, total revenue and net loss for IFC Seoul would have
been $170 million and $18 million, whereas total revenue and net loss for City Point would have been $49 million and $35 million.
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6. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables list the company’s financial instruments by their respective classification as at December 31,2017 and 2016:

a) Financial Instrument Classification

Loans and
Aseee 00 T ot or L Mot Sale  Financia Lisbilities
MEASUREMENT BASIS (Fair Value) (Fair Value) (Amortized Cost) Total
Financial assets’
Cash and cash equivalents............c..c........ $ — 3 — 3 5,139 $§ 5,139
Other financial assets
Government bonds ...........cceeeveeieniennnnn. 34 15 — 49
Corporate bonds ........c.cceceveerinccnnenne 382 253 8 643
Fixed income securities and other......... 230 432 — 662
Common shares and warrants ............... 585 1,247 — 1,832
Loans and notes receivable.................... 63 — 1,551 1,614
1,294 1,947 1,559 4,800
Accounts receivable and other” ............... 1,383 — 8,233 9,616
$ 2,677 $ 1,947 $ 14931 $ 19,555
Financial liabilities
Corporate borrowings ..........coceevevevevenenen. $ — 3 — 3 5,659 $ 5,659
Property-specific borrowings................... — — 63,721 63,721
Subsidiary borrowings............ccceeeveenenne — — 9,009 9,009
Accounts payable and other? v, 3,841 — 14,124 17,965
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 1,559 — 2,102 3,661
$ 5,400 $ — 3 94,615 $ 100,015
1. Financial assets include $4.1 billion of assets pledged as collateral
2. Includes derivative instruments which are elected for hedge accounting, totaling $630 million included in accounts receivable and other and $950 million included in

accounts payable and other, for which changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income
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Loans and

AR B -20re ot or 1o Aor Sale Financial Liabilities
MEASUREMENT BASIS (Fair Value) (Fair Value) (Amortized Cost) Total
Financial assets’
Cash and cash equivalents........................ $ — 3 — 3 4299 $ 4,299
Other financial assets
Government bonds 22 32 — 54
Corporate bonds........ccceeceveeeerienienennens 13 342 — 355
Fixed income securities and other......... 170 335 — 505
Common shares and warrants ............... 1,630 952 — 2,582
Loans and notes receivable.................... 62 — 1,142 1,204
1,897 1,661 1,142 4,700
Accounts receivable and other” ............... 1,501 — 5,298 6,799
$ 3,398 $ 1,661 $ 10,739 $ 15,798
Financial liabilities
Corporate borrowings.............cceeereeenann. $ — 3 — 3 4,500 $ 4,500
Property-specific borrowings................... — — 52,442 52,442
Subsidiary borrowings...........cccceeueueruennne — — 7,949 7,949
Accounts payable and other? v, 2,019 — 9,896 11,915
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 1,439 — 2,126 3,565
$ 3458 $ — 3 76,913 $ 80,371
1. Total financial assets include $2.5 billion of assets pledged as collateral
2. Includes derivative instruments which are elected for hedge accounting, totaling $1 billion included in accounts receivable and other and $528 million included in accounts

payable and other, for which changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) financial assets are presented
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the period in which they arise. Dividends from FVTPL and available-for-sale
financial assets are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations when the company’s right to receive payment is
established. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets is calculated using the effective interest method and reported in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Available-for-sale securities are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair value recorded through other
comprehensive income. These securities are assessed for impairment at each reporting date, with any impairment charges reported
in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. As at December 31, 2017, the unrealized gains and losses relating to the fair value
of available-for-sale securities amounted to $26 million (2016 — $286 million) and $nil (2016 — $28 million), respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, $69 million of net deferred losses (2016 — $391 million) previously recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income were reclassified to net income as a result of the disposition or impairment of available-
for-sale financial assets.

Included in cash and cash equivalents is $4.5 billion (2016 — $3.8 billion) of cash and $635 million (2016 — $454 million) of short-
term deposits as at December 31, 2017.
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b) Carrying and Fair Value

The following table provides the carrying values and fair values of financial instruments as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
8/511/2{1]2)]15\1%)31 Car\lzllll:% Fair Value Car{f};ﬁ% Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents...........cccoeerererereeieieieeeseee e $ 5,139 § 5,139 4299 §$ 4,299
Other financial assets
Government BONAS..........ccuevvevrerierieieieieeeeeeeeese e 49 49 54 54
Corporate DONAS.......cc.eeueeieieierieneeeeeieeeeeeee e 643 643 355 355
Fixed income securities and other...........ccccccoeevveviieciiiieeeennnnn, 662 662 505 505
Common shares and Warrants..............c.cccoeeeeveeeeiveeeereeeeeeeennen. 1,832 1,832 2,582 2,582
Loans and notes receivable...........cooovvivviiiiieiiiieiiieceeeeeeas 1,614 1,657 1,204 1,204
4,800 4,843 4,700 4,700
Accounts receivable and other ..........cocvvvvvviviiiiiiiiieeieiee s 9,616 9,616 6,799 6,799
$ 19,555 $ 19,598 15,798  $ 15,798
Financial liabilities
COorporate DOITOWINGS........ceveeeieierienierieseereeeeeetesessessesseeseenas $ 5,659 $ 6,087 4,500 $ 4,771
Property-specific DOITOWINGS .......cccoveerverieirieieeieirececeeine 63,721 65,399 52,442 53,512
Subsidiary BOITOWINGS. ......ccveuerueeetireeieieieeeeieceteeeie e 9,009 9,172 7,949 8,103
Accounts payable and Other ...........cccevevenininieniieiieieeneenee 17,965 17,965 11,915 11,915
Subsidiary equity obligations.........c..cccevevveirieenenieineenenieennene 3,661 3,661 3,565 3,567
$ 100,015 $ 102,284 80,371 $ 81,868
The current and non-current balances of other financial assets are as follows:
(MILLIONS) | 2017 2016
(1T ¢ oY SRR 2,568 $ 3,229
INODIECUITEIE ...ttt e et e e e e e ae e e eaeeeeaeeeenaeeeeaeeeeseeeenteseeseseaneeesnneseeneeeaneeeannees 2,232 1,471
TOTAL .ttt ettt e et e et e et ettt e et et e et e et e et e e e et e et e et et et e eaateteenaeeneas 4,800 $ 4,700
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¢) Fair Value Hierarchy Levels

The following table categorizes financial assets and liabilities, which are carried at fair value, based upon the fair value
hierarchy levels:

2017 2016
fﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁl Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Government bonds...........ocveveeeveeceeeeeeeieene $ — S 49 $ — S 11 3 43 3 —
Corporate bonds.........cccoeeererenenecncrnenieenn 127 508 — 175 173 7
Fixed income securities and other .................. 20 233 409 36 178 291
Common shares and warrants...............c..c..... 1,586 — 246 1,309 — 1,273

Loans and notes receivables

Accounts receivable and other

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable and other..............cccceceveeenene $ 134 $ 3,003 $ 704 $ 98 $ 1,859 $ 62
Subsidiary equity obligations .............cccccvueunne. — — 1,559 — 52 1,387
$ 134 $ 3,003 $ 2,263 $ 98 § 1,911 $ 1,449

During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3.

Fair values of financial instruments are determined by reference to quoted bid or ask prices, as appropriate. If bid and ask prices
are unavailable, the closing price of the most recent transaction of that instrument is used. In the absence of an active market, fair
values are determined based on prevailing market rates for instruments with similar characteristics and risk profiles or internal or
external valuation models, such as option pricing models and discounted cash flow analysis, using observable market inputs.

The following table summarizes the valuation techniques and key inputs used in the fair value measurement of Level 2
financial instruments:

(MILLIONS) Carrying Value

Type of Asset/Liability Dec. 31,2017 Valuation Techniques and Key Inputs

Derivative assets/Derivative $ 1,155/ Foreign currency forward contracts — discounted cash flow model — forward
liabilities (accounts receivable/ 3.003 exchange rates (from observable forward exchange rates at the end of the
accounts payable)..................... (3,003) reporting period) and discounted at credit adjusted rate

Interest rate contracts — discounted cash flow model — forward interest rates
(from observable yield curves) and applicable credit spreads discounted at a
credit adjusted rate

Energy derivatives — quoted market prices, or in their absence internal
valuation models, corroborated with observable market data

Other financial assets .................. 852  Valuation models based on observable market data

Fair values determined using valuation models requiring the use of unobservable inputs (Level 3 financial assets and liabilities),
include assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and discount rates. In determining those
unobservable inputs, the company uses observable external market inputs such as interest rate yield curves, currency rates and
price and rate volatilities, as applicable, to develop assumptions regarding those unobservable inputs.
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The following table summarizes the valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement
of Level 3 financial instruments:

Carrying Value Valuation
Dec. 31,2017 Techniques

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Relationship of Unobservable
Inputs to Fair Value

(MILLIONS)
Type of Asset/Liability

Fixed income securities and

Warrants (common shares and
AVE V021 111) R

Limited-life funds (subsidiary
equity obligations) ...............

Derivative assets/Derivative
liabilities (accounts
receivable/payable)..............

409 Discounted cash
flows

246 Black-Scholes
model

(1,559) Discounted cash

flows

213/ Discounted cash
flows

(704)

* Future cash flows

* Discount rate

Volatility

* Term to maturity

» Risk free interest rate

Future cash flows

* Discount rate

* Terminal
capitalization rate

Investment horizon

Future cash flows

» Forward exchange
rates (from
observable forward

Increases (decreases) in
future cash flows increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
discount rate decrease
(increase) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
volatility increase (decreases)
fair value

Increases (decreases) in term
to maturity increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in the
risk-free interest rate increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
future cash flows increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
discount rate decrease
(increase) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
terminal capitalization

rate decrease (increase) fair
value

Increases (decreases) in the
investment horizon decrease
(increase) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
future cash flows increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in the
forward exchange rate
increase (decrease) fair value

exchange rates at the
end of the reporting
period)

* Discount rate Increases (decreases) in
discount rate decrease

(increase) fair value

The following table presents the change in the balance of financial assets and liabilities classified as Level 3 as at December 31,
2017 and 2016:

Financial Financial

Assets Liabilities
(FI\C/[’IRLE%ENgARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016
Balance, beginning 0f Year..........cccccvuiuiiiiiiininiiiiiicce $ 1,739 § 1,691 $ 1,449 §$ 1,261
Fair value changes in net iNCOME ............cceoereirenieinenenereeesec e (313) (102) ?2) 48
Fair value changes in other comprehensive income’................cocoevivvevcreeeenne. 5 (12) 67 35
Additions, net of disposals... (562) 162 749 105
Balance, end Of YEaT ......c.ccvevieriririieeeeeteteeee ettt $ 869 $ 1,739  $ 2,263 $ 1,449

1. Includes foreign currency translation
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The following table categorizes liabilities measured at amortized cost, but for which fair values are disclosed based upon the fair
value hierarchy levels:

2017 2016
E}VSH’E{%%CS-)“ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Corporate borrowings..........c.ceeeeeevveenenreenennne $ 6,087 $ — 3 — 3 4,771 § — —
Property-specific borrowings .........cceceeeververvenene 2,123 24,502 38,774 1,360 16,724 35,428
Subsidiary borrowings 3,825 2,030 3,317 2,872 2,451 2,780
Subsidiary equity obligations..........c..ccceeevveeene — — 2,102 — 2,128

Fair values of Level 2 and Level 3 liabilities measured at amortized cost but for which fair values are disclosed are determined
using valuation techniques such as adjusted public pricing and discounted cash flows.

d) Hedging Activities

The company uses derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments to manage or maintain exposures to interest, currency,
credit and other market risks. For certain derivatives which are used to manage exposures, the company determines whether hedge
accounting can be applied. When hedge accounting may be applied, a hedge relationship may be designated as a fair value hedge,
cash flow hedge or a hedge of foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation. To qualify for hedge accounting,
the derivative must be highly effective inaccomplishing the objective of offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk both at inception and over the life of the hedge. If it is determined that the derivative is not highly effective as
a hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.

i. Cash Flow Hedges

The company uses the following cash flow hedges: energy derivative contracts to hedge the sale of power; interest rate swaps to
hedge the variability in cash flows or future cash flows related to a variable rate asset or liability; and equity derivatives to hedge
long-term compensation arrangements. For the year ended December 31,2017, pre-tax net unrealized gains of $42 million (2016 —
net unrealized gains of $149 million) were recorded in other comprehensive income for the effective portion of the cash flow
hedges. As at December 31, 2017, there was an unrealized derivative asset balance of $349 million relating to derivative contracts
designated as cash flow hedges (2016 — $260 million asset).

ii. Net Investment Hedges

The company uses foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency denominated debt instruments to manage its foreign currency
exposures arising from net investments in foreign operations. For the year ended December 31,2017, unrealized pre-tax net losses
of $748 million (2016 — net unrealized gains of $129 million) were recorded in other comprehensive income for the effective
portion of hedges of net investments in foreign operations. As at December 31, 2017, there was an unrealized derivative liability
balance of $676 million relating to derivative contracts designated as net investment hedges (2016 —asset balance of $236 million).

e) Netting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets where the company
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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The company enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”) master netting
agreements. In general, under such agreements the amounts owed by each counterparty on a single day are aggregated into a single
net amount that is payable by one party to the other. The agreements provide the company with the legal and enforceable right to
offset these amounts and accordingly the following balances are presented net in the consolidated financial statements:

Accounts Receivable Accounts Payable

and Other and Other
ﬁlﬁ%‘f\‘%ﬂ 2017 2016 2017 2016
Gross amounts of financial instruments before netting .............cocoeevereoiinnineinenenne $ 1,605 $ 1,625 $ 2,124 § 1,186
Gross amounts of financial instruments set-off in Consolidated Balance Sheets........... (223) (124) (267) (154)
Net amount of financial instruments in Consolidated Balance Sheets.............ccccucun...... $ 1382 §$§ 1,501 $ 1,857 § 1,032

No financial instruments that were subject to master netting agreements or for which collateral has been posted were not set off
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER

AT DRC! Note 2017 2016
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE ....c.viiiiiiieiieiieeee ettt ettt see s (a) $ 7,209 $ 4,294
Prepaid expenses and other aSSetS.........ceveriririeieiieieierereee et (a) 3,350 3,448
RESIIICIEA CASN ...ttt e eaeeeaeeas (b) 1,024 1,004
Sustainable resources (c) 390 387
TOTAL ..ttt ettt ettt ea ettt b et s et b st et es et e st s etese s enenenen $ 11,973 § 9,133

The current and non-current balances of accounts receivable and other are as follows:

AT DRC! 2017 2016
.3 8,492 § 6,490

3,481 2,643

TOA e sees e $ 11,973 § 9,133

a) Accounts Receivable and Other Assets

We acquired $3.9 billion of accounts receivable during 2017 through business combinations (2016 — $1.0 billion), with significant
contributions from BRK and Greenergy in our Private Equity segment and TERP in our Renewable Power segment. Increases
from new acquisitions were partially offset by decreases in our Brazilian residential business, in which the balance decreased by
approximately $240 million primarily due to lower sales volume in the current year. Accounts receivable includes $209 million
(2016 — $302 million) of unrealized mark-to-market gains on energy sales contracts and $433 million (2016 — $663 million) of
completed contracts and work-in-progress related to contracted sales from the company’s residential development operations.

b) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily relates to the company’s real estate, renewable power and private equity financing arrangements including
defeasement of debt obligations, debt service accounts and deposits held by the company’s insurance operations.

¢) Sustainable Resources

The company held 1.7 million acres of consumable freehold timberlands at December 31, 2017 (2016 — 1.7 million), representing
40.6 million cubic meters (2016 — 40.8 million) of mature timber and timber available for harvest. Additionally, the company
provides management services to approximately 1.3 million acres (2016 — 1.3 million) of licensed timberlands.
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The following table presents the change in the balance of timberlands and other agricultural assets:

(Fﬁﬁ{%—([)%\é)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Balance, beginning Of YEAT ........cc.evuiruieieieieieieieesie ettt ettt ettt se e e s ensensensens $ 387 $ 355
Additions, NEt OF AISPOSAIS......cviriiriirtieiietieieiee ettt ettt et e eteeteeseeseessessensesansens 78 58
Fair value adjuStmeNntS .........coouiiiriieietiet ettt 21 30
Decrease dUE t0 NATVESL .......ccviiiiiieice ettt sttt et et e e ebeesaeenseesaeenaessaenseenseas (103) (76)
FOreign currenCy Chan@es ..........couevueruiruietinieiieiiet ettt ettt ettt e 7 20
Balance, end OF YEAT .......c.couciiiiiiiiei ettt $ 390 $ 387

The carrying values are based on external appraisals completed annually as at December 31. The appraisals utilize a combination
of the discounted cash flow and sales comparison approaches to arrive at the estimated value. The significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) included in the discounted cash flow models used when determining the fair value of standing timber and agricultural

assets include:

Relationship of Unobservable Inputs
to Fair Value

Mitigating Factors

Valuation Significant
Techniques Unobservable Inputs
Discounted * Future cash flows
cash flow

analysis

* Timber / agricultural
prices

* Discount rate/
terminal
capitalization rate

» Exit Date

* Increases (decreases) in future cash
flows increase (decrease) fair value

* Increases (decreases) in price increase
(decrease) fair value

* Increases (decreases) in discount rate or
terminal capitalization rate decrease
(increase) fair value

* Increases (decreases) in exit date
decrease (increase) fair value

* Increases (decreases) in cash flows tend to

be accompanied by increases (decreases) in
discount rates that may offset changes in
fair value from cash flows

Increases (decreases) in price tend to be
accompanied by increases (decreases) in
discount rates that may offset changes in
fair value from price

Decreases (increases) in discount rates or
terminal capitalization rates tend to be
accompanied by increases (decreases) in
cash flows that may offset changes in fair
value from rates

Increases (decreases) in the exit date tend
to be the result of changing cash flow
profiles that may result in higher (lower)
growth in cash flows prior to stabilizing in
the terminal year

Key valuation assumptions include a weighted-average discount and terminal capitalization rate of 5.7% (2016 — 5.9%), and
terminal valuation dates of 30 years (2016 — 30 years). Timber and agricultural asset prices were based on a combination of forward
prices available in the market and price forecasts.
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8. INVENTORY

AP 2017 2016
Residential properties under development.... $ 2,245 $ 2,215
Land held for deVeIOPMENL...........c.ocviiviiuiiiieieieieteciecteete ettt er et eas s e s esesaeere e 1,922 1,609
Completed residential PrOPETLIES ........c.eceeveeeeeeieereereeteereereere et ee et e e s e e eseereeseersensenseseeseeseereens 917 952
Industrial products and OthET ...........cccccuirierieriiiiicieeeceeteee ettt e b b et ereesaessessensens 1,227 573
TOTAL 1.cetieteteeit ettt ettt ettt ettt b et st e b et et bt se s bt s e st e st s st eas s b ese e s s etnnsenens $ 6,311 $ 5,349

The current and non-current balances of inventory are as follows:

A5 sTpac 2017 2016
(1 1s (o | RS $ 3,585 § 2,987
JAS Ty 4= 1L RO 2,726 2,362
8 2171 SRRSO $ 6,311 $ 5,349

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the company recognized $15.2 billion (2016 — $4.7 billion) of inventory relating to
cost of goods sold and $37 million (2016 — $85 million) relating to impairments of inventory as expenses. The carrying amount
of inventory pledged as collateral at December 31, 2017 was $2.9 billion (2016 — $2.4 billion).

9. HELD FOR SALE

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities classified as held for sale as at December 31, 2017 and December 31,
2016:

2017 2016
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁl Real Estate Other Total Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents..........c.ccoeoeveriiineinennincecceene $ 20 $ — 3 20 $ 8
Accounts receivables and other............ooovvviiiiiiiiciecec e 44 — 44 134
INVESMENT PIOPEITIES ....eoviveeirenietiieeieieieteeteieete st eseseeneeaeseeseeens 1,007 — 1,007 165
Property, plant and equipment.............ccccccvererireeneneineeeeeene 475 15 490 58
Other 10NZ-tEIM ASSELS .......evrvereriiriererirerrereierenieresensereteereereneeseesenenes 44 — 44 67
Assets classified as held for sale $ 1,590 §$ 15 3 1,605 § 432
Liabilities -
Accounts payable and Other ..........cccvveveinnecinnerecenneeceeneeenes $ 212 $ — 3 212§ 67
Property-specific BOITOWINES .........cceverveirieininieiniereineeeeeeeieaen 1,212 — 1,212 60
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale ................. $ 1,424  $ — 3 1,424 § 127

As at December 31, 2017, assets held for sale within the company’s Real Estate segment include interests in two office properties
located in Toronto, a hotel and casino located in Las Vegas and thirteen other real estate assets. The company intends to sell
controlling interests in these properties to third parties in the next 12 months.

During the year, the company sold certain assets and subsidiaries. Within our real estate business, a New York office property was
sold for net proceeds of approximately $680 million in the second quarter of 2017, a UK. office property was sold for
approximately $152 million in the third quarter of 2017 and our European logistics business was sold for net proceeds of
approximately $1.9 billion in the fourth quarter of 2017. Additionally, within our private equity business, our bath and shower
products manufacturing business was sold for proceeds of approximately $357 million in the first quarter of 2017.
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10. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS

The following table presents the ownership interests and carrying values of the company’s investments in associates and joint
ventures, all of which are accounted for using the equity method:

Ownership Interest Carrying Value
AS AT DEC. 31 Investment
(MILLIONS) Type 2017 2016 2017 2016
Real estate
GGP InC. (“GGP”) et Associate 34% 29% $ 8,844 § 7,453
Canary Wharf Group plc (“Canary Wharf”).......ccocoeveviiinnnn. Joint Venture 50% 50% 3,284 2,866
Manhattan West, New York! oo, ... Joint Venture 56% 56% 1,439 1,214
Other real estate joint ventures' Joint Venture 12 —90% 12 - 90% 4,565 3,651
Other real estate INVeStMENtS' .........o.ovevvverevereeeeeeeeeeeeenes Associate 10-90% 19 -90% 1,465 1,444
19,597 16,628
Renewable power
Renewable power investments. ..........cccoeoveereeiricieenieinceeennes Associate 14-50% 14 -50% 509 206
Infrastructure
Brazilian tol] 10ad .........cooevurieieeeirieieeis e Associate 60% 57% 2,109 1,703
North American natural gas transmission operations.................. Joint Venture 50% 50% 1,013 806
South American transmission OPErations.........c.eevevevverveereerennens Associate 28% 28% 930 699
Brazilian rail and port operations Associate 27% 27% 1,046 901
European communications buSiness ..........ccceeevvevivevieiiiiiinennns Associate 45% 45% 1,607 1,313
Australian ports OPeration.........eceeeeveueeieierinieiereieeieeeeeeee Associate 50% 50% 740 693
Other infrastructure INVEStMENtS. ......c.cocvereveeeeriverreeneenieneeneenne Associate 11 -50% 11 -50% 1,348 1,231
8,793 7,346
Private equity
NOTDOTA oo Associate 40% n/a 1,364 n/a
Other private equity investments' Associate 14-89% 14—-89% 1,023 339
2,387 339
Other JOINt VENTUIES .. ..v.veeiveiereieeeeeieseeeeee et Joint Venture 20 —85% 20 — 85% 346 374
Other INVESMENTS .....v.ovveeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Associate  12-33%  12-33% 362 84
TORAL cvvvecveveveseeeee st s e s s bbbt $ 31,994 $ 24977

1. Joint ventures or associates in which the ownership interest is greater than 50% represent investments for which control is either shared or does not exist resulting in the
investment being equity accounted

2. Our investment in Norbord has been deconsolidated upon distribution of Norbord shares to fund investors, reducing our ownership share to 40%. As a result, we now
equity account for this investment. We recognized a non-cash gain of $790 million on deconsolidation

The following table presents the change in the balance of investments in associates and joint ventures:

{ﬁﬁ{i‘({)}%\é]}iARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Balance, beginning Of YEAT.........cccouiiiiriiiriiie ettt $ 24,977 $ 23,216
Additions, NEt O AISPOSALS ......veirveveiiririeiciireteer ettt ettt 5,063 660
Acquisitions through business COMbINAtIONS ..........c.coveuirieuiriinieuineireeeeeeete ettt 231 115
SHATE OF NET INCOMIEC......eveeiieiieiieieieteeeete ettt ettt et e e e te e e e b e sessesaesseeseeseeseeseensensensensesseaseeseessenes 1,213 1,293
Share of other cOMPIENENSIVE INCOME .......ccvrveveuiririeiiiriricicin ettt ettt eneees 515 430
DIStrIDULIONS TECEIVEA .....euiiiiniciirieiiiteiee ettt ettt ettt eaes (732) (675)
Foreign exchange 727 (62)
Balance, €Nd OF YT ......c.eiuiiiiieieee ettt sttt b et eean $ 31,994 $ 24,977
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The following table presents current and non-current assets, as well as current and non-current liabilities of the company’s
investments in associates and joint ventures:

2017 2016
Non- Non- Non- Non-
AS AT DEC. 31 Current Current Current Current Current Current Current Current
(MILLIONS) Assets Assets  Liabilities  Liabilities Assets Assets  Liabilities  Liabilities
Real estate
GGP o, $ 1,029 $37.841 $ 947 $ 13,062 $ 1,547 $ 38460 $ 2540 $ 12,656
Canary Wharf ... 844 13,092 703 6,759 776 11,641 461 6,224
Manhattan West, New York............... 74 4,248 816 941 244 3,374 733 718
Other real estate joint ventures and
INVEStMENLS ..o 1,206 25,547 1,268 10,110 657 20,986 2,119 6,908
Renewable power
Renewable power investments .......... 153 2,536 115 1,080 45 934 42 532
Infrastructure
Brazilian toll road........cccccccvveeenneens 304 5,769 602 2,102 263 4,977 823 1,665
North American natural gas
transmiss10n Operations ............e..u.. 139 4,741 139 2,716 122 5,767 1,353 2,925
South American transmission
OPETALIONS ... 280 7,122 181 3,874 221 5,519 142 3,234
Brazilian rail and port operations ...... 743 6,131 515 2,405 460 5,265 674 1,645
European communications business.. 464 6,281 561 2,968 328 5,437 443 2,528
Australian ports operation ................. 198 2,281 24 1,332 171 2,166 66 1,229
Other infrastructure investments ....... 695 5,240 865 2,301 360 4,378 515 1,827
Private equity
NOTbOrd..cvvevievieieeieeieeieee e 709 2,374 356 728 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Other private equity investments....... 2,001 18,122 3,124 13,192 616 3,901 694 3,458
Other . cvevieriereeeeiceecceceeeeeeee 800 60 90 100 1,024 8 81 113

$ 9,639 $141,385 $ 10,306 $ 63,670 §$ 6,834 $112,813 $ 10,686 $ 45,662

Certain of the company’s investments in associates are subject to restrictions on the extent to which they can remit funds to the
company in the form of cash dividends or repay loans and advances as a result of borrowing arrangements, regulatory restrictions
and other contractual requirements.
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The following table presents total revenues, net income and other comprehensive income (“OCI”) of the company’s investments

in associates and joint ventures.

2017 2016
?ﬁ&z%%\lgI)iARS FNDED DEC. 31 Revenue Incol\rlrftte OCI Revenue IncoI\rIr::et OCI
Real estate
GGP ettt $ 2405 $§ (591) $ 12§ 2427 $ 1,735 $ 4
Canary Wharf.......cooiiiiiiiic 581 183 5 654 19 “4)
Manhattan West, New York 81 319 — 78 188 —
Other real estate joint ventures and investments ..................... 1,564 1,222 119 1,727 1,110 34
Renewable power
Renewable power inveStments .........c.ceeveeereeeuieecencnneennenens 65 11 59 74 _ 18
Infrastructure
Brazilian toll 10ad .......ccccooveiieiiiiii 928 95 (39) 766 185 382
North American natural gas transmission operations... 681 15 €)) 573 133 5
South American transmission Operations............cccceeeevevvruennene. 441 37 806 433 38 217
Brazilian rail and port Operations ............coceeeeveieieveiiieieeninnnn 1,409 56 490 1,024 70 976
European communications business ..........ccecevveveeveeiieiiencnienns 783 58 435 767 121 376
Australian ports Operation...........ocoeeveveveveieeeiniiiiieinieieieeeens 418 19 78 164 (31) (81)
Other infrastructure iNVEStMENts. ........ccvevevveviiieeerinieiiieiencens 1,809 98 (19) 1,091 54 280
Private quity....ccccevvrveieieiieiieieceece e
INOTDOTA. -t 498 ®) 5 n/a n/a n/a
Other private equity INVEStMENtS ........ccoovevveriiieieiinieiiieienens 2,548 710 (76) 1,343 148 (138)
ONET ettt 194 23 4 252 26 2
TOTAL .ttt $ 14405 $ 2247 $ 1,878 $ 11373 $ 3,796 $ 2,071
The following table presents distributions from equity accounted investments by operating segment:
{ﬁﬁ[%%\}él)iARs ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
REAL SLALE ...ttt $ 353 $ 508
RENEWADIE POWET ...t 31 6
INETASIIUCTUTE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e e e b e bt eb e eatesten s et ensesestessesseeneeneans 121 85
Private equity and Other ........coouiiiiiiiiee et 227 76
$ 732§ 675

Certain of the company’s investments are publicly listed entities with active pricing in a liquid market. The fair value based on

the publicly listed price of these equity accounted investments in comparison to the company’s carrying value

is as follows:

2017 2016
8\?1?1%?\1%)31 Public Price Car{’zlllll% Public Price Car\r/};llrlll%
$ 7,570 $ 8,844 §$ 6,379 $ 7,453
1,176 1,364 n/a n/a
286 201 44 —
$ 9,032 $ 10,409 $ 6,423 $ 7,453

1. Our investment in Norbord was consolidated as at December 31, 2016 and therefore has not been included in prior year figures

At December 31, 2017, the company determined that the prolonged and significant decline in GGP’s share price indicated that
the company’s investment in GGP may be impaired. The company estimated the recoverable amount of its investment in GGP
and determined that the recoverable amount, as represented by the value-in-use, is greater than the current carrying value. Therefore,

no impairment was recognized for the period ended December 31, 2017.
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Additionally, at December 31, 2017, the company performed a review to determine if there is any objective evidence that its
investment in Norbord was impaired. As aresult of this review, management determined there is no objective evidence of impairment
of Norbord at December 31, 2017

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following table presents the change in the fair value of the company’s investment properties:

(FI\C/I)IRL THE \g])EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Fair value, beginning OF YEAT ..........cocciiioeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eae e enns $ 54,172 $ 47,164
AUQAIEIONS ...ttt s ettt e s s ettt n et b st e s R e sttt ettt n et et ne e enene 593 1,576
Acquisitions through business combinations 5,851 9,234
Disposals and reclassifications to assets held for sale...........ccovviieiiiiiciiiciciceceeeeeeeeee e (6,169) (4,612)
Fair value ChANGES ........ccocviiiiiiiieiiiceee ettt b et et sesa st se s essese s eseenas 1,021 960
Foreign currency translation ...........c.cceeieieieieieieieiestecteeteete ettt b e sveeve e eaeeseese e s essessesbesseeseeseeseas 1,402 (150)
Fair value, €nd OF YEAT .......c.eouiiiiiiiecieceecee ettt ettt et et eve et eae et s et b e v teereenean $ 56,870 $ 54,172

Investment properties include the company’s office, retail, multifamily, industrial and other properties as well as higher-and-better-
use land within the company’s sustainable resources operations. Acquisitions and additions of $6.4 billion (2016 — $10.8 billion)
relate mainly to business combinations completed during the year, including a portfolio of manufactured housing communities in
the U.S., office portfolios in the U.S., an office building in San Francisco, a student housing portfolio in the U.K., and an office
portfolio in Mumbai. Refer to Note 5 for details of acquisitions through business combinations.

Disposals and reclassifications to assets held for sale of $6.2 billion include the sale of two properties in London, the disposal of
a European logistics business, the sale of a 49% interest in a property located in New York, the reclassification of a 50% interest
in a property located in Toronto to assets classified as held for sale and the deconsolidation of a Brazilian retail investment.

Investment properties generated $4.4 billion (2016 — $4.1 billion) in rental income and incurred $1.6 billion (2016 — $1.6 billion)
in direct operating expenses. Our investment properties are pledged as collateral for the non-recourse borrowings at their
respective properties.

The following table presents our investment properties measured at fair value:

MitLions) | 2017 2016
Core office

UNIEEA STALES ...ttt ettt ettt et et e et e e e eaeeaeeaeeae et et et e e e eaesseeasensensensensesasnesaesnesaeens $ 14,827 $ 16,529
4,597 4,613
2,480 2,112
1,040 1,830
327 315

Opportunistic and other
OPPOTTUNISTIC OFFICE ... cuvivieviiticeeetieteee ettt ettt ettt e e et et ereere e s ereereeseeseeseereeneensesesenseeseenas 8,590 5,853
Opportunistic retail 3,412 4,217
TIAUSIIIAL. ...ttt et e e et e e et e e st e e eateseateesaaeesaeeseaaeesaseesseesenneesnaeesnes 1,942 2,678
IMUTEFAIMILY 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt s s e etenen 3,925 3,574
TTIPLE NEL LEASE......cuveuieieiitieteeieeeet ettt ettt et e b et e et e eteetaesbesbesbesbessessaesaeseeseessensensensensensas 4,804 4,790
SEIE=SLOTAZE .....veevieveeitetiet ittt ettt et et et e et e et e e teete e st e se et e b e b e b e beeseeseessesseasessasasseeseessessessessensenseseatearens 1,854 1,624
STUAENT NOUSING .....oovvievieiiictecteetee ettt et ettt ettt eteeteete e eas et eseeseeseessessessensensensesenseareasens 1,353 649
Manufactured NOUSINE .......ccvevviiiieiieiieieieieieete ettt ettt et et et estesteeteeseesaesaesessessesseeseessessessassessessansanen 2,206 —
Other INVEStMENE PIOPETLIES .......cveeveerieiiiiiriitieteeteeteeteetesteeteeseeteeteeseeseessessesessesseeseeseessessessesensesessenses 5,513 5,388

$ 56,870 $ 54,172
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Significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are utilized when determining the fair value of investment properties. The significant

Level 3 inputs include:

Relationship of

Valuation Significant Unobservable Unobservable Inputs to Fair
Technique Inputs Value Mitigating Factors
Discounted cash * Future cash flows — * Increases (decreases) in * Increases (decreases) in cash flows tend to be
flow analysis primarily driven by net future cash flows increase accompanied by increases (decreases) in
operating income (decrease) fair value discount rates that may offset changes in fair
value from cash flows
 Discount rate  Increases (decreases) in Increases (decreases) in discount rates tend to

discount rate decrease
(increase) fair value

» Terminal capitalization ~ * Increases (decreases) in
rate terminal capitalization rate
decrease (increase) fair

value

be accompanied by increases (decreases) in
cash flows that may offset changes in fair value
from discount rates

Decreases (increases) in terminal
capitalization rates tend to be accompanied by
increases (decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from terminal
capitalization rates

The company’s investment properties are diversified by asset type, asset class, geography and markets. Therefore, there may be
mitigating factors in addition to those noted above such as changes to assumptions that vary in direction and magnitude across

different geographies and markets.

The following table summarizes the key valuation metrics of the company’s investment properties:

2017 2016
Terminal Terminal
Capitalization Investment Capitalization Investment
AS AT DEC. 31 Discount Rate Rate Horizon (years) Discount Rate Rate Horizon (years)
Core office
United States ..........cocoveeeeerienenee. 7.0% 5.8% 13 6.8% 5.6% 12
Canada......c..ocooeviveeineneecene 6.1% 5.5% 10 6.2% 5.5% 10
Australia.......ocooeveeiineineeee, 7.0% 6.1% 10 7.3% 6.1% 10
Europe.....ccocovvevieieie, n/a n/a n/a 6.0% 5.0% 12
Brazil......ccooovveincieee 9.7% 7.6% 7 9.3% 7.5% 10
Opportunistic and other
Opportunistic office ..........ccccueue.. 9.7% 6.9% 8 9.9% 7.6% 7
Opportunistic retail ....................... 9.0% 8.0% 10 10.2% 8.1% 12
Industrial ........ccooeveiiniie 6.8% 6.2% 10 7.4% 6.6% 10
Multifamily 4.8% n/a n/a 4.9% n/a n/a
Triple net lease.........cccocveeereeennenn 6.4% n/a n/a 6.1% n/a n/a
Self-storage ......ccoeveeeeeeeeeierennen 5.8% n/a n/a 6.2% n/a n/a
Student housing.............cccoeeveuene. 5.8% n/a n/a 5.9% n/a n/a
Manufactured housing................... 5.8% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Other investment properties.......... 5.8% n/a n/a 5.4% n/a n/a
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The company’s property, plant and equipment relates to the operating segments as shown below:

Renewable Private Equity
Power (a) Infrastructure (b) Real Estate (¢) and Other (d) Total
AT Db 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
COSLS eovveereeererresereersesnees $24,991 $18,031 $ 9,253 § 8,045 $ 5854 $ 5783 $ 4,050 $ 5268 $44,148 § 37,127
Accumulated fair value
changes' ..o, 13,280 12,298 3,272 2,690 798 694 (231) (243) 17,119 15,439
Accumulated
depreciation ................ 4,681) (3,776)  (1,622)  (1,190) (873) (825)  (1,086)  (1,429) (8,262)  (7,220)
L0171 $33,590 $26,553 $10,903 $ 9,545 $ 5,779 §$ 5,652 $ 2,733 § 3,596 $53,005 $ 45,346

1. The accumulated fair value changes for private equity and other represent accumulated impairment charges, as assets in these segments are carried at amortized cost

Renewable Power, Infrastructure and Real Estate segments carry property, plant and equipment assets at fair value, classified as
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of significant unobservable inputs when determining fair value. Private Equity and
other segments carry property, plant and equipment assets at amortized cost. As at December 31, 2017, $38.3 billion (2016 —
$29.6 billion) of property, plant and equipment, at cost, were pledged as collateral for the property debt at their respective properties.

a) Renewable Power

Our renewable power property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Wind Energy, Solar

Hydroelectric and Other Total

Eﬁlﬂf&%f ORTHE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Cost, beginning of year...........cccoceevevereeereeeereeeereennns $ 14382 § 7441 $ 3,649 $§ 3509 $ 18,031 $ 10,950
Additions, net of disposals and assets reclassified as

held fOr Sale .......ceevivieveiireeeec e 256 253 (273) 80 a7 333
Acquisitions through business combinations ............... — 5,731 6,923 10 6,923 5,741
Foreign currency translation..............cccooeeveeveeneeneennnnn. 29 957 25 50 54 1,007
Cost, end Of Year......ccovvvveueiririeereeeee e 14,667 14,382 10,324 3,649 24,991 18,031
Accumulated fair value changes, beginning of year..... 11,440 11,035 858 615 12,298 11,650
Fair value changes ...........cccocevvevvevveeececieeeeeeeeeenn 341 100 33 216 374 316
Dispositions and assets reclassified as held for sale..... 8 — — — 8 —
Foreign currency translation and other................c........ 403 305 213 27 616 332
Accumulated fair value changes, end of year............... 12,176 11,440 1,104 858 13,280 12,298
Accumulated depreciation, beginning of year-.............. (2,947) (2,248) (829) (614) (3,776) (2,862)
Depreciation eXpenses..........eeveeveeveeveereereereereeeereereennns (579) (586) (287) (217) (866) (803)
Dispositions and assets reclassified as held for sale..... — 9 51 5 51 14
Foreign currency translation and other...............c........ 38) (122) (52) 3) 90) (125)
Accumulated depreciation, end of year ........................ (3,564) (2,947) (1,117) (829) (4,681) (3,776)
Balance, end of year ..........coceoeveiiineiniceee $ 23279 § 22875 $ 10,311 § 3,678 $ 33,590 § 26,553
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The following table presents our renewable power property, plant and equipment measured at fair value by geography:

AS AT DEC. 31
(MILLIONS)

JALe) g3 AN 111G o Lot H OO

1. Other refers primarily to South Africa, China, India, Malaysia and Thailand

2017 2016

......... $ 22,832 § 17,132
3,443 2,893

5,401 5,275

1,088 1,253

826 —

$ 33,590 $ 26,553

Renewable power assets are accounted for under the revaluation model and the most recent date of revaluation was December 31,
2017. Valuations utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when determining the fair value of renewable power assets. The

significant Level 3 inputs include:

Valuation Significant Relationship of Unobservable Inputs to
Technique Unobservable Inputs Fair Value Mitigating Factors
Discounted cash * Future cash flows — * Increases (decreases) in future cash < Increases (decreases) in cash flows
flow analysis primarily driven by flows increase (decrease) fair value tend to be accompanied by increases
future electricity price (decreases) in discount rates that may
assumptions offset changes in fair value from cash
flows
+ Discount rate  Increases (decreases) in discount rate * Increases(decreases)indiscountrates

decrease (increase) fair value

* Terminal * Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization rate capitalization rate decrease (increase)
fair value
» Exit date * Increases (decreases) in the exit date

decrease (increase) fair value

Key valuation metrics of the company’s hydro, wind and solar generating facilities
summarized below.

tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
discount rates

Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization rates tend to be
accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization rates

Increases (decreases) in the exit date
tend to be the result of changing cash
flow profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the terminal year

at the end of 2017 and 2016 are

North America Brazil Colombia Europe

AS AT DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Discount rate

Contracted........co.c..... 49-6.0% 48-55% 8.9% 9.2% 11.3% n/a 41-45% 4.1-5.0%

Uncontracted............. 65-7.6% 6.6-72% 10.2% 10.5% 12.6% n/a 59-63% 59-6.8%
Terminal capitalization

T oo 6.2-75% 6.3-6.9% n/a n/a 12.6% n/a n/a n/a
Exit date.......cccoeveeenenne 2037 2036 2032 2031 2037 n/a 2031 2031

1. Terminal capitalization rate applies only to hydroelectric assets in in North America and Colombia

Terminal values are included in the valuation of hydroelectric assets in the United States, Canada and Colombia. For the
hydroelectric assets in Brazil, cash flows have been included based on the duration of the authorization or useful life of a
concession asset without consideration of potential renewal value. The weighted-average remaining duration at December 31,
2017 is 15 years (2016 — 15 years). Consequently, there is no terminal value attributed to the hydroelectric assets in Brazil. The
terminal value of hydroelectric assets in Europe is based on a percentage of replacement cost and consequently there is no terminal

capitalization rate attributed to the hydroelectric assets in Europe.
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Key assumptions on contracted generation and future power pricing are summarized below:

Power Prices from Long-

Total Generation Contracted Term Power Purchase Estimates of Future
under Power Purchase Agreements Electricity Prices

Agreements (weighted average) (weighted average)
AS AT DEC. 31,2017 1-10years 11-20years 1—10years 11-20years 1-—10years 11 —20 years
North America (prices in US$/MWh). 35% 15% 95 100 60 114
Brazil (prices in R$/MWh) ................. 66% 57% 274 407 309 458
Colombia (prices in COP$/MWh)...... 17% —% 211,000 — 238,000 339,000
Europe (prices in € MWh) .................. 78% 35% 920 107 78 95

The company’s estimate of future renewable power pricing is based on management’s estimate of the cost of securing new energy
from renewable sources to meet future demand between 2021 and 2025 (2016 — 2023), which will maintain system reliability
and provide adequate levels of reserve generations.

b) Infrastructure
Our infrastructure property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Sustainable
Utilities (1) Transport (i) Energy (1) Resources (i) Total

zﬁlﬁ{%ﬁllgf% THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Cost, beginning of year ................... $2,804 $2,945 $2,361 $1,953 $2,382 $1,487 § 408 $ 340 $ 8,045 $6,725
Additions, net of disposals and

assets reclassified as held for sale . 350 367 103 78 81 89 93 5 627 539
Acquisitions through business

COMDINAtIONS .o — — — 242 100 825 — — 100 1,067
Foreign currency translation 229 (418) 191 88 67 (19) (6) 63 481 (286)
Cost, end of year..........ccccoevveveeennee. 3,473 2,894 2,655 2,361 2,630 2,382 495 408 9,253 8,045
Accumulated fair value changes,

beginning of year............cccveuvnenne. 1,044 946 782 973 351 209 513 385 2,690 2,513
Fair value changes 136 184 24 25 257 123 13 56 430 388
Foreign currency translation and

OtheT ..o 76 (86) 67 (216) 21 19 (12) 72 152 (211)
Accumulated fair value changes,

end of year........ccccoveeinvviciecnenen 1,256 1,044 873 782 629 351 514 513 3,272 2,690
Accumulated depreciation,

beginning of year..........cccoeeeuenee (384) (291) (517) (418) (258) (172) (€2)) 19  1,190)  (900)
Depreciation eXpenses..................... 113y  (128) (147) (126) (A17) 99) (10) 19) (387 (372
Dispositions and assets reclassified

as held for sale........cccoeuvrurrrrrenrennn. 16 1 22 1 4 — 3 1 45 3
Foreign currency translation and

OtheT ... (28) 34 (45) 26 12) 13 5) 6 90) 79
Accumulated depreciation, end of

VOAL ettt (509) (384) (687) (517) (383) (259) 43) 31 (1,622) (1,190)
Balance, end of year...........ccccco....... $4,220 $3,554 $2,841 $2,626 $2,876 $2,475 $ 966 $ 890 $10,903 $9,545
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i. Infrastructure — Utilities, Transport and Energy

Infrastructure’s PP&E assets are accounted for under the revaluation model, and the most recent date of revaluation was
December 31, 2017. The company’s utilities assets consist of regulated transmission and regulated distribution networks, which
are operated primarily under regulated rate base arrangements. In the company’s transport operations, the PP&E assets consist of
railroads, toll roads and ports. PP&E assets in the energy operations are comprised of energy transmission, distribution and storage
and district energy assets.

Valuations utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when determining the fair value of infrastructure’s utilities, transport
and energy assets. The significant Level 3 inputs include:

Valuation
Technique

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Relationship of Unobservable Inputs to
Fair Value

Mitigating Factors

Discounted cash

flow analysis

ii. Infrastructure — Sustainable Resources

* Future cash flows

¢ Discount rate

¢ Terminal

capitalization multiple

¢ Investment horizon

* Increases (decreases) in future cash

flows increase (decrease) fair value

* Increases (decreases) in discount rate

decrease (increase) fair value

terminal
increases

Increases (decreases) in
capitalization — multiple
(decreases) fair value

Increases (decreases) in the investment
horizon decrease (increase) fair value

* Increases (decreases) in cash flows

tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in fair value from cash
flows

Increases (decreases) in discount rates
tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
discount rates

Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization multiple tend to be
accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization multiple

Increases  (decreases) in  the
investment horizon tend to be
the result of changing cash flow
profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the terminal year

Sustainable resources assets represent timberlands and other agricultural land. PP&E within our sustainable resource operations
is accounted for under the revaluation model and the most recent date of revaluation was December 31, 2017.

Valuations utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when determining the fair value of sustainable resources assets. The
significant Level 3 inputs include:

Valuation
Technique

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Relationship of Unobservable Inputs to
Fair Value

Mitigating Factors

Discounted cash
flow analysis

e Future cash flows —
primarily driven by
avoided cost or future
replacement value

* Discount rate

¢ Investment horizon

Increases (decreases) in future cash
flows increase (decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in discount rate
decrease (increase) fair value

Increases (decreases) in the investment
horizon decrease (increase) fair value

* Increases (decreases) in cash flows

tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in fair value from cash
flows

Increases (decreases) indiscountrates
tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
discount rates

Increases  (decreases) in  the
investment horizon tend to be
the result of changing cash flow
profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the terminal year
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Key valuation metrics of the company’s utilities, transport, energy and sustainable resources assets at the end of 2017 and 2016
are summarized below.

Utilities Transport Energy Sustainable Resources

AS AT DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Discount rates ......... 7-12% 7-12% 10 - 15% 10-17% 12 -15% 9-14% 5-8% 6%
Terminal

capitalization

multiples ............... 7x —21x 7x — 18x 9x — 14x 8x — 14x 8x — 13x 10x — 12x n/a n/a
Investment

horizon / Exit

date(years) ............ 10-20 10-20 10-20 10-20 10 10 3-30 3-30
¢) Real Estate

Accumulated Fair Accumulated
Cost Value Changes Depreciation Total

?@Iﬁ{%ﬂgf% THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year.............cc.ccceeeenene $ 5783 $ 5300 $ 694 $§ o612 $ (825 $ (596) $ 5,652 § 5316
Additions/(dispositions)', net of assets

reclassified as held for sale..............cccueuneee. (502) 254 44 — 246 6) (212) 248
Acquisitions through business combinations .. 281 652 — — — — 281 652
Foreign currency translation................ccc.e... 292 (423) 1 — 13) 21 280 (402)
Fair value changes.........c.ccccovvivicieieienrenene. — — 59 82 — — 59 82
Depreciation eXpenses...........ooeeveeveeveereeneennene. — — — — (281) (244) (281) (244)

Balance, end of year $ 5783 $ 798 $ 694 $ (873) $§ (825) $ 5,779 $ 5,652

1. For accumulated depreciation, (additions)/dispositions

The company’s real estate PP&E assets include hospitality assets accounted for under the revaluation model, with the most recent
revaluation as at December 31, 2017. The company determined fair value for these assets by using the depreciated replacement
cost method. Valuations utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when determining the fair value of real estate assets. The
significant Level 3 inputs include estimates of assets’ replacement cost and remaining economic life.

d) Private Equity and Other

Private Equity and other PP&E includes assets owned by the company’s private equity and residential development operations.
These assets are accounted for under the cost model, which requires the assets to be carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The following table presents the changes to the carrying value of the company’s property,
plant and equipment assets included in these operations:

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Impairment Depreciation Total
fﬁlﬁ{%%%f(m THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year.................ccco......... $ 5268 $ 5309 $ (243) $ (231) $ (1,429) $(1,197) $ 3,596 $ 3,881
Additions/(dispositions)', net of assets
reclassified as held for sale.............c.cueeene... (1,966) (101) 36 4 752 125 (1,178) 28
Acquisitions through business combinations .. 501 — — — — 501
Foreign currency translation................c.c.o....... 247 60 (16) (16) (51) (14) 180 30
Depreciation eXpenses............cceeveeveereereereeneane. — — — — (358) (343) (358) (343)
Impairment charges .........c.cocoevververiririeererienns — — ® — — — (8)
Balance, end of year..........ccccevveeiririeecnnen $ 4,050 $ 5268 $ (231) $ (243) $(1,086) $(1,429) $ 2,733 § 3,596

1. For accumulated depreciation, (additions)/dispositions
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the breakdown of, and changes to, the balance of the company’s intangible assets:

Accumulated
Amortization and
Cost Impairment Total
f‘;j]ﬁ%ﬁf\gf("‘ THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year $ 6733 § 5764 $ (660) $ 594 $ 6,073 § 5,170
Additions, net of disposals (25) (36) 121 91 926 55
Acquisitions through business combinations............ 8,412 1,227 — — 8,412 1,227
AMOTHIZALION ...t — — (442) (166) (442) (166)
Foreign currency translation ..............cececveveveveenenn. 131 (222) (28) 9 103 (213)
Balance, end of year..........coccceovvreeninieeieeee $ 15251 $ 6,733 $ (1,009) $ 660) $ 14242 § 6,073
The following table presents intangible assets by geography:
3,5[1/2{%%%)3 ! 2017 2016
UNIEEA STALES .....vvvviieieietete ettt ettt bttt b et b bt bbb bbb bbb b s bbb s s s nas s s enans $ 73 8 340
L8 T - OSSO U ORI 364 230
AUSITALIA . ...ttt e e et e et e e ea e e st e e s teeeeaaeesateeeatee ettt e eteesae e e et e e eaaeeeaaeenres 2,078 1,945
BUTOPC ...ttt ettt e e e et e s aa e s at e bt e te e b e e b e eabeerbeeabaeaeeetaeteeteereenns 1,594 1,273
TIUAEA L.ttt h et h ettt e bRttt s et a et ettt ne e s etenenea 130 130
CRLE ..ttt ettt s ettt a et b s a ettt a et bt n st e s e st bt et e n e st et et st en e e s esenn 1,100 1,054
POTU ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt et st s et st eb ettt st s b bt st eb et st b st eat et b esenn s esean s s ene 1,144 1,050
1332 V2 | SRRSO 7,537 28
OBT ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et e sttt et e st b et e s et e b e s e st e s et e st e st ea e sk esen e b s et e n e s b esen s s et en e e s esenn 222 23
$ 14242 $ 6,073
Intangible assets are allocated to the following operating segments:
LISy Note 2017 2016
INFrastructure — ULIHEIES. ......c.ooeiieeieeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e e seeeeanens (a) $ 7,001 $ 1,817
INfrastructure — TranSPOTT .......c.ccieuieieiieieiei ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt eae s e s e b e ssesresreereens (b) 2,663 2,504
REAI CSLALE . ..vivieeiieiietietietee ettt et b et st b et s s st et s s ese e s eaes () 1,188 1,141
(d 3,094 426
206 185
$ 14242 $ 6,073

a) Infrastructure — Utilities

The company’s Brazilian regulated gas transmission operation has concession agreements that provide the right to charge a tariff
over the term of the agreements. The agreements have an expiration date between 2039 and 2041, which is the basis for the
company’s determination of its remaining useful life. Upon expiry of the agreements, the asset shall be returned to the government
and subject to concession upon public bidding.

Access agreements with the users of the company’s Australian regulated terminal are 100% take-or-pay contracts at a designated
tariff rate based on the asset value. The concession arrangement has an expiration date of 2051 and the company has an option to
extend the arrangement an additional 49 years. The aggregate duration of the arrangement and the extension option represents the
remaining useful life of the concession.
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b) Infrastructure — Transport

The company’s toll road concessions provide the right to charge a tariff to users of the roads over the term of the concessions. The
Chilean, Peruvian and Indian concession arrangements have expiration dates of 2033, 2043 and 2027, respectively, which are
the base for the company’s determination of the assets’ remaining useful lives. Also included within the company’s transport
operations is $289 million (2016 — $265 million) of indefinite life intangible assets which represent perpetual conservancy rights
associated with the company’s U.K. port operation.

¢) Real Estate

The company’s intangible assets in its Real Estate segment are attributable to indefinite life trademarks associated with its hospitality
assets, primarily Center Parcs and Atlantis. The Center Parcs and Atlantis trademark assets have been determined to have an
indefinite useful life as the company has the legal right to operate these trademarks exclusively in certain territories and in perpetuity.
The business models of Center Parcs and Atlantis are not subject to technological obsolescence or commercial innovations in any
material way.

d) Private Equity

The company’s intangible assets in its Private Equity segment are primarily attributable to water and sewage concession agreements.
The concession agreements provide the company the right to charge fees to users over the terms of the concessions in exchange
for water treatment services, ongoing and regular maintenance work on water distribution assets and improvements to the water
treatment and distribution systems. The concession agreements have expiration dates that range from 2037 to 2055 at which point
the underlying concession assets will be returned to the grantors.

Intangible Asset Impairment Testing

Intangible assets, including trademarks, concession agreements and conservancy rights, are recorded at amortized cost and are
tested for impairment using a discounted cash flow valuation annually or when an indicator of impairment is identified. This
valuation utilizes the following significant unobservable inputs:

Valuation
Technique

Significant
Unobservable Input(s)

Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)

to Fair Value Mitigating Factor(s)

Discounted cash * Future cash flows * Increases (decreases) in future cash  Increases (decreases) in cash flows

flow models

¢ Discount rate

» Terminal capitalization
rate

« Exit date
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flows increase (decrease) the
recoverable amount

Increases (decreases) in discount rate
decrease (increase) the recoverable
amount

Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization rate decrease (increase)
the recoverable amount

Increases (decreases) in the exit date
decrease (increase) the recoverable
amount

tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in recoverable
amounts from cash flows

Increases (decreases) in discount
rates tend to be accompanied by
increases (decreases) in cash flows
that may offset changes in
recoverable amounts from discount
rates

Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization rates tend to be
accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in recoverable
amounts from terminal capitalization
rates

Increases (decreases) in the exit date
tend to be the result of changing cash
flow profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the terminal year



14. GOODWILL

The following table presents the breakdown of, and changes to, the balance of goodwill:

Accumulated
Cost Impairment Total

fﬁﬁE%EN‘g)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year..............cccoovevevieveverennee. $ 4162 $ 2806 $ 379 $ 263) $ 3,783 § 2,543
Acquisitions through business combinations............. 1,157 1,286 — — 1,157 1,286
Impairment 10SSES.......c.cceevivrierieieieecieeeeereere e — — Q) (65) Q) (65)
Foreign currency translation and other' ..................... 388 70 6) (51) 382 19
Balance, end of year.........cceceveveveniceeieieieeen $ 5707 $§ 4162 $ (390) $ (379 $ 5317 § 3,783
1. Includes adjustment to goodwill based on final purchase price allocation
The following table presents goodwill by geography:

AS AT DEC. 31 2017 2016

(MILLIONS)

United States e 8 400 $§ 388
CANAAA ...ttt ettt ettt h bbb es b et st e st b et st ehen e b et es et ent et et es e etentebe s eneesennenea 432 192
F N6 21 T H TR 1,026 950
COLOMIDIA. ...ttt bbbttt h ettt e bttt et et n e ete et 912 907
BIAZIL...e ettt bttt a bt h b e n e st s e b et s et e st ebe e eseeseneenan 905 123
BUIOPC ...ttt ettt 1,257 894
L0 1351 T USSR 385 329
$ 5317 $ 3,783

Goodwill is allocated to the following operating segments:
iﬁﬁl‘%‘i%f ! Note 2017 2016
PrIVALE ©QUILY ..vivveiiiieietiieeeit ettt ettt bt et esessesessete s esaesens (a) $ 1,555 § 1,155
INETASIIUCTUTE. ...ttt ettt e et e et e e et e e saaeesaneeeaaeesnaeeeas (b) 1,301 502
(c) 1,127 780
(d) 901 896
312 328
121 122
$ 5317 $ 3,783

a) Private Equity

Goodwill in our Private Equity segment is primarily attributable to our construction business. Goodwill in our construction business
is tested for impairment using a discounted cash flow analysis to determine the recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts for
the years ended 2017 and 2016 were determined to be in excess of their carrying values. The valuation assumptions used to
determine the recoverable amount are a discount rate of 9.7% (2016 — 12.0%), terminal growth rate of 2.9% (2016 — 4.0%) and
terminal year of 2022 for cash flows included in the assumptions (2016 — 2021). The discount rate represents the market-based
weighted-average cost of capital adjusted for risks specific to each operating region and the terminal growth rate represents the
regional five-year forecasted average growth rate from leading industry organizations, weighted by our geographic exposure which
can vary year over year.

Additionally, in 2017, a subsidiary of Brookfield completed several acquisitions, including a U.K. road fuel business, and allocated
$342 million of the purchase price of these acquisitions to goodwill. The purchase price allocations for these acquisitions have
been completed on a preliminary basis.
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b) Infrastructure

Goodwill in our Infrastructure segment is primarily attributable to a Brazilian regulated gas transmission business, which we
acquired in the current year and allocated $804 million of the purchase price to goodwill. The purchase price allocation for this
acquisition has been completed on a preliminary basis. Excluding the acquisition made in 2017, the remainder of the goodwill is
primarily attributable to an Australian port business acquired in 2016. The valuation assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount are a discount rate of 15.0%, terminal capitalization multiple of 8.9x and a cash flow period of 10 years. The carrying
amount of the cash-generating was determined to not exceed its recoverable amount.

¢) Real Estate

Goodwill in our Real Estate segment is primarily attributable to Center Parcs and IFC Seoul. We acquired IFC Seoul in 2016 and
allocated $221 million of goodwill to the property in 2017 upon finalizing the purchase price allocation. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment by assessing if the carrying value of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, exceeds its
recoverable amount, determined as the greater of the estimated fair value less costs to sell or the value in use. The recoverable
amounts for the years ended 2017 and 2016 were determined to be in excess of their carrying values. The valuation assumptions
used to determine the recoverable amount are a discount rate of 7.7% (2016 — 8.3%) based on a market-based-weighted-average
cost of capital, and a long-term growth rate of 2.3% (2016 — 2.3%)).

d) Renewable Power

Goodwill in our Renewable Power segment is primarily attributable to Isagen, which arose from the inclusion of a deferred tax
liability as the tax bases of the net assets acquired were lower than their fair values. The goodwill is recoverable as long as the
tax circumstances that gave rise to the goodwill do not change. To date, no such changes have occurred.

The recoverable amounts used in goodwill impairment testing are calculated using discounted cash flow models based on the
following significant unobservable inputs:

Valuation Significant Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)
Technique Unobservable Input(s) to Fair Value Mitigating Factor(s)
Discounted cash * Future cash flows * Increases (decreases) in future cash ¢ Increases (decreases) in cash flows
flow models flows increase  (decrease) the tend to be accompanied by increases
recoverable amount (decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in recoverable
amounts from cash flows
* Discount rate * Increases (decreases) in discount rate ¢ Increases (decreases) in discount
decrease (increase) the recoverable rates tend to be accompanied by
amount increases (decreases) in cash flows

that may offset changes in
recoverable amounts from discount

rates
* Terminal capitalization + Increases (decreases) in terminal < Increases (decreases) in terminal
rate/multiple capitalization rate/multiple decrease capitalization rates/multiple tend to
(increase) the recoverable amount be accompanied by increases

(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in recoverable
amounts from terminal capitalization
rates

+ Exit date/terminal year  * Increases (decreases) in the exit date/ < Increases (decreases) in the exit date/
of cash flows terminal year of cash flows decrease terminal year of cash flows tend to be
(increase) the recoverable amount the result of changing cash flow
profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to

stabilizing in the terminal year
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15. INCOME TAXES

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are set out below:

(Fﬁﬁ{}-(l)%\]\g;iARs ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
CUITENT INCOIME TAXES ...veveeveeeeeeieererieteereeteeteeseessessesseeseeseereeseesseseeseessesseaseeseeseeseassassassensesessesseereereeseeseans $ 286 $ 213

Deferred income tax expense/(recovery)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences ............ccoovveviiivievreeieieeeeeeeeeeeee e 499 384

Recovery arising from previously unrecognized tax aSSELS .......cceverererereeieieieriesiesiesesseseseeeeseens 3 27

Change of tax rates and new 1e@iSIation...........cccooiiirieiiiiieiee e 175s) (969)
Total deferred income taxes 327 (558)
INICOMNE TAXES ....vevveeeeeeeeeete ettt ettt e et e e teete et et et e s e eteeteeseeseeseeseeneenseseeseeseeseaseessensensensesesseereereereeneans 613 $ (345)

The company’s Canadian domestic statutory income tax rate has remained consistent at 26% throughout both of 2017 and 2016.
The company’s effective income tax rate is different from the company’s domestic statutory income tax rate due to the following
differences set out below:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
StatutOry INCOME tAX TALE .......cveiieireireereeteereeteeee et et eete et eteeteeteeteeseeseseeseeseeseeseeseeseessessensenseseeseeseessessens 26% 26 %
Increase (reduction) in rate resulting from:
Change in tax rates and New legiSIatioN...........ccucierieriiriiiiiiieeeeeeee ettt saesre st eaeereens A3 (35)
International operations subject to different taX rates...........cvveveeevieeiierieriereeeeeeeeee e e 3 5)
Taxable income attributable to non-controlling iINtEIEStS..........c.cevieirieirririeirieiereiee e (&) ?2)
Portion of gains subject to different taX Tates...........cocieieieieiierieiesecereee ettt eeeerens Q)] 1.
(Recognition) derecognition of deferred taX aSSELS..........civvierieriiieieriieiiereereete ettt eveereens 2) 1
Non-recognition of the benefit of current year’s tax losses..... 3 6
OBNT ...ttt ettt ettt et et s et bt s et et et e st s e s et e st s e s et e st sk e ettt s e At s s et e R et s et en et et esene s esenens s ene (€] 2)
EffectiVe INCOME tAX TALC ......cuviiiiiieereerecte ettt ettt ettt ettt ete e et et e s e eseeteereessessessessenseesesseeseereereenean 12% (12)%
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 relate to the following:
831/2{1%'13\1%)3 ! 2017 2016
Non-capital 10SSES (CANAAQA) ........coverviriiriiiriiieieieieieiesteste et e et e et et e ste e sseeseeseeseessessessessesseeseeseeses $ 657 $ 814
Capital losses (Canada) 171 100
LLOSSES (LS. ) ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e e aa e et e e ae e e at e te e beebe et e et e eabeetbeeat e st e teereebeenras 590 492
L088es (INtEINAtIONAL) .......ocviiiriiiiciecee ettt ettt et eae et e e aeeaaeeaeeeaeeeseeeneenreennas 861 481
DITTEIEIICE 1N DASIS ...ttt ettt e e et e et e e e et e st e saeeesaaeesaeesnaseesaseesneesnnneenans (12,224) (9,965)
Total net deferred tax HADIILIES .........c.cceeuierieieeeeecieet ettt ettt et ere e ere e e eereereereereereereenean $ 9,945) $ (8,078)

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognized as at December 31, 2017 is approximately $5 billion (2016 — approximately $5 billion).

The company regularly assesses the status of open tax examinations and its historical tax filing positions for the potential for
adverse outcomes to determine the adequacy of the provision for income and other taxes. The company believes that it has
adequately provided for any tax adjustments that are more likely than not to occur as a result of ongoing tax examinations or
historical filing positions.

The dividend payment on certain preferred shares of the company results in the payment of cash taxes in Canada and the company
obtaining a deduction based on the amount of these taxes.
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The following table details the expiry date, if applicable, of the unrecognized deferred tax assets:

éﬁﬁ%‘i}%ﬁ ! 2017 2016
One year from repOorting Aate............ocveirieriiuiierisieiitiieestee ettt eb et saese b e e sesseseesessesesseseesens $ — S 26
Two years from reporting date — —
Three years from reporting date 6 59
After three years from reporting date .............ccocivveiriiiiirieieieiee et enas 530 555
DO MO EXPITE ..ottt ettt ettt ete et et et et et e beebeeseessessessassabesbeessessesseseessessessessesseaseeseeneas 990 845
TOLAL ...ttt ettt bttt ettt ben st ettt esent et e s e st s et et e ebeneesenseneeseneerens $ 1,526 $ 1,485

The components of the income taxes in other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are set out
below:

:-‘I\(ZR THE Sg})EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Revaluation of property, plant and eqUIPMENL............coceevierieieierieieeieere ettt ee e e eeanas $ 315 §$ 120
Financial contracts and power sale a@remeNtS.............ccveviveririeeiririerisieeerieeesseseesesese s eresseseesesaesees 27 37)
Available-for-sale securities 5 38
Foreign currency translation ..............cocieieeeieiiieceiictecteeteete ettt ettt et ere e ers e eseeseeseeseereereereensennan 43) 59
Revaluation of pension ObIIZAtION ............ccucirveiiriierieieierie ettt ettt es et ssese s saeaeas 1 @)
Total deferred tax in other comprehensive INCOME............cceevieieriiriiriictieteeteeteee ettt eeeesnens $ (325) $ 173

16. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER
AT DEC! 2017 2016
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE .......oovieievieeeieeeeeeteeteeet ettt ettt ettt et ee e et ene et e s et e et ens et esese et enseseesensesenseseesensenn $ 5158 $ 6,028
Provisions 1,651 1,427
Other liabilities 11,156 4,460
TOLAL ..ottt bttt h et bttt R etttk etk s ettt ne et ene $ 17,965 $ 11,915

The current and non-current balances of accounts payable and other liabilities are as follows:
f}iﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁl 2017 2016
CUTTENE ..ottt e e e e et et et et e e e s eeseeseeaesaeseeeet et ene e e e s eaaeaseeseene et et eseeseeneesesseseesaesaeenens $ 11,148 § 7,721
INOIIECUITEI .. ...ttt e et e e et e e e e e e et e e e aaaeeeseaaaeeeesaateesesnaseeeeesnsstessansseesesnnseeessnnnes 6,817 4,194
TOTAL ...ttt ettt ettt a et R Rt h Rt b Rttt ettt b st s et e st s eaenn $ 17,965 $ 11,915

Post-Employment Benefits

The company offers pension and other post-employment benefit plans to employees of certain of its subsidiaries. The company’s
obligations under its defined benefit pension plans are determined periodically through the preparation of actuarial valuations.
The benefit plans’ in-year valuation change was an increase of $4 million (2016 — decrease of $40 million). The discount rate used
was 4% (2016 — 4%) with an increase in the rate of compensation of 3% (2016 — 3%), and an investment rate of 5% (2016 — 4%)).

ASATDEC 3! 2017 2016
PIAN BSSELS ...ttt ettt $ 516 $ 592
Less accrued benefit obligation:

Defined benefit pension plan (685) (790)

Other post-employment DENETILS ..........c.ocieuiiiiiiieeeeccrect ettt e es e ereereereereereens 90) (88)
INEE THADILILY ..ttt ettt s ettt s e s et e s et e st s esesentsaeseneneeseseneneas (259) (286)
Less: net actuarial Gains (IOSSES)........ceeuiiieueerierieieiteitecteeteete ettt et et et eeseeteeteeteeseeseessessesessessessesseeseeseas 2) 2
ACCTUEd DENETIt HHADIIILY .......cueevieieeiiveeiee ettt ettt ettt et et ese et enseseeseneeaensereesensenin $ 261) $ (284)
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17. CORPORATE BORROWINGS

MitLions) ! Maturity Annual Rate Currency 2017 2016

Term debt
Public —U.S. ..o Apr. 25,2017 5.80% Uss $ — 8 239
Public — Canadian.............ccooueneene.. Apr. 25,2017 5.29% C$ — 186
Public — Canadian.............cceoeneee. Apr. 9,2019 3.95% C$ 478 447
Public — Canadian.............cccooveueee Mar. 1, 2021 5.30% C$ 278 260
Public — Canadian...............ccoeuvene. Mar. 31, 2023 4.54% C$ 479 448
Public — Canadian..............ccceeneee. Mar. 8, 2024 5.04% C$ 398 372
Public —U.S. ..o Apr. 1, 2024 4.00% UsS$ 748 —
Public —U.S. ... Jan. 15,2025 4.00% US$ 500 500
Public — Canadian..............ccceeneee. Jan. 28, 2026 4.82% C$ 689 646
Public —U.S. ..o Jun. 2, 2026 4.25% US$ 496 495
Public — Canadian.............c.ccoeuvenenne Mar. 16, 2027 3.80% C$ 397 372
Public = U.S. .o Mar. 1, 2033 7.38% US$ 250 250
Public — Canadian Jun. 14, 2035 5.95% C$ 335 313
Public —U.S. ..o Sep. 20, 2047 4.70% US$ 546 —

5,594 4,528

Commercial paper and bank borrowings..............c........... 1.62% C$ 103 —

Deferred financing COSES vttt e et e e e e e ee et e e e e e e e e eee 38) (28)

TOTAL ..ttt et et e e et et e et et e et et ettt et e e et e et e et e et e et et et eeeaeanas $ 5,659 $ 4,500

1. Deferred financing costs are amortized to interest expense over the term of the borrowing using the effective interest method

Corporate borrowings have a weighted-average interest rate of 4.6% (2016 — 4.8%) and include $3.2 billion (2016 — $3.0 billion)
repayable in Canadian dollars of C$4.0 billion (2016 — C$4.1 billion).

18. NON-RECOURSE BORROWINGS

a) Property-Specific Borrowings

Principal repayments on property-specific borrowings due over the next five calendar years and thereafter are as follows:

Renewable Residential
(MILLIONS) Real Estate Power Infrastructure ~ Private Equity Development Total
2018 e $ 5,602 $ 1,918 $ 653 $ 550 $ 77§ 8,800
2019 e 5,569 1,220 772 720 163 8,444
2020 . 3,960 1,216 933 540 82 6,731
2021 e 6,842 1,034 774 155 17 8,822
2022 3,194 1,031 765 410 6 5,406
Thereafter .........c.ccceenee 12,068 7,811 5,113 523 3 25,518
Total — Dec. 31, 2017..... $ 37,235 § 14,230 $ 9,010 $ 2,898 348 $ 63,721
Total — Dec. 31, 2016 ..... $ 34322 % 7,963 $ 7,901 $ 1,837 $ 419 § 52,442

The weighted-average interest rate on property-specific borrowings as at December 31, 2017 was 4.9% (2016 — 4.9%).
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The current and non-current balances of property-specific borrowings are as follows:

gﬁﬁ%‘i‘%ﬁ ! 2017 2016
CUITEIE ...ttt et e e et e e et e et eeaeeeaeeeeeeeeeeeaeeae e e e enseemaesaseeaaesetesaeesesesaeesesenseeeeenneenees $ 8,800 $ 7,655
Non-current.... 54,921 44,787
TOTAL ..ottt ettt een $ 63,721 $ 52,442
Property-specific borrowings by currency include the following:
(MILLIONS) 2017 Local Currency 2016 Local Currency
U.S. dolIars ... $ 39,164 US$ 39,164 § 31,804 USS$ 31,804
British pounds..........ccccoeeeeeiieieiirene. 6,117 £ 4,525 5,251 £ 4,250
Canadian dollars 5,272 Cs 6,627 4,427 C$ 5,951
Australian dollars 3,518 A$ 4,506 3,066 AS 4,260
Brazilian reais ............ccooceeveeeeeeieeeeeeene. 2,677 RS 8,856 1,569 RS 5,117
Korean Won.........ccceeeveeuevereeererererenenenenens 1,682 ¥ 1,795,518 1,317 W 1,589,450
Colombian Pesos.........cceereeveeererirueeerennns 1,556 CoP$ 4,645,648 1,693 COP$ 5,086,971
Indian rupees.........ceceeveeveieieieieeieienns 1,346 Rs 85,720 715 Rs 48,603
Chilean unidades de fomento.... 976 UF 22 901 UF 23
European Union euros ..........ccceevevvevennens 766 € 638 1,217 € 1,157
Peruvian nuevo soles .........ccccoevvvevveenneen. 450 S 1,459 435 S 1,459
South African rand...........c.cccoeveeveeveereennns 154 ZAR 1,909 — ZAR —
New Zealand dollars..........c.cccvereinennen. 43 NZD$ 60 47 NZD$ 60
Total ... $ 63,721 $ 52,442
b) Subsidiary Borrowings
Principal repayments on subsidiary borrowings due over the next five calendar years and thereafter are as follows:
Renewable Residential
(MILLIONS) Real Estate Power Infrastructure ~ Private Equity Development Total
$ 1,414 $ 159 § 99 3 284 § — 8 1,956
158 — — 38 — 196
1,365 358 — — 601 2,324
277 — 298 — — 575
— 318 1,147 — 496 1,961
— 830 558 58 551 1,997
Total — Dec. 31,2017..... $ 3214 § 1,665 $ 2,102 $ 380 $ 1,648 $ 9,009
Total — Dec. 31, 2016 ..... $ 2,765 $ 2,030 $ 1,002 3 536 $ 1,616 $ 7,949
The weighted-average interest rate on subsidiary borrowings as at December 31, 2017 was 4.1% (2016 — 4.1%)).
The current and non-current balances of subsidiary borrowings are as follows:
331’2{1%%%)3‘ 2017 2016
CUITEIE ...ttt et e e e e et e et e et e et e et e eaee e et e eae e e e eeeeaaesaaeemaesetesatesetesatesesenseeseeenneenees $ 1,956 $ 866
INOIIECUITEIIE .. ...ttt ettt e e e ettt e e ettt e e e aaaeeeeenaeeeesesaateesesnaaeeessnassessannsseesssnseeessnnnnes 7,053 7,083
$ 9,009 $ 7,949
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Subsidiary borrowings by currency include the following:

E“‘I\,SH‘E{I%%CS-)“ 2017 Local Currency 2016 Local Currency

U.S. dOlIars.....coveeeeierieeeeeeee e $ 5305 US$ 5305 $ 4,441 US$ 4,441

Canadian dollars 3,547 Cs 4,460 3,364 CS$ 4,525

Australian dollars ............cocoeiiriereiinieeeecee 156 A$ 199 143 A$ 200

British pounds .........c.ccccoveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1 £ 1 — £ —

European Union euros.... — € — 1 € 1

TOtAL .ottt $ 9,009 $ 7,949

19. SUBSIDIARY EQUITY OBLIGATIONS

Subsidiary equity obligations consist of the following:

gjﬁl%'i%f ! Note 2017 2016

Subsidiary preferred eqUILY UNITS..........ccvevveeveereerieeeeee ettt ereereereenes (a) $ 1,597 $ 1,574

Limited-life funds and redeemable fund Uunits.............cc.ooooueiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeceeee e (b) 1,559 1,439
(c) 505 552

$ 3,661 § 3,565

a) Subsidiary Preferred Equity Units

In 2014, BPY issued $1.8 billion of exchangeable preferred equity units in three $600 million tranches redeemable in 2021, 2024
and 2026, respectively. The preferred equity units are exchangeable into equity units of BPY at $25.70 per unit, at the option of
the holder, at any time up to and including the maturity date. BPY may redeem the preferred equity units after specified periods
if the BPY equity unit price exceeds predetermined amounts. At maturity, the preferred equity units that remain outstanding will
be converted into BPY equity units at the lower of $25.70 or the then market price of a BPY equity unit. The preferred equity
units represent a compound financial instrument comprised of the financial liability representing the company’s obligations to
redeem the preferred equity units at maturity for a variable number of BPY units and an equity instrument representing the holder’s
right to convert the preferred equity units to a fixed number of BPY units. The corporation is required under certain circumstances
to purchase the preferred equity units at their redemption value in equal amounts in 2021 and 2024 and may be required to purchase
the 2026 tranche, as further described in Note 29(a).

AS AT DEC. 31 Shares Cumulative

(MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE INFORMATION) Outstanding  Dividend Rate  Local Currency 2017 2016
SEIIES | o 24,000,000 6.25% US$ $ 551 $ 541
SEIICS 2 vttt 24,000,000 6.50% US$ 529 522
SEIIES 3 .t 24,000,000 6.75% US$ 517 511
TOTAL ... ettt ettt et e e e et e et e et e et e et e et et e e te et e eae et e eteenesteseesaeans $ 1,597 $ 1,574

b) Limited-Life Funds and Redeemable Fund Units

Limited-life funds and redeemable fund units represent interests held in our consolidated funds by third-party investors that have
been classified as a liability rather than as non-controlling interest, as holders of these interests can cause our funds to redeem
their interest in the fund for cash equivalents at a specified time. As at December 31, 2017, we have $1.6 billion of subsidiary
equity obligations arising from limited-life funds (2016 — $1.4 billion arising from limited-life funds and redeemable fund units).

In our real estate business, limited-life fund obligations include $813 million (2016 — $795 million) of equity interests held by
third-party investors in two consolidated funds that have been classified as a liability, instead of non-controlling interest, as holders
of these interests can cause the funds to redeem their interests in the fund for cash equivalents at the fair value of the interest at a
set date.

As at December 31, 2017, we have $746 million (2016 — $592 million) of subsidiary equity obligations arising from limited-life
fund units in our infrastructure business. These obligations are primarily composed of the portion of the equity interest held by
third-party investors in our timberland and agriculture funds that are attributed to the value of the land held in the fund. The value
of this equity interest has been classified as a liability, instead of non-controlling interest, as we are obligated to purchase the land
from the third-party investors on maturity of the fund.
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As at December 31, 2016, we had $52 million of redeemable fund unit obligations in our public securities business which were
settled during 2017.

¢) Subsidiary Preferred Shares and Capital

Preferred shares are classified as liabilities if the holders of the preferred shares have the right, after a fixed date, to convert the
shares into common equity of the issuer based on the market price of the common equity of the issuer at that time unless they are
previously redeemed by the issuer. The dividends paid on these securities are recorded in interest expense. As at December 31,
2017 and 2016, the balance related to obligations of BPY and its subsidiaries.

AS AT DEC. 31 Shares Cumulative
(MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE INFORMATION) Outstanding  Dividend Rate  Local Currency 2017 2016
BPO Class AAA preferred shares
SEIIES G oo — 5.25% uss $ — 8 81
SEIIES Joueiniieieiiisieieee e — 5.00% C$ — 122
Series K. — 5.20% C$ — 93
Brookfield Property Split Corp
(“BOP Split”) senior preferred shares
Series 1 924,390 5.25% US$ 23 24
Series 2 699,165 5.75% c$ 14 14
SETIES 3 ..o 909,994 5.00% C$ 18 17
SETIES 4 ... 940,486 5.20% cs 19 18
BSREP II RH B LLC (“Manufactured
Housing”) preferred capital....................... — 9.00% Uss 249 —
Rouse Series A preferred shares 5,600,000 5.00% Us$ 142 143
BSREP II Vintage Estate Partners LLC
(“Vintage Estates”) preferred shares......... 10,000 5.00% USss 40 40
TOTAL ..ttt b bbb bttt ea ettt ettt enenas $ 505 $ 552

The BPO Class AAA preferred shares, Series G, J and K were redeemed during the year.

Each series of the BOP Split senior preferred shares are redeemable at the option of either the issuer or the holder as the redemption
and conversion option dates have passed.

Subsidiary preferred capital includes $249 million at December 31,2017 (2016 — $nil) of preferred equity interests held by a third-
party investor in Manufactured Housing which has been classified as a liability, rather than as non-controlling interest, due to the
fact the holders are only entitled to distributions equal to their capital balance plus 9% annual return payable in monthly distributions
until maturity in December 2025. The preferred capital was issued to partially fund the acquisition of the Manufactured Housing
portfolio during the first quarter of 2017.

Subsidiary preferred shares include $142 million at December 31, 2017 (2016 — $143 million) of preferred equity interests held
by a third-party investor in Rouse Properties, L.P., which have been classified as a liability, rather than as non-controlling interests,
due to the fact that the interests have no voting rights and are mandatorily redeemable on or after November 12, 2025 for a set
price per unit plus any accrued but unpaid distributions; distributions are capped and accrue regardless of available cash generated.

Subsidiary preferred shares also include $40 million at December 31, 2017 (2016 — $40 million) of preferred equity interests held
by a co-investor in Vintage Estates, which have been classified as a liability, rather than as non-controlling interests, due to the
fact that the preferred equity interests are mandatorily redeemable on April 26, 2023 for cash at an amount equal to the outstanding
principal balance of the preferred equity plus any accrued but unpaid dividends.

20. SUBSIDIARY PUBLIC ISSUERS AND FINANCE SUBSIDIARY

Brookfield Finance Inc. (“BFI”) is an indirect 100% owned subsidiary of the corporation that may offer and sell debt securities.
Any debt securities issued by BFI are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the company. BFI issued $500 million of 4.25%
notes due in 2026 and $550 million of 4.70% notes due in 2047 on May 25, 2016 and September 14, 2017, respectively.

Brookfield Finance LLC (“BFL”) is a Delaware limited liability company formed on February 6, 2017 and an indirect 100%
owned subsidiary of the corporation. BFL is a “finance subsidiary,” as defined in Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X. Any debt securities
issued by BFL are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the corporation. On March 10,2017, BFL issued $750 million of 4.00%
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notes due 2024. BFL has no independent activities, assets or operations other than in connection with any debt securities it

may issue.

Brookfield Investments Corporation (“BIC”) is an investment company that holds investments in the property and forest products
sectors, as well as a portfolio of preferred shares issued by the corporation’s subsidiaries. The corporation provided a full and
unconditional guarantee of the Class 1 Senior Preferred Shares, Series A issued by BIC. As at December 31, 2017, C$42 million
of these senior preferred shares were held by third-party shareholders and are retractable at the option of the holder.

The following tables contain summarized financial information of the corporation, BFI, BFL, BIC and non-guarantor subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries of
the corporation

éﬁgggggé %?EE‘EYEAR Thelz other than BFI Coqsolidating The Company
(MILLIONS) corporation BFI BFL BIC BFL and BIC Adjustments’ Consolidated
Revenues........ccccceuveeennns $ 168 30 43 22§ 44,908 $ 4,385) $ 40,786
Net income attributable
to shareholders............... 1,462 — — 59 2,019 (2,078) 1,462
Total asSets........coovvevveenns 53,688 1,060 757 3,761 206,907 (73,453) 192,720
Total liabilities ................ 25,444 1,042 756 2,309 113,336 (30,039) 112,848
Subsidiaries of
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR the corporation fq
ENDED DEC. 31, 2016 Thelz other than BFI Coqsolldatmg The Company
(MILLIONS) corporation BFI BFL BIC BFL and BIC Adjustments’ Consolidated
Revenues........ccccccuveeennns $ 148 13 — 3 3 27,968 $ (3,721) $ 24,411
Net income attributable
to shareholders............... 1,651 — — 66 1,854 (1,920) 1,651
Total assets......cc.ccveeene... 47,505 507 — 2,974 169,033 (60,193) 159,826
Total liabilities ................. 21,052 497 — 1,411 87,252 (20,074) 90,138
1. This column accounts for investments in all subsidiaries of the corporation under the equity method
2. This column accounts for investments in all subsidiaries of the corporation other than BFI, BFL and BIC on a combined basis
3. This column includes the necessary amounts to present the company on a consolidated basis
21. EQUITY
Equity consists of the following:
ASATDEC. 1 2017 2016
PrEfEITEA EQUILY.......voveveeieeeeeecee ettt ettt s et e esee e s eae et eseae e et eseeeeses et ennes et enene e enns $ 4192 $ 3,954
Non-controlling interests 51,628 43,235
COMIMON EQUILY ... cviitieteeteeeieeieteteteteeseeseeteeseessessessassassessesseessessessassessassesseseeseessessessessassassessessessessaeseans 24,052 22,499
$ 79,872 §$ 69,688
a) Preferred Equity
Preferred equity includes perpetual preferred shares and rate-reset preferred shares and consists of the following:
Average Rate
f}ilﬁ%%cs')}l 2017 2016 2017 2016
Perpetual preferred shares
FLOAtING TALE .....cvvevveeieiicrecteeeeceeceeceeetet ettt e 2.33% 1.97% $ 531 $ 532
FIX@A TALE ...vouviviiiiciiieciceeecetee ettt 4.82% 4.82% 749 753
3.78% 3.65% 1,280 1,285
Fixed rate-reset preferred shares............ccoceeveeeeieiecieiiececeeeeeenens 4.21% 4.42% 2,912 2,669
4.08% 417% $ 4,192 $ 3,954
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Further details on each series of preferred shares are as follows:

Issued and Outstanding

(AAEIQTLI?)%%,3IEIXCEPT PER SHARE INFORMATION) Rate 2017 2016 2017 2016

Class A preferred shares

Perpetual preferred shares

SETIES 2 ..ovovvvverereverererererererenenenenenes 70% P 10,465,100 10,465,100 $ 169 § 169
SIS 4 ... 70% P/8.5% 2,800,000 2,800,000 45 45
SEIIES 8 ...t Variable up to P 2,479,585 2,479,585 43 43
Series 13 ..o 70% P 9,297,700 9,297,700 195 195
Series 15... B.A. +40 b.p.! 2,000,000 2,000,000 42 42
Series 17 ..o 4.75% 7,950,756 8,000,000 173 174
Series 18 ..o 4.75% 7,966,158 8,000,000 180 181
Series 25 ...vvvvieieeeieieieieiereieeeieienes T-Bill + 230 b.p.! 1,533,133 1,533,133 38 38
SEIIES 30 ...vveeiieieieieieieieieieieieieieiaas 4.85% 7,949,024 8,000,000 200 201
Series 37 c..vvvverereieierererererererererenenes 4.90% 7,949,083 8,000,000 195 197
1,280 1,285
Rate-reset preferred shares”

SETIES 9 ..vovvvrrereeererererererereeenerenenes 3.80% 1,519,115 1,519,115 21 21
Series 24 ....vvvreveeeieieieieiereieieeieines 3.01% 9,394,250 9,394,250 230 230
SEIIES 20 ...vveeiieieieieieieieieieieieieieaas 3.47% 9,903,348 9,903,348 243 243
Series 28... 2.73% 9,359,387 9,394,373 235 235
Series 30 ....cueveuevereieiereieieiereieieeieines 4.80% 9,934,050 9,950,452 245 245
Series 32 .ot 4.50% 11,982,568 11,982,568 303 303
Series 34 ....cuovevererererererererererenenerenenes 4.20% 9,977,889 9,977,889 255 255
Series 38 ..o 4.40% 8,000,000 8,000,000 181 181
Series 40 ....cueveveveieeeieieieieieieieieeieias 4.50% 12,000,000 12,000,000 275 275
Series 42.... 4.50% 12,000,000 12,000,000 269 269
Series 44 ....cvvveveveieiereieieiereieeeieienes 5.00% 9,945,189 10,000,000 189 190
SIS 40 ... 4.80% 11,895,790 12,000,000 220 222
Series 48” ..o, 4.75% 12,000,000 — 246 —
2,912 2,669

TOTAL ..ttt ettt bttt bbbt tenas $ 4,192 $ 3,954

1. Rate determined quarterly

2. Dividend rates are fixed for five to six years from the quarter end dates after issuance, June 30,2011, March 31,2012, June 30,2012, December 31,2012, September 30, 2013,
March 31, 2014, June 30, 2014, December 31, 2014, December 31, 2015, December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2017, respectively and reset after five to six years to the
S-year Government of Canada bond rate plus between 180 and 417 basis points

3. Issued on September 13, 2017

P — Prime Rate, B.A. — Bankers’ Acceptance Rate, b.p. — Basis Points

The company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Class A preferred shares and an unlimited number of Class AA preferred
shares, issuable in series. No Class AA preferred shares have been issued.

The Class A preferred shares are entitled to preference over the Class A and Class B Limited Voting Shares (“Class A and B shares”)
on the declaration of dividends and other distributions to shareholders. All series of the outstanding preferred shares have a par
value of C$25.00 per share.
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b) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests represent the common and preferred equity in consolidated entities that are owned by other shareholders.

(ﬁﬁ%‘i@f ! 2017 2016
COMIMON EUILY......vevietieietietieeetit ettt et et ese et eteetese et et ese s essesessesessessesesseseesessesessessebessessssessesessesesseseasens $ 47,281 §$ 39,974
PrefeITed QUILY.....ocvivivicticteeieee ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e et e eteeteeseess e b eab et et e ereereereennan 4,347 3,261
TOTAL ...ttt bt bt h bbbttt ettt b sttt n et ebenen $ 51,628 $ 43235

Further information on non-controlling interests is provided in Note 4 — Subsidiaries.
¢) Common Equity

The company’s common equity is comprised of the following:

Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ 2017 2016
COMIMON SNATES .......viviiiietieiietetete ettt ettt ettt ettt s et se s s et st sess e s s e st es et eseas et et ese s sessen s esns $ 4,428 $ 4,390
CONLITDULEA SUIPIUS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt neeneeteneenen 263 234
REtAINEA CAIMUINES .....cueeuieieieiterieet ettt ettt et et ettt b et b bt a et e et et e sbesbesbesbeeseeneans 11,864 11,490
OWNEISRIP CHAIZES ....c.ecuitiniiiicieiee ettt sttt sttt et sttt sae b 1,459 1,199
Accumulated other COMPreNENSIVE INCOME .......eeverieriirieriieiieeieieieietesre et ee e esea et essesaeseeseesseeseesaens 6,038 5,186
COTMIMON EQUILY +..envententeteettetieutetete st e stestesteeteestestent e testesbeebeebeestentententenbebeebeeheestententensentestesbesbesseeneans $ 24,052 $ 22,499

The company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Class A shares and 85,120 Class B shares, together referred to as
common shares. The company’s common shares have no stated par value. The holders of Class A shares and Class B shares rank
on par with each other with respect to the payment of dividends and the return of capital on the liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the company or any other distribution of the assets of the company among its shareholders for the purpose of winding up
its affairs. Holders of the Class A shares are entitled to elect half of the Board of Directors of the company and holders of the
Class B shares are entitled to elect the other half of the Board of Directors. With respect to the Class A and Class B shares, there
are no dilutive factors, material or otherwise, that would result in different diluted earnings per share between the classes. This
relationship holds true irrespective of the number of dilutive instruments issued in either one of the respective classes of common
stock, as both classes of shares participate equally, on a pro rata basis, in the dividends, earnings and net assets of the company,
whether taken before or after dilutive instruments, regardless of which class of shares is diluted.

Total cash dividends paid to Class A shareholders during 2017 amounted to $540 million (2016 — $500 million) or $0.56 per share
(2016 — $0.52 per share).

On June 22, 2017, the company completed the spin-off of Trisura Group Ltd. by paying a special dividend to the holders of the
company’s Class A and Class B Shares. The special dividend of $102 million recorded in equity was based on the fair value of
the assets distributed.

On June 20, 2016, the company paid a special dividend of approximately 19 million limited partnership units of a newly created
subsidiary, Brookfield Business Partners L.P. (“BBU”), to the holders of the company’s Class A and B shares. This was a common
control transaction and as such the special dividend of $441 million reflected in equity was based on the IFRS carrying value of
the 21% interest in BBU distributed to shareholders on June 20, 2016.

The number of issued and outstanding common shares and unexercised options are as follows:

AS AT DEC. 31 2017 2016
CLASS A SHATES! +-rvvvvereereeeeeeseeseeseeeseseee s seeeeeeeeesessese e e+ 4 0421 eesesseeseeseeeeeeeee 958,688,000 958,083,297
CIASS B SNATES ..ottt et ettt ettt e et e e at e e et e et e st e e et e e et e seateenaneeanns 85,120 85,120
SHATES QUESTAIAIILE -vvvrvvrvssrvsnsnsssesotesotesssesosssotvstosestossetossotosio oottt oottt 958,773,120 958,168,417
Unexercised options and other Share-based PIans? c..eiwirisimimiesesotosisisieiesososososeesesoso 47,474,284 43,798,733
TOtal dITULEA SRATES ........oiieiiiiieieeee ettt ettt e e et e e et e e et e st e e saaeesaeesneeesaneeaans 1,006,247,404 1,001,967,150

1. Netof30,569,215 (2016 — 27,846,452) Class A shares held by the company in respect of long-term compensation agreements
2. Includes management share option plan and escrowed stock plan
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The authorized common share capital consists of an unlimited number of shares. Shares issued and outstanding changed as follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
OULStANAING, DEGIMNING OF YEAT ettt ettt 958,168,417 961,290,839
Issued (repurchased)
Repurchases ....................................................................................................................................... (3,448,665) (4,707 ,1 32)
LONgG-terM ShAre OWNEISIIP PLANS? vttt ottt ottt 3,826,248 1,312,463
Dividend reinvestment plan and Others .............ccoiiiiriiiiniiiiiicccccee e 227,120 272,247
OUtSTANAING, ENA OF YEAT! -vvrirrvvvvrssivvresssisssenssss s 958,773,120 958,168,417

1. Netof 30,569,215 (2016 — 27,846,452) Class A shares held by the company in respect of long-term compensation agreements
2. Includes management share option plan and restricted stock plan

Earnings Per Share

The components of basic and diluted earnings per share are summarized in the following table:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31

(MILLIONS) 2017 2016
Net income attributable to Shareholders..........c.ccuverieiririiiiniie e $ 1,462 $ 1,651
Preferred share divIdends........cccoeveueiririeieirinieieinccirec ettt (145) (133)
Net income available to shareholders $ 1,317 $ 1,518
Weighted average — COMMON SHATES .........c.cuiirieieuiririereiirieici ettt enene 958.8 959.0
Dilutive effect of the conversion of options and escrowed shares using treasury stock method......... 21.2 17.6
Common shares and common share eqUIVALENTS ..........cccccueiriiririienieinieerc e 980.0 976.6

Share-Based Compensation

The expense recognized for share-based compensation is summarized in the following table:
(FD%{L E—IOEN\Q)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions...............ccceeeeeeeeruereeenuenenne $ 69 3 64
Expense arising from cash-settled share-based payment transactions............cc.ceceeevvrurieieirieuenninnen 281 32
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions ..........c..ccceeveereeireneerenseriecrenenens 350 96
Effect of hedging PrOZIram ......cc.ccoiiiiiiiiiicece e 275) 27)
Total expense included in consolidated INCOME...........c.cerieririeiiiiieirieiec ettt eseaeee e $ 75 3 69

The share-based payment plans are described below. There were no cancellations or modifications to any of the plans during 2017
and 2016.

Equity-settled Share-based Awards
Management Share Option Plan

Options issued under the company’s Management Share Option Plan (“MSOP”) vest over a period of up to five years, expire
10 years after the grant date and are settled through issuance of Class A shares. The exercise price is equal to the market price at
the grant date.
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The change in the number of options during 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted-
Options Average Options Average
(000’s)'  Exercise Price (000’s)>  Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2017 ........ccccoeveiveieirieieeeeeenen 7,684 C$ 1563 $ 31,483 USS 25.77
GIanted.........oc.oiiviiiieieeeee ettt — — 6,331 36.92
EXEICISEA ...ttt (4,887) 17.50 (2,149) 24.36
— — (772) 33.28
2,797 C$ 12.35 34,893 US$S 27.71
1. Options to acquire TSX listed Class A shares

2. Options to acquire NYSE listed Class A shares
Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted-
Options Average Options Average
(000’s)!  Exercise Price (000’s) Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2016 9,427 C$ 17.07 $ 28,488 US$ 24.98
GIANTEA ...ttt e e eae e e e — — 4,363 30.59
EXEICISEA ..ottt (1,743) 23.44 (970) 22.00
CanCeled.......cueeuieeieiieieieee e — — (398) 31.25
Outstanding at December 31, 2016..........cooveevieriereeneerienrenee. 7,684 C$ 15.63 31,483 US$ 25.77

1. Options to acquire TSX listed Class A shares
2. Options to acquire NYSE listed Class A shares

The cost of the options granted during the year was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model, with inputs to the model

as follows:

YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 Unit 2017 2016
Weighted-average Share Price...........ccveveeeierierieriesieneseseseeeeeeeesaessennens US$ 36.92 30.59
Weighted-average fair value per option ..........cccecevevenenieneneneeeenienieneens US$ 4.92 5.29
Average term to exercise Years 7.5 7.5
Share Price VOIAtIEY" ..........oveveeeeeeeeeee oo eenee % 18.9 28.0
Liquidity diSCOUNL.......ccociiiiiiiiiiiticiieieceeeieee ettt % 25.0 25.0
Weighted-average annual dividend yield .........c.cocccveneineonineinccnnenns % 2.1 1.6
RISK-FTEE TALE ...t % 2.3 1.6
1. Share price volatility was determined based on historical share prices over a similar period to the average term to exercise
At December 31, 2017, the following options to purchase Class A shares were outstanding:
Weighted-Average Options Outstanding (000’s)
Exercise Price Remaining Life Vested Unvested Total
CSI1TT ot 1.2 years 2,620 — 2,620
C$21.08 ... 0.1 years 177 — 177
USSISA5 s 2.2 years 4,772 — 4,772
US$16.83 — US$23.37 ..o 3.8 years 5,834 — 5,834
US$25.21 — US$30.59 ..o 6.5 years 6,858 5,967 12,825
US$33.75 = US$36.32 ... 7.1 years 2,049 3,191 5,240
US$36.88 — USS37.75 ..o 9.1 years — 6,222 6,222
22,310 15,380 37,690
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At December 31, 2016, the following options to purchase Class A shares were outstanding:

Options Outstanding (000°’s)

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Remaining Life Vested Unvested Total
COLLTT s 2.2 years 4,885 — 4,885
C$18.20 — C$23.63 1.1 years 2,159 — 2,159
C826.02.cneeeeeeee s 0.1 years 640 — 640
USSIS545 e 3.2 years 5,153 — 5,153
US$16.83 — US$23.37 4.8 years 5,626 890 6,516
US$25.21 — US$30.59 7.5 years 4,692 9,143 13,835
US$33.75 = US$36.32 ..o 8.1 years 949 5,030 5,979

24,104 15,063 39,167

Escrowed Stock Plan

The Escrowed Stock Plan (the “ES Plan”) provides executives with indirect ownership of Class A shares. Under the ES Plan,
executives are granted common shares (the “ES Shares”) in one or more private companies that own Class A shares. The Class A
shares are purchased on the open market with the purchase cost funded by the company. The ES shares vest over one to five years
and must be held until the fifth anniversary of the grant date. At a date no less than five years, and no more than 10 years, from
the grant date, all outstanding ES shares will be exchanged for Class A shares issued by the company based on the market value
of Class A shares at the time of the exchange. The number of Class A shares issued on exchange will be less than the Class A
shares purchased under the ES Plan resulting in a net reduction in the number of Class A shares issued by the company.

During 2017, 3.7 million Class A shares were purchased in respect of ES shares granted to executives under the ES Plan (2016 —
3.3 million Class A shares) during the year. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the total expense incurred with respect to the
ES Plan totaled $26 million (2016 — $26 million).

The cost of the escrowed shares granted during the year was determined using the Black-Scholes model of valuation with inputs
to the model as follows:

YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 Unit 2017 2016
Weighted-average Share Price............eoveeeeevveereereereeeereereereeeeceeeeeeneeneeneas USS$ 36.88 30.59
Weighted-average fair value per share .............cccoeevenencninencincinenne US$ 4.92 5.29
AVETage term t0 EXEICISE ...cuveveueerirrerieriteniateeetieteseateeeseeteseesensesesseneesesseneas Years 7.5 7.5
Share price VOIAtILY ...........ooooveeeeeeeeeeeee oo % 18.9 28.0
Liquidity diSCOUNL........cecuiieiieriietiieteetee ettt senees % 25.0 25.0
Weighted-average annual dividend yield ...........cccocoveinineiiniiniinee, % 2.1 1.6
RISK-T@E TALE .....oeeviieiieieieieteeeee ettt % 2.3 1.6

1. Share price volatility was determined based on historical share prices over a similar period to the average term to exercise
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The change in the number of ES shares during 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Weighted-

Number of Average

Units (000’s) Exercise Price

Outstanding at JanUATy 1, 2017 .........ccvieviirioieieeieeeeeeeee et ettt ettt ettt ere e ensens e enneans 24,167 $ 27.77
3,700 36.88

95) 21.74

Outstanding at December 31, 2017 .......cc.ooieieieieeeeeeeeceeeee ettt ettt et ere s s e neans 27,772 $ 29.01
Weighted-

Number of Average

Units (000’s) Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 1, 2016, ........ccooviirieieieieieieeeceeceecre ettt ettt et e easenene 20,938 $ 27.33
GIANTEA........c.ectiiictiiceeiet ettt ettt ettt ettt bete b e st etessese e s e st eseeseseebesseseebeseeb e s eseebesaeseseseeseseenas 3,250 30.59
EXEICISEA....cviviieieiicitiietet ettt ettt ettt ettt et se e b e b e b e b e ebeeaeeseessessessesbasbesbesteeseesaesaersennens 21 21.74
Outstanding at December 31, 2016........c.ocuievieuieiiieieiecieceecte ettt et e easeneae 24,167 $ 27.77

Restricted Stock Plan

The Restricted Stock Plan awards executives with Class A shares purchased on the open market (“Restricted Shares”). Under the
Restricted Stock Plan, Restricted Shares awarded vest over a period of up to five years, except for Restricted Shares awarded in
lieu of a cash bonus, which may vest immediately. Vested and unvested Restricted Shares are subject to a hold period of up to
five years. Holders of Restricted Shares are entitled to vote Restricted Shares and to receive associated dividends. Employee
compensation expense for the Restricted Stock Plan is charged against income over the vesting period.

During 2017, Brookfield granted 760,754 Class A shares (2016 —449,110) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Restricted
Stock Plan, resulting in the recognition of $18 million (2016 — $11 million) of compensation expense.

Cash-settled Share-based Awards
Deferred Share Unit Plan and Restricted Share Unit Plan

The Deferred Share Unit Plan and Restricted Share Unit Plan provide for the issuance of DSUs and RSUs, respectively. Under
these plans, qualifying employees and directors receive varying percentages of their annual incentive bonus or directors’ fees in
the form of DSUs and RSUs. The DSUs and RSUs vest over periods of up to five years, and DSUs accumulate additional DSUs
at the same rate as dividends on common shares based on the market value of the common shares at the time of the dividend.
Participants are not allowed to convert DSUs and RSUs into cash until retirement or cessation of employment.

The value of the DSUs, when converted to cash, will be equivalent to the market value of the common shares at the time the
conversion takes place. The value of the RSUs, when converted into cash, will be equivalent to the difference between the market
price of equivalent number of common shares at the time the conversion takes place and the market price on the date the RSUs
are granted. The company uses equity derivative contracts to offset its exposure to the change in share prices in respect of vested
and unvested DSUs and RSUs. The fair value of the vested DSUs and RSUs as at December 31, 2017 was $1.0 billion (2016 —
$777 million).

Employee compensation expense for these plans is charged against income over the vesting period of the DSUs and RSUs. The
amount payable by the company in respect of vested DSUs and RSUs changes as a result of dividends and share price movements.
All of the amounts attributable to changes in the amounts payable by the company are recorded as employee compensation expense
in the period of the change. For the year ended December 31, 2017, employee compensation expense totaled $7 million (2016 —
$5 million), net of the impact of hedging arrangements.
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The change in the number of DSUs and RSUs during 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

DSUs RSUs

Weighted-

Number Number Average

of Units of Units Exercise

(000’s) (000’s) Price

Outstanding at January 1, 2017..........ccooeevieieiiiiieieeeeeeeeeee e 14,986 10,920 CS$ 9.09

Granted and reinvested 661 — —

Exercised and canceled (703) _ _

Outstanding at December 31, 2017..........ccooeevieieieiiiiceeeeeeeeeeee e 14,944 10,920 C$ 9.09

DSUs RSUs

Weighted-

Number Number Average

of Units of Units Exercise

(000°s) (000°s) Price

Outstanding at January 1, 2016............ccocvvevivievieeieeceeeeeeeee e 13,793 10,920 C$ 9.09

Granted and reinvested ........c.oceveiriniiiniciiece e 1,264 — —

Exercised and canceled............coooeiiiiiiiiiiiic (71) — —

Outstanding at December 31, 2016..........c.cccvvevreveerecreeriereeeeeeeeereereevenen 14,986 10,920 C$ 9.09
The fair value of each DSU is equal to the traded price of the company’s common shares.

Unit Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016

Share price on date of MEASUTEMENL............cocvevereerieieerieeeeeeeeeereere e CS$ 54.72 44.30

Share price on date of MEASUTEMENL...........cceevieieieieieneee e US$ 43.54 33.01

The fair value of RSUs was determined primarily using the following inputs:

Unit Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016

Share price on date of measurement...............cc.eeveeveeveereeeeneeeeeeeeereereenens C$ 54.72 44.30

Weighted-average fair value of a unit ............ccccooveevviivieineciniceeens C$ 45.63 35.21

22. REVENUES

Revenues include $14.5 billion (2016 — $14.7 billion) from the sale of goods, $25.1 billion (2016 — $8.4 billion) from the rendering

of services and $1.2 billion (2016 — $1.3 billion) from other activities.

23. DIRECT COSTS

Direct costs include all attributable expenses except interest, depreciation and amortization, taxes and fair value changes and
primarily relate to cost of sales and compensation. The following table lists direct costs for 2017 and 2016 by nature:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS)

COSE OF SALES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt s ettt b s e st n et s et e e neneas
COMPEIISALION. ...ttt ettt ettt e ettt e et et es e et eseeb e s eseebeseeseaseseabeneebenseseabeneeseseseasaneesenes
Selling, general and adminiStrative EXPENSES..........c.eeviereereereereeeeiesreereereereereeeeseesseeseeseeseereereens

Property taxes, sales taxes and Other...........coveeiriieiinec e
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2017 2016
26,461 $ 12,487
2,795 2,039
1,339 1,544
1,793 1,648
32,388 $ 17,718




24. FAIR VALUE CHANGES

Fair value changes recorded in net income represent gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of assets and liabilities,
including derivative financial instruments, accounted for using the fair value method and are comprised of the following:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31

(MILLIONS) 2017 2016
INVESTMENT PIOPEITIES ....euviutiieiiitiietietei ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt ettt sttt st be et eae e saenes $ 1,021 $ 960
GGP WATTANES ... s s (268) (110)
TIP@IIINIEIIE ...ttt ettt ettt b et b e bbb st e b et st e s e b e e e st e b e st ebe s eseanennas 98) (771)
PIOVISIONS ...ttt ettt etttk st b ettt b et b ket b bttt e e enen (246) 99)
Transaction related gains (losses), net 0f deal COSES........coeviriiriniirinieircieeee s 637 (148)
FINANCIAL COMIACES......eueeuitiiieiiieiirt ettt ettt b et s et b e st b et ebe s ese b (600) 65
Other fair value ChanGEs...........ccoiiiiiiiiiic et (25) 27)
$ 421 $ (130)

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk (i.e. currency risk, interest rate risk, and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company selectively uses derivative financial instruments principally to manage

these risks.

The aggregate notional amount of the company’s derivative positions at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

AS AT DEC. 31

($ MILLIONS) Note 2017 2016
FOreign @XChaNGE.........ccvcviiviiiriieiieieietct ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt a et s et ss s b sneneenes (a) $ 28,573 $ 21,782
IIEETESE TALES ... ettt e e et e et e et e e eaeeeeateesaaeeeaeeeenaeesaseesseessnaeesaeeennns (b) 18,433 17,092
Credit default swaps () 43 182
EQUILY AETIVATIVES ...euviieciiciiciieiieieieiet ettt ettt ettt et et sbeebeeseeseessessessebessessassassans (d) 1,384 2,583
CommOAIty INSIIUMENLS ........ccvierierieriereereeeeeeereereereereereeseeeeeseseeseeseessessersensesesseeseereereereens (e) 2017 2016

ENCTZY (GWH) oottt ettt s et neneas 28,808 15,904

Natural gas (MMBEU — 0007S) .....c.eeuieiiiiiiiiietisriereeeee ettt et ere e s es e s eresreeneas 48,163 9,150
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a) Foreign Exchange

The company held the following foreign exchange contracts with notional amounts at December 31,2017 and December 31, 2016:

Notional Amount
(U.S. Dollars) Average Exchange Rate
(MILLIONS) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Foreign exchange contracts
British pounds .........coceoiiiiriieeeeee e $ 7,312 $ 6,231 $ 129 § 1.26
Australian dOLArsS ...........oocveevveeeeieeeee e 3,610 5,022 0.75 0.74
European Union GUIOS...........cocveveereereereereereereeeeeeeeeesessesseereeseeseas 2,754 1,855 1.15 1.11
Canadian dOLLars.............ccooveveiiiiiiiieceecee e 2,619 1,405 0.78 0.75
KOT@AN WOM ... ..uiiiiiiiiiei e 578 485 1,100 1,153
Chinese yuan 346 252 6.72 7.06
Brazilian reais 62 511 0.27 0.32
JAPANESE YEM...ouviiiiiceiieiieeiiecieeete ettt ettt et et ene s 14 203 110.17 116.39
Other CUITENCIES ....euveveiieieieitrieteeeee ettt eeenenens 256 186 various various
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Canadian dOLLATS...........cocueeeeuieeeeeeeeeeeeee et 2,442 2,269 0.76 0.82
European Union EUIOS..........c.oveveeveereereereereereereeeesesessesseeseereeneas 1,914 530 1.06 1.06
Australian doLIars ............ccoovviiieieiiiieeeee e 1,610 1,484 0.98 0.99
JAPANESE YOM...ouviiiiieeiieiieeiiecieeete ettt ettt b e eneas 750 — 113.33 —
ColoMDIAN PESOS.....veevierierierierieeeeeereereereereere e ese et eere e ereenes 299 125 3,056 3,056
BritiSh pOUNAS .....coeiviviiiiiiieeceeeceeeeee e 272 249 1.45 1.49
Foreign exchange options
European Union EUIOS..........c.cveveeveereereereereereereeeeeesresreeseeseeseenens 1,801 — 1.21 —
Canadian dollars 1,000 — 0.76 —
British pounds 534 — 1.19 —
JaAPANESE YON....ieuieiieieieieeieeeeeee ettt 400 975 118.00 118.00

Included in net income are unrealized net losses on foreign currency derivative contracts amounting to $364 million (2016 —
$62 million) and included in the cumulative translation adjustment account in other comprehensive income are losses in respect
of foreign currency contracts entered into for hedging purposes amounting to $1,491 million (2016 — gain of $893 million).

b) Interest Rates

At December 31, 2017, the company held interest rate swap and forward starting swap contracts having an aggregate notional
amount of $8.8 billion (2016 — $6.6 billion), interest rate swaptions with an aggregate notional amount of $0.9 billion (2016 —
$4.1 billion) and interest rate cap contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $8.7 billion (2016 — $6.4 billion).

¢) Credit Default Swaps

As at December 31, 2017, the company held credit default swap contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $43 million
(2016 — $182 million). Credit default swaps are contracts which are designed to compensate the purchaser for any change in the
value of an underlying reference asset, based on measurement in credit spreads, upon the occurrence of predetermined credit
events. The company is entitled to receive payments in the event of a predetermined credit event for up to $43 (2016 —$100 million)
of the notional amount and could be required to make payments in respect of $nil (2016 — $82 million) of the notional amount.

d) Equity Derivatives

At December 31, 2017, the company held equity derivatives with a notional amount of $1,384 million (2016 — $2,583 million)
which includes $1.1 billion (2016 — $988 million) notional amount that hedges long-term compensation arrangements. The
balance represents common equity positions established in connection with the company’s investment activities. The fair value
of these instruments was reflected in the company’s consolidated financial statements at year end.
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e) Commodity Instruments

The company has entered into energy derivative contracts primarily to hedge the sale of generated power. The company endeavors
to link forward electricity sale derivatives to specific periods in which it expects to generate electricity for sale. All energy derivative
contracts are recorded at an amount equal to fair value and are reflected in the company’s consolidated financial statements. The
company has financial contracts outstanding on 48,163,000 MMBtu’s of natural gas as part of its electricity sale price risk
mitigation strategy.

Other Information Regarding Derivative Financial Instruments

The following table classifies derivatives elected for hedge accounting during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 as
either cash flow hedges or net investment hedges. Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of the hedge are recorded in
either other comprehensive income or net income, depending on the hedge classification, whereas changes in the fair value of the
ineffective portion of the hedge are recorded in net income:

2017 2016
Effective Ineffective Effective Ineffective
fﬁﬁg%%‘gams FNDED DECEMBER 31 Notional Portion Portion Notional Portion Portion
Cash flow hedges1 ........................................ $ 10,254 $ 42 $ ae) $ 11,998 $ 149 § (13)
Net investment hedges..........c.ccoeeeviereeneennen. 14,587 (748) — 13,973 129 —
$ 24841 $ (706) $ (16) $ 25971 $ 278 $ (13)

1. Notional amount does not include 15,586 GWh, 45,014 MMBtu and 3,087 bbls and 8,561 GWh of commodity derivatives at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively

The following table presents the change in fair values of the company’s derivative positions during the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, for derivatives that are fair valued through profit or loss, and derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting:

Unrealized Unrealized

Gains During Losses Net Change Net Change
(MILLIONS) 2017  During 2017  During 2017 During 2016
Foreign exchange derivatives.........ccocuevvevverierierieseseeeeeeeeeeiennns $ 119 § 483) $ (364) $ (62)
Interest rate deriVatiVES ........c..ccuieveeeeieeeereeeeeeeeeere e e 20 35) as) 110
Credit default SWaPS......c.coeevievierieeeeeeeeeecece e 2 — 2 5)
Equity derivatiVes .......c.cceevereeieieeeieieieiesie et aeneas 204 35) 169 9
Commodity deriVatiVes ..........ceeveerierieieieieieereere et ereeseeeenens 69 (103) 34 9

$ 414 $ (656) $ 242) $ 43
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The following table presents the notional amounts underlying the company’s derivative instruments by term to maturity as at
December 31, 2017 and the comparative notional amounts at December 31, 2016, for derivatives that are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, and derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting:

2017 2016

&SI\%TLLDE)CNS)I <1 Year 1 to S Years >5 Years Total NA(:SSSI?: Total I\/i(;nngﬁﬁi
Fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange derivatives..................... $ 5,516 $ 4,074 $ 1,042 $ 10,632 $ 5,065
Interest rate derivatives ...........ccoceevvevenvnen. 7,287 4,034 211 11,532 7,838
Credit default SWapS........ccoeeevieeeereeennennn. — 43 — 43 182
Equity derivatives........c.ccoeeeveereereereeneennene. 680 682 — 1,362 2,560
Commodity instruments

Energy (GWh) ....ooeiiiiiiiecee 5,328 7,894 — 13,222 7,343

Natural gas (MMBtu — 000’s).................. 2,459 690 — 3,149 9,150
Elected for hedge accounting
Foreign exchange derivatives..................... $ 12,674 $ 3,391 § 1,876 $ 17,941 $ 16,717
Interest rate derivatives ... 607 5,184 1,110 6,901 9,254
Equity derivatives............ccceeeveerreverinenns 10 12 — 22 24
Commodity instruments

Energy (GWh) ...ccoovviiiieiieeee, 1,412 11,494 2,680 15,586 8,561

Natural gas (MMBtu — 000’s).................. 37,052 7,962 — 45,014 —

26. MANAGEMENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM HOLDING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company is exposed to the following risks as a result of holding financial instruments: market risk (i.e. interest rate risk,
currency exchange risk and other price risk that impact the fair value of financial instruments), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
following is a description of these risks and how they are managed:

a) Market Risk

Market risk is defined for these purposes as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument held by the
company will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes the risk of changes in interest rates, currency
exchange rates and changes in market prices due to factors other than interest rates or currency exchange rates, such as changes
in equity prices, commodity prices or credit spreads.

The company manages market risk from foreign currency assets and liabilities and the impact of changes in currency exchange
rates and interest rates by funding assets with financial liabilities in the same currency and with similar interest rate characteristics,
and by holding financial contracts such as interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives to minimize residual exposures.

Financial instruments held by the company that are subject to market risk include other financial assets, borrowings and derivative
instruments such as interest rate, currency, equity and commodity contracts.

i. Interest Rate Risk

The observable impacts on the fair values and future cash flows of financial instruments that can be directly attributable to interest
rate risk include changes in the net income from financial instruments whose cash flows are determined with reference to floating
interest rates and changes in the value of financial instruments whose cash flows are fixed in nature.

The company’s assets largely consist of long-duration interest-sensitive physical assets. Accordingly, the company’s financial
liabilities consist primarily of long-term fixed-rate debt or floating-rate debt that has been swapped with interest rate derivatives.
These financial liabilities are, with few exceptions, recorded at their amortized cost. The company also holds interest rate caps to
limit its exposure to increases in interest rates on floating rate debt that has not been swapped, and holds interest rate contracts
to lock in fixed rates on anticipated future debt issuances and as an economic hedge against the changes in value of long duration
interest sensitive physical assets that have not been otherwise matched with fixed rate debt.
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The result of a 50 basis-point increase in interest rates on the company’s net floating rate financial assets and liabilities would
have resulted in a corresponding decrease in net income before tax of $80 million (2016 — $45 million) on an annualized basis.

Changes in the value of fair value through profit or loss interest rate contracts are recorded in net income and changes in the value
of contracts that are elected for hedge accounting are recorded in other comprehensive income. The impact of a 50 basis-point
parallel increase in the yield curve on the aforementioned financial instruments is estimated to result in a corresponding increase
in net income before tax of $53 million (2016 — $26 million) and an increase in other comprehensive income of $98 million (2016 —
$72 million), for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

ii. Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Changes in currency rates will impact the carrying value of financial instruments denominated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar.

The company holds financial instruments with net unmatched exposures in several currencies, changes in the translated value of
which are recorded in net income. The impact of a 1% increase in the U.S. dollar against these currencies would have resulted in
a $44 million (2016 — $38 million) increase in the value of these positions on a combined basis. The impact on cash flows from
financial instruments would be insignificant. The company holds financial instruments to limit its exposure to the impact of foreign
currencies on its net investments in foreign operations whose functional and reporting currencies are other than the U.S. dollar.
A 1% increase in the U.S. dollar would increase the value of these hedging instruments by $142 million (2016 — $133 million) as
at December 31, 2017, which would be recorded in other comprehensive income and offset by changes in the U.S. dollar carrying
value of the net investment being hedged.

iii. Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk of variability in fair value due to movements in equity prices or other market prices such as commodity
prices and credit spreads.

Financial instruments held by the company that are exposed to equity price risk include equity securities and equity derivatives.
A 5% decrease in the market price of equity securities and equity derivatives held by the company, excluding equity derivatives that
hedge compensation arrangements, would have decreased net income by $45 million (2016 — $161 million) and decreased other
comprehensive income by $62 million (2016 —$48 million), prior to taxes. The company’s liability in respect of equity compensation
arrangements is subject to variability based on changes in the company’s underlying common share price. The company holds
equity derivatives to hedge almost all of the variability. A 5% change in the common equity price of the company in respect of
compensation agreements would increase the compensation liability and compensation expense by $65 million (2016 —
$52 million). This increase would be offset by a $65 million (2016 —$52 million) change in value of the associated equity derivatives
of which $64 million (2016 — $51 million) would offset the above-mentioned increase in compensation expense and the remaining
$1 million (2016 — $1 million) would be recorded in other comprehensive income.

The company sells power and generation capacity under long-term agreements and financial contracts to stabilize future revenues.
Certain of the contracts are considered financial instruments and are recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements,
with changes in value being recorded in either net income or other comprehensive income as applicable. A 5% increase in energy
prices would have decreased net income for the year ended December 31,2017 by approximately $11 million (2016 — $15 million)
and decreased other comprehensive income by $4 million (2016 — $16 million), prior to taxes. The corresponding increase in the
value of the revenue or capacity being contracted, however, is not recorded in net income until subsequent periods.

The company held credit default swap contracts with a total notional amount of $43 million (2016 — $182 million) at December 31,
2017. The company is exposed to changes in the credit spread of the contracts’ underlying reference assets. A 50 basis-point
increase in the credit spread of the underlying reference assets would have increased net income by $1 million (2016 — $2 million)
for the year ended December 31, 2017, prior to taxes.

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a borrower or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. The company’s
exposure to creditrisk in respect of financial instruments relates primarily to counterparty obligations regarding derivative contracts,
loans receivable and credit investments such as bonds and preferred shares.

The company assesses the creditworthiness of each counterparty before entering into contracts with a view to ensuring that
counterparties meet minimum credit quality requirements. Management evaluates and monitors counterparty credit risk for
derivative financial instruments and endeavors to minimize counterparty credit risk through diversification, collateral
arrangements, and other credit risk mitigation techniques. The credit risk of derivative financial instruments is generally limited
to the positive fair value of the instruments, which, in general, tends to be a relatively small proportion of the notional value.
Substantially all of the company’s derivative financial instruments involve either counterparties that are banks or other financial
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institutions in North America, the United Kingdom and Australia, or arrangements that have embedded credit risk mitigation
features. The company does not expect to incur credit losses in respect of any of these counterparties. The maximum exposure in
respect of loans receivable and credit investments is equal to the carrying value.

¢) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company cannot meet a demand for cash or fund an obligation as it comes due. Liquidity risk
also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable price.

To help ensure the company is able to react to contingencies and investment opportunities quickly, the company maintains sources
of liquidity at the corporate and subsidiary levels. The primary source of liquidity consists of cash and other financial assets, net
of deposits and other associated liabilities, and undrawn committed credit facilities.

The company is subject to the risks associated with debt financing, including the ability to refinance indebtedness at maturity. The
company believes these risks are mitigated through the use of long-term debt secured by high quality assets, maintaining debt
levels that are in management’s opinion relatively conservative, and by diversifying maturities over an extended period of time.
The company also seeks to include in its agreements terms that protect the company from liquidity issues of counterparties that
might otherwise impact the company’s liquidity.

The following tables present the contractual maturities of the company’s financial liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Payments Due by Period
S\/Snﬁl%lf:\%MBER}l’ o <1 Year 1 to 3 Years 4 to 5 Years After 5 Years Total
Principal repayments
Corporate borrowings.............ccceevevenenens $ — 478 $ 278 $ 4,903 $ 5,659
Property-specific borrowings................... 8,800 15,175 14,228 25,518 63,721
Other debt of subsidiaries........................ 1,956 2,520 2,536 1,997 9,009
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 76 53 1,001 2,531 3,661
Interest expense1
Corporate borrowings.............ceveevevennens 259 494 462 1,433 2,648
Non-recourse borrowings ..............c........ 3,248 5,024 3,575 5,314 17,161
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 226 428 340 322 1,316

1. Represents the aggregated interest expense expected to be paid over the term of the obligations. Variable interest rate payments have been calculated based on current rates

Payments Due by Period
S\/Snﬁl%lf:\%MBER}l’ 2010 <I Year 1 to 3 Years 4to 5 Years After 5 Years Total
Principal repayments
Corporate borrowings..........c..c.ceevevenenens $ 425 $ 447 $ 260 $ 3,368 $ 4,500
Property-specific borrowings................... 7,655 13,965 13,467 17,355 52,442
Other debt of subsidiaries 866 2,699 1,955 2,429 7,949
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 421 143 1,217 1,784 3,565
Interest expense1
Corporate borrowings............ccoeveevevennnns 201 375 342 878 1,796
Non-recourse borrowings ..............c........ 2,776 4,549 3,219 4,378 14,922
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 198 376 318 378 1,270

1. Represents the aggregated interest expense expected to be paid over the term of the obligations. Variable interest rate payments have been calculated based on current rates
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27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital of the company consists of the components of equity in the company’s consolidated balance sheet (i.e. common and
preferred equity). As at December 31, 2017, the recorded values of these items in the company’s consolidated financial statements
totaled $28.2 billion (2016 — $26.5 billion).

The company’s objectives when managing this capital are to maintain an appropriate balance between holding a sufficient amount
of capital to support its operations, which includes maintaining investment-grade ratings at the corporate level, and providing
shareholders with a prudent amount of leverage to enhance returns. Corporate leverage, which consists of corporate debt as well
as subsidiary obligations that are guaranteed by the company or are otherwise considered corporate in nature, totaled $5.7 billion
based on carrying values at December 31,2017 (2016 — $4.5 billion). The company monitors its capital base and leverage primarily
in the context of its deconsolidated debt-to-total capitalization ratios. The ratio as at December 31, 2017 was 16% (2016 — 14%).

The consolidated capitalization of the company includes the capital and financial obligations of consolidated entities, including
long-term property-specific borrowings, subsidiary borrowings, capital securities as well as common and preferred equity held
by other investors in these entities. The capital in these entities is managed at the entity level with oversight by management of
the company. The capital is managed with the objective of maintaining investment-grade levels in most circumstances and is,
except in limited and carefully managed circumstances, without any recourse to the company. Management of the company also
takes into consideration capital requirements of consolidated and non-consolidated entities in which it has interests in when
considering the appropriate level of capital and liquidity on a deconsolidated basis.

The company is subject to limited covenants in respect of its corporate debt and is in full compliance with all such covenants as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016. The company is also in compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to
regulatory or contractual obligations of material consequence to the company.

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
a) Related Parties

Related parties include subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements, key management personnel, the Board of Directors
(“Directors”), immediate family members of key management personnel and Directors and entities which are directly or indirectly
controlled by, jointly controlled by or significantly influenced by key management personnel, Directors or their close family
members.

b) Key Management Personnel and Directors

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the company’s activities, directly or indirectly, and consist of the company’s Senior Executives. The company’s Directors do not
plan, direct or control the activities of the company directly; they provide oversight over the business.

The remuneration of key management personnel and Directors of the company during the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 was as follows:

fﬁﬁ{ﬁ)ﬁ\]\g;ﬂARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Salaries, incentives and Short-term DENETItS ...........cc.coviviiiiiiiiieiee et $ 18 $ 19
Share-based payments 54 50

$ 72 3 69

The remuneration of key management personnel and Directors is determined by the Management Resources and Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors having regard to the performance of individuals and market funds.

¢) Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of operations, the company executes transactions on market terms with related parties that have been measured
at exchange value and are recognized in the consolidated financial statements, including, but not limited to: base management
fees, performance fees and incentive distributions; loans, interest and non-interest bearing deposits; power purchase and sale
agreements; capital commitments to private funds; the acquisition and disposition of assets and businesses; derivative contracts;
and the construction and development of assets. Transactions and balances between consolidated entities are fully eliminated
upon consolidation.
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The following table lists the related party balances included within the consolidated financial statements as at and for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

ﬁ\ilﬁ{%};‘%;OR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2017 2016
Investment and Other I0SSES ........cc.iviiviiiiiiicieceeeeee ettt ettt ettt ere e s v sb e v veereenean $ (268) $ (110)
FINANCTAL BSSELS ....viuiietiiiieiet ettt ettt ettt a ettt b bt bes et se s et et e s et s eteneea — 1,254
Management fEES TECEIVEA. ......cviviirieriirieieeieeeeeetete ettt et re et et esse b essesbesteeseessessessessessesessesseeseeseas 47 56

Prior year’s balance of $1.3 billion represents warrants that BPY holds which are convertible into common shares of GGP. As at
December 31, 2017, as a result of the conversion of the warrants to common shares of the company, we no longer hold any related
party financial assets.

In connection with our open-ended real estate fund launched in 2016, BPY contributed certain operating buildings and development
projects for net proceeds of approximately $500 million, which was received in the form of cash and limited partner interest in
the fund. The company is the general partner of the fund and will earn fees for the management of this fund. This fund is equity
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of the company.

29. OTHER INFORMATION

a) Guarantees and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the company enters into contractual obligations which include commitments to provide bridge
financing, letters of credit, guarantees and reinsurance obligations. As at December 31, 2017, the company had $2.6 billion (2016 —
$2.6 billion) of such commitments outstanding. The company also had $3.8 billion of future operating lease obligations at
December 31, 2017, of which $1.9 billion relates to land leases with agreements largely expiring after the year 2065.

In addition, the company executes agreements that provide for indemnifications and guarantees to third parties in transactions or
dealings such as business dispositions, business acquisitions, sales of assets, provision of services, securitization agreements and
underwriting and agency agreements. The company has also agreed to indemnify its directors and certain of its officers
and employees. The nature of substantially all of the indemnification undertakings prevents the company from making a reasonable
estimate of the maximum potential amount the company could be required to pay third parties, as in most cases, the agreements
do not specify a maximum amount, and the amounts are dependent upon the outcome of future contingent events, the nature and
likelihood of which cannot be determined at this time. Neither the company nor its consolidated subsidiaries have made significant
payments in the past nor do they expect at this time to make any significant payments under such indemnification agreements in
the future.

The company periodically enters into joint ventures, consortium or other arrangements that have contingent liquidity rights in
favor of the company or its counterparties. These include buy sell arrangements, registration rights and other customary
arrangements that generally have embedded protective terms that mitigate the risk to us. The amount, timing and likelihood of
any payments by the company under these arrangements is, in most cases, dependent on either further contingent events or
circumstances applicable to the counterparty and therefore cannot be determined at this time.

The company is contingently liable with respect to litigation and claims that arise in the normal course of business. It is not
reasonably possible that any of the ongoing litigation as at December 31, 2017 could result in a material settlement liability.

The company has up to $4 billion of insurance for damage and business interruption costs sustained as a result of an act of terrorism.
However, a terrorist act could have a material effect on the company’s assets to the extent damages exceed the coverage.

The company, through its subsidiaries within the residential properties operations, is contingently liable for obligations of its
associates in its land development joint ventures. In each case, all of the assets of the joint venture are available first for the purpose
of satisfying these obligations, with the balance shared among the participants in accordance with predetermined joint venture
arrangements.

The corporation has entered into arrangements with respect to the $1.8 billion of exchangeable preferred equity units issued by
BPY discussed in Note 19, which are redeemable in equal tranches of $600 million in 2021, 2024 and 2026, respectively.
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The preferred equity units are exchangeable into equity units of BPY at $25.70 per unit, at the option of the holder, at any time
up to and including the maturity date. BPY may redeem the preferred equity units after specified periods if the BPY equity unit
price exceeds predetermined amounts. At maturity, the preferred equity units will be converted into BPY equity units at the lower
of $25.70 or the then market price of a BPY equity unit. In order to provide the purchaser with enhanced liquidity, the corporation
has agreed to purchase the preferred equity units for cash at the option of the holder, for the initial purchase price plus accrued
and unpaid dividends. In order to decrease dilution risk to BPY, the corporation has agreed with the holder and BPY that if the
price of a BPY equity unit is less than 80% of the exchange price of $25.70 at the redemption date of the 2021 and 2024 tranches,
the corporation will acquire the preferred equity units subject to redemption, at the redemption price, and to exchange these
preferred equity units for preferred equity units with similar terms and conditions, including redemption date, as the 2026 tranche.

b) Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Sustaining capital expenditures in the company’s renewable power operations were $140 million (2016 — $67 million), in its
real estate operations were $223 million (2016 — $300 million) and in its infrastructure operations were $927 million (2016 —
$390 million).

During the year, the company capitalized $203 million (2016 — $229 million) of interest primarily to investment properties and
residential inventory under development.

30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the first quarter of 2018, BPY signed a definitive agreement to acquire the common shares of GGP that it does not already own.
The purchase price is comprised of a fixed amount of $9.25 billion of cash and approximately 254 million units of BPY or an
equivalent equity instrument that will be issued on the close of the transaction. The cash component of the transaction is expected
to be funded through approximately $4 billion of asset sales, with the balance funded through debt at the GGP level, that will be
non-recourse to the corporation or BPY. We expect our ownership of BPY to be approximately 50% following this transaction.
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